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Results 348

Operating income EEIA
Operating profit EENE
Profit before taxation Gil)eresd
Net profit for the year il
Attributable to: SRR

Equity shareholders of YNGEiP=FS

the Company
Non-controling interests DERE

2013
Z-Z%
RMB'000
ARRTT

893,448
118,196
128,055
127,530

127,530

For the year ended 31 December

BET-AZt-HLFE

2012
“ECF
RMB’000
ARETT

1,225,525
107,190
112,840
110,906

110,906

2011
“F-TF
RMB'000
ARETTL

1,314,753
208,651
213,006
209,559

208,636
923

2010
“F-TF

RMB'000
ARETT

1,015,825
20,645
52,893
47,336

47,381
(49)

2009
“ZTNE
RMB'000
ANREFTT

563,945
(7,49)
56,969
65,356

67,849
(2,493)

Basic eamings per share (Note) BREARF| () RMBARMO0.312% RVBAR®02677c RMBARM04897C RMBARMO0.1117T RVBARH0.1597

Note: Basic earnings per share was adjusted after the share consolidation on the basis of every 10 shares with a nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each be effective on 28 January

2013.
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
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2,202,496
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1,428,656

As at 31 December
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845,001

1,388,673

A
2010
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| am pleased to submit to the shareholders the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB893,448,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared to
approximately RMB1,225,525,000 last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 27%. The gross profit margin was
approximately 20% for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
approximately 21%. The profit attributable to equity shareholders
was approximately RMB127,530,000 for the year under review,
representing an increase of approximately RMB16,624,000 over
the previous year of approximately RMB110,906,000. Basic
earnings per share was approximately RMB0.31.

The decrease in turnover of the Group was mainly due to the
decrease in selling price in international juice concentrate market.
Adversely affected by the overall international market, the
international market price of the juice concentrate industry in the
PRC significantly dropped in 2013, causing the decrease in the
export price of the Group.

Under the trend of steady appreciation of Renminbi against US
dollar, the Group has enhanced its cooperation with international
renowned financial institutions and entered into term loan
agreements with certain financial institutions to appropriately adjust
the Renminbi and US dollar loans portfolio. The directors of the
Company (“Directors”) believe that maintaining an appropriate
proportion of US dollar loans can reduce the Group’s exchange
rate risk and finance costs, and can better facilitate its business
development. In expanding the domestic market sales, the Group
continued to maintain close and stable business relationships
with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in China and has
developed new good customers with broadened sales channels.
Its market share in terms of sales volume in the domestic market
also increased significantly from the previous year. For research
and development, the Group won Grade Two Prize in National
Scientific and Technological Progress by “Research and Application
on Fresh Apple Storage and Critical Technology of Comprehensive
Processing”; won the Grade Two Prize in Technology Improvement
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in Yantai city by “Key Processing Technology and Industrialization
of High Color and Stable Pear Juice Concentrate”;
the construction of Key Laboratory for Apple Deep Processing
Technology in Shandong Province and acceptance of “Research

completed

and Development of Processing Technology and Equipment
for Natural Liquid Apple Aroma Concentrate under Low
Temperature” in the International Scientific and Technological
Cooperation Projects of Yantai city; participated in the formulation
of National Standard of “Apple Juice Concentrate” GB/T 18963-
2012 which was implemented on 1 April 2013; continued to
undertake the research project under the National Science and
Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on
the “Demonstration on Research and Industrialization of Key
Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, “Research
and Industrialization Demonstration on Technology of Decomposing
High Molecular Material in Apples by Multiple Enzymes” in the
International Scientific and Technological Cooperation Projects of
Yantai city and “Research on Critical Technology for Processing
Peach Puree”; undertook the research project under the National
Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing
Technology Integration and Industrialization Demonstration of
Apple Juice Concentrate” and Shandong Innovation Project 2013
on “Construction of Professional Information System for Apple
Processing and Optimization and Application Demonstration
of Apple juice Processing Technology”; accomplished the
transformation of critical technologies of separating insoluble
materials during processing apple juice concentrate and processing
high colour and stable pear juice concentrate as well as emission
reduction; applied for two national invention patents; and published
two professional theses.

Analysis of Industry and Our Market Share

In 2013, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 598,000 tonnes, representing an
increase of 1.7% as compared to 587,700 tonnes in 2012.
Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry has only
begun mass production since the late 90’s of last century, the
industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed a world
market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to the
abundant apple supplies in the PRC. In 2008, the global financial
crisis had led the export-oriented Chinese juice concentrate
industry into recession. From the fourth quarter of 2009, as the
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global apple juice consumption gradually recovered, sales market
also started to recover. In the first half of 2013, since the global
economy was growing in a slow pace, the demand of juice market
became weak and the international market price of apple juice
concentrate decreased significantly. In the second half of 2013,
the international market price of apple juice concentrate gradually
became stable and was recovered to a reasonable level.

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food, is bound to bring more rooms for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumer market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growth. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area of future apple
juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure juice will
become more and more popular.

Being a leader in the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry and
through our proactive and visionary leadership, we have gradually
expanded the market shares of our products and will seek to
secure our leading position in the industry for more rapid and better
development.

Prospects and Outlook

With the rising demand brought by the global economic recovery,
we expect both the export volume and export price of apple juice
will steadily stabilise at a rational and normal level. In addition, with
the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable to the
agricultural industry under the PRC government’s macroeconomic
policies as well as the gradual improvement of various relevant
PRC laws and regulations, the Group will enjoy better development
and financing opportunities. Aiming at enlarging its business
scale, the Group will strive to further enlarge its market, enhance
productivity, diversify products, expand sales, disperse markets
and to develop financing channels, etc.
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In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry by targeting
small and medium enterprises in the industry, both domestic and
abroad, through merger and acquisitions and to rationally adjust
the Group’s existing production capacities according to changes
in the sources of raw materials and to extend the research on
different types of juice concentrate and production capacity. On
domestic market sales, as the domestic consumer market for
apple juice concentrate gradually expands, the Group will continue
to maintain good business relationships with existing customers in
the coming year while actively exploring new customers through
our prime product quality and comprehensive services, with a view
to opening a new page in our domestic market sales. On research
and development, in 2014, as the presiding unit, the Group will
continue to undertake the research project under the National
Science and Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year
Plan” on the “Demonstration on the Research and Industrialization
of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the
research project under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer
Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing Technology Integration
and Industrialization Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”
and Shandong Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction of
Professional Information System for Apple Processing and
Optimization and Application Demonstration of Apple juice
Processing Technology”.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board of Directors (the “Board”) and
| have full confidence in the Group’s future development. Our
employees will continue to support the Group and to contribute to
the Group’s continuous and steady development.
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Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMBO0.05 per
share for the financial year 2013 in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, since the worldwide economy showed
a slow increasing trend, the average selling prices of the products
of the whole industry has significantly decreased. As the average
purchase cost of raw apples was relatively high in the pressing
season in 2012, the average product cost of the whole industry in
early 2013 increased significantly. Therefore, there was a significant
decrease in profit of the Group during the reporting period. The
Directors strongly believe that the Company will have even more
development opportunities in 2014, given that some small and
medium domestic enterprises have been forced out of the market
and the whole industry is gradually recovering. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all the
investors, loyal customers and suppliers for their appreciation and
unfailing support to the Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

19 March 2014

* For identification purpose only
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Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s turnover
decreased to approximately RMB893,448,000 as compared
to approximately RMB1,225,525,000 in 2012, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB332,077,000 or 27%. The Group’s
turnover was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of
apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, apple essence,
feedstuff and related products. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the sale of apple juice concentrate was approximately 84%
of the total sale of the Group (2012: approximately 86%). The
decrease in turnover was mainly due to the decrease in selling
price in international juice concentrate market caused by slow
growth rate in the global economy.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB180,044,000 and the gross profit margin
was approximately 20%. For the corresponding period in 2012, the
gross profit was approximately RMB252,895,000 and gross profit
margin was approximately 21%.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company) increased to approximately RMB127,530,000
as compared to approximately RMB110,906,000 for the
corresponding period in 2012,
approximately RMB16,624,000 or 15%. The increase in net profit

representing an increase of

was mainly attributable to the sale of 18.95% equity interest in
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. (“Andre Pectin”).
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Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB55,533,000, as compared
to approximately RMB64,586,000 in 2012, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB9,053,000 or 14%. The Group’s
distribution costs mainly included transport, export inspection and
marketing expenses. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in sales volume and the Group tightened the control of
distribution costs.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB51,322,000 as
compared to approximately RMB52,742,000 in 2012, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB1,420,000 or 3%. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the tightened control of administrative
expenses by the Group.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the net finance costs of
the Group were approximately RMB29,425,000, as compared to
approximately RMB32,456,000 for the corresponding period in
2012, representing a decrease of approximately RMB3,031,000
or 9%. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in bank
charges during the year 2013.

Investment Income

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the investment income
recognized by the Group was approximately RMBB80,195,000.
The investment income was caused by the sale of 18.95% equity
interest in its associate, Andre Pectin, to DSM Food Specialties
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. in 2013. The total consideration was
RMB135,966,250 and the investment income recognized was
approximately RMB74,201,000, representing the difference
between consideration received and the book value of equity
disposed.
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Share of Profit from Associates and Joint Ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2013, share of profit from
associates and joint ventures of the Group was approximately
RMB5,209,000, as compared to approximately RMB9,494,000 in
2012, representing a decrease of approximately RMB4,285,000
or 45%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the disposal of
18.95% equity interests in its associate, Andre Pectin.

Income Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the income tax
expenses of the Group were approximately RMB525,000. For
the corresponding period in 2012, the income tax expenses
were approximately RMB1,933,000. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the production of condensed juice and bio-
feedstuff by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries was
recognized as primary processing of agricultural produce under the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and therefore was exempt
from the PRC income tax.

Business Review

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2013, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging on
its advanced production technology, superb product quality and
comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained steady
growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts, the
Group has already expanded its sales network to major countries
and regions in the world, including the US, Japan, Europe, Oceania
and African countries and PRC market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
relationships with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in the
PRC and has developed new good customers with broadened
sales channels.
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Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and market share, the Group
also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to optimise its
profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the customer
base of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage
manufacturers of the world.

Research and Development

The Group won Grade Two Prize in National Scientific and
Technological Progress by “Research and Application on Fresh
Apple Storage and Critical Technology of Comprehensive
Processing”; won the Grade Two Prize in Technology Improvement
in Yantai city by “Key Processing Technology and Industrialization
of High Color and Stable Pear Juice Concentrate”;
the construction of Key Laboratory for Apple Deep Processing
Technology in Shandong Province and acceptance of “Research

completed

and Development of Processing Technology and Equipment
for Natural Liquid Apple Aroma Concentrate under Low
Temperature” in the International Scientific and Technological
Cooperation Projects of Yantai city; participated in the formulation
of National Standard of “Apple Juice Concentrate” GB/T 18963-
2012 which was implemented on 1 April 2013; continued to
undertake the research project under the National Science and
Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on
the “Demonstration on Research and Industrialization of Key
Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, “Research
and Industrialization Demonstration on Technology of Decomposing
High Molecular Material in Apples by Multiple Enzymes” in the
International Scientific and Technological Cooperation Projects of
Yantai city and “Research on Critical Technology for Processing
Peach Puree”; undertook the research project under the National
Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing
Technology Integration and Industrialization Demonstration of
Apple Juice Concentrate” and Shandong Innovation Project 2013
on “Construction of Professional Information System for Apple
Processing and Optimization and Application Demonstration
of Apple juice Processing Technology”; accomplished the
transformation of critical technologies of separating insoluble
materials during processing apple juice concentrate and processing
high colour and stable pear juice concentrate as well as emission
reduction; applied for two national invention patents; and published
two professional theses.
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Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets of
apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania, African countries and Japan. The Company will put more
efforts in the development of various emerging markets, with a
view to breaking through these markets. On the other hand, the
Company has in recent years explored the market opportunities for
its new products and niche products as well as the development
of new customer groups. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of product
mix expansion.

Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the coming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page in
our domestic market sales.

Continue the Development of Traceability and Farm
Management Improvement Linkages Project

In the coming year, the Group will more strictly implement the
GLOBALGAP standardisation in the regulation and development of
existing and newly established recognition bases. Improvements
will be made in the areas of production, management, storage and
sales, etc. to generate more revenue from the GLOBALGAP bases,
with a view to building up the modelling status so that surrounding
fruityards will follow the GLOBALGAP standardisation.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against US dollar and adjust the proportion of Renminbi and
US dollar loans. The Group will continue to actively engage in
cooperation with domestic and international financial institutions to
diversify its financing channels and increase the variety of financing
products, in order to reduce the Group’s exchange rate risk and
finance cost, improve capital structure and facilitate better business
development.
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Research and Development
Acting as the presiding unit, the Group will undertake the following
research and development:

1. the research project under the National Science and
Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on
the “Demonstration on the Research and Industrialization of
Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”;

2. the research project under the National Agricultural Fund
Transfer Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing Technology
Integration and Industrialization Demonstration of Apple Juice
Concentrate”; and

3. Shandong Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction of
Professional Information System for Apple Processing and

Optimization and Application Demonstration of Apple juice
Processing Technology”.

Charge of Assets

Except as disclosed in Note V.14 to the Financial Statements, the
Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2013.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note VIII.1
to the Financial Statements.

Capital Structure

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19
January 2011, the H shares of the Company were transferred and
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”)
and de-listed from GEM. Pursuant to a resolution passed at the
annual general meeting and the class meetings of the Company
on 26 June 2012, and approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company consolidated every ten shares with a par
value of RMBO0.10 each into one consolidated share with a par
value of RMB1.00 on 28 January 2013. The registered capital of
the Company remained at RMB408,988,000, but the total number
of shares of the Company changed from 4,089,880,000 shares
to 408,988,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each. The
capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares (comprising
domestic shares and H shares). Details of the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note V.25 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, Hongan International
Investment Company Limited (the “Offeror”) and parties acting in
concert with it, as a result of the acquisition of shares in Donghua
Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., are required to make a mandatory
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conditional general offer for all the outstanding shares of the
Company other than those already owned or agreed to be
acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it. On 13
November 2013, the Company and the Offeror jointly issued the
composite offer and response document in relation to the offer.
The offer was closed on 10 December 2013.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and loans from banks.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total outstanding bank
loans of approximately RMB695,123,000, of which approximately
RMB672,259,000 was short term, and RMB22,864,000 was
long term bank loan that is due within 1 year. As at 31 December
2013, the short-term bank loans of RMB626,518,000 bore interest
at rates ranging from 3.15% to 6.72% per annum. Short-term
bank loans of RMB27,436,000 bore floating interest rate of the
lender’s cost of fund COF+2.25% to 3.00% per annum. Short-
term bank loans of RMB18,305,000 bore floating interest rate of
LIBOR+4.50% per annum. For long term bank loans that is due
within 1 year, approximately RMB22,864,000 bore floating interest
rate of LIBOR+3.75% per annum. In the year 2013, the Group
repaid on time the loans due for repayment. The Directors consider
that the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing
operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB437,065,000. The Group’s
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 was approximately 37%
(2012: approximately 35%) which is calculated by dividing the
Group’s total liabilities of approximately RMB906,525,000 (2012:
RMB773,940,000) by the Group’s total assets of approximately
RMB2,442,161,000 (2012: RMB2,202,496,000).
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%), aged 51, is Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26
June 2001. Mr. Wang is a well known entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (Fi8; Z# 5 E A ), an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (IIER&EFTEHEGHE
THEEEREKLE), a Top Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province (1L & E%E
EREAFENTAEHAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’
of Reform and Opening in Yantai (AAKRERBR=TF [FL2
£1]), an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai
to Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (#2&® Bl 60BFZEREEF
RENMZER), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time
Among the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of
Socialism in Yantai of Shandong Province (ILE (&) it & X &z
BANTEREAY Z TEEEREAY), and is a representative
of Shandong Province to the National People’s Congress (AKX
R F). Mr. Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central
Communist Party (FP 2t RER K ERT) in June 1994. He was
the general manager of Yangma Resort (&5 &E M) for four
years before joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social
services appointments: member of China Business Advisory
Council (FBEIITHIEEESEE), member of the 1st Session of the
Council of Yantai Charity Federation (A& TMESRSE—[E1EE
ZIEE). Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILZ
ZiEFE@ARAT), which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has since
been involved in the concentrated juice production industry. Mr.
Wang is responsible for the overall management of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Hui (58#), aged 41, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a
Director since 26 June 2001. He was Deputy General Manager of
Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (&R IEAR
AF]) and Muping material (£2F#)%& ) before joining the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December 1998 and has been
involving in the concentrated juice production industry since then.

Mr. Zhang has been Supervisor of the Production Department,
General Manager of a subsidiary of the Company and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Zhang has received the following
awards: Outstanding Member of the Communist Party ({85 &
#EB) of Muping District, The 9th Session Top Ten Outstanding
Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai city (FBAEEEHT +ALELFF
%) and the “May 1st Labor Award” of Yantai city. In March
2007, he was appointed as a member of the standing committee
of the Fruit and Vegetable Processing Division (REZEINTHE) of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology. During his
tenure as General Manager of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* (7K
LZERREA AR AT, he was appointed as a representative of
the Communist Party in Weinan city (ff ;8 mE M R) and was
a standing member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Baishui County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr.
Wang An in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shandong Agriculture University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management (majoring in corporate
management) in July 1997. Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%t#%), aged 37, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (A& &EEE1LH AHE
J&). Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the Financial
Controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-VYi (2|5RH), aged 47, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the Business Integration
Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He joined Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed as the head
of its Investment Analysis Section. In 2000, he was transferred
to President International Development Corporation, and was
responsible for its investments. He has also been the manager
of the Treasury Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. since
2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/supervisor
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd. is a
company listed on the Taiwan Gretai Securities Market. Mr. Liu
has over 20 years of experience in banking, corporate finance and
investment. Before joining Uni-President Enterprises Corp., he was
the head of the Credit and Loan Unit of Taipei branch of Cosmos
Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor of Law degree
(majoring in Economics) from National Chengchi University in 1989,
and a Master of Business Administration degree from National
Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Gong Fan (B21.), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Gong graduated from Xi’an
Jiaotong University (FE%Z323BAE2) in July 1987 with a Bachelor’'s
degree in Industrial Management Engineering ( LEEE TH2) . Mr.
Gong has over 20 years of experience in finance and is a certified
public accountant and a certified appraiser in the PRC. Mr. Gong
worked in the Beihai Finance Bureau in Guangxi Province (EPEdt
BTMEIEE) from 1987 to 1992; and Beihai Accounting Firm (1t
JSEEIERSFT) and Zhong He Accounting Firm (FRAI& &Rl %
T%FT) from 1993 to 2000 as a registered accountant. Mr. Gong
was Chief Finance Officer of the Company and Secretary of the
Board from 2001 to 20083, a director and Chief Financial Officer of
Henan Ping Gao Electric Co., Ltd.* CAEFaERREBERAT)
from 2003 to 2004. He has been Chief Investment Officer of Creat
Tian Cheng Investment Holding Co., Ltd.* (Rl RIEE =L ER
A7]) since 2005.
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Mr. Chow Kam Hung (FE#%4), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Chow
graduated from St. Cloud State University, U.S.A. in May 1986
with a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering, and Newport

University, U.S.A. in December 1998 with a Master of Business
Administration degree. Mr. Chow has over 16 years of experience
in both overseas and PRC investments. Mr. Chow has been
General Manager of the Hong Kong company of Creat Group,
a China based investment company which has investments in
finance, manufacturing, real estate and resource sectors, since
1996. He is also Chief Operation Officer of Creat Resources
Holdings Limited, an Australia based resources investment and
development company listed on the AIM of the London Stock
Exchange, since July 2010.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z[E2), aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of
the Communist Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working
experience. Mr. Li obtained a college degree in economic
management from Party School of the Shandong Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping
Foreign Trade Bureau from December 1978 to April 1992. He
worked as the manager of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical
Packaging Import and Export Company from April 1992 to April
1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy general manager of Muping
Foreign Trade Company from April 1994 to June 2005. He is the
chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd. since June 2005.
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Supervisors

Mr. Wang Chun Tang (£%&%), aged 60, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang has been a Supervisor since 28 May 2007. Mr. Wang
was an officer of the Communications Bureau of Muping, Yantai,
Shandong Province from May 1973 to December 1987. He studied
Economics and Management in the Communist Party School of
Shandong Province from September 1995 to December 1997
and obtained the graduation certificate issued by the Communist
Party School of Shandong Province on 30 December 1997.
From January 1988 to January 2006, Mr. Wang was Supervisor,
Deputy Chief and Managing Deputy Chief of the Publishing Office
of Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province. From January 2006
to January 2009, Mr. Wang was a member of the Executive
Committee of the Yantai Muping National People’s Congress.

Mr. Xu Jiang (%71 ), aged 60, is the staff representative supervisor
of the Company since 4 February 2013. He is the manager of the
project department and the chairman of the labour union of the
Company. He has around 40 years of working experience. He
obtained a junior school diploma from Shandong Muping District
Gaoling County Dongtun Village Chekuang Union Middle School
in September 1970. From May 1992 to July 1997, he served as
the manager of the project department of China North Industries
Corporation Yangma Resort. From August 1997 to November
1998, he served as a deputy general manager of China North
Industries Corporation Yangma North Hotel. From December 1998
to June 2002, he served as a deputy general manager of Henghua
Real Estate Company. From July 2002 to December 2003, he
served as a deputy director of the general office of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Suoping (5&FT¥), aged 61, is the general manager of
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.. He has around 35 years of working
experience. He obtained a diploma from Shandong Rushan Normal
School in August 1975. From November 1970 to August 1973,
Mr. Zhang served as a teacher of Yantai Muping District Shuidao
County Qinghushan Village Primary School. From August 1975
to August 1986, Mr. Zhang served as a teacher of Muping No.2
Middle School. From June 1987 to March 1990, he served as the
head of the business department of Muping Aquatic Products
Company and the manager of the store of Muping Aquatic
Products Company from March 1990 to January 1996. He joined
in the Company in May 2005.
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Senior Management

Mr. Wang An (T %), aged 51, is Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Zhang Hui (58¥8) , aged 41, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (T %#8), aged 37, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Yang Tao (#%&), aged 43, a college graduate, is a vice
president of the Company. Mr. Yang joined the Company in March
1996 and formerly worked as production line leader, workshop
supervisor and general manager of a subsidiary of the Company.
He previously served as member of the 12th Session of the
CPPCC of Longkou City and has been awarded: Outstanding
Communist Party Member of Yantai City and Outstanding Party
Worker of Longkou New and Hi-Tech Zone. Mr. Yang currently
assists the chief executive officer in supervising the production of
the Group.

Ms. Zhao Jing (#E&a), aged 48, is a vice president of the
Company. Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’'s
University of International Business and Economics and obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Foreign Business Management in July 1990.
She worked in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of the Foreign
Economics and Trade Commission of Muping from January 1992
to February 1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel Products Co.,
Ltd. from 1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a vice president
responsible for sales and market promotion from 1997 to August
20083; and Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd. from September
2003 to December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the Company in
January 2011 and is currently responsible for both domestic and
overseas sales of the Group.
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Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (FIE4 ), aged 45, a university graduate with
a Bachelor’s degree in Agriculture, is a vice president and the chief
engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in 1997 to
engage in manufacturing technologies development, quality control
and on-going supervision of production activities. He was the two-
time winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science Advancement of
Shandong Province (ILRARHGENN=542), the winner of the
1st Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (/& %}
R H—%4) and the winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science
Advancement in Yantai City (MR&THEHL#EF =548) . Currently,
he is responsible for the technology, research and development of
the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee (fi#18), aged 42, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor’'s degree in Business
Administration in 1994. She is a fellow Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has 20 years of experience in the
field of auditing and accounting.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures
in light of changes in regulations and developments in best
practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2013, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviations:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Company is negotiating with the relevant
insurance agents about the liability insurance for the Directors and
will arrange such insurance cover in due course.

According to Code A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors shall
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Due to their personal or business
engagement, a non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors did not attend the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 26 June 2013, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors did not attend the
special general meeting held on 21 May 2013, and a non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors did not
attend the special general meetings held on 19 August 2013 and
25 October 2013.

According to Code E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to other engagement, Mr. Wang An was absent from the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 June 2013.
The annual general meeting was chaired by Mr. Zhang Hui, an
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

(i)  To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

()  To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional
management;

development of directors and senior

@iy  To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board approved the terms of
reference of the Board, the shareholder communication policy,
shareholder enquiry procedures and special request procedures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is managed by its Board of Directors, which has the
responsibility for providing leadership and control of the Company.
Through the Board, the Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total of
seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Wang An (Chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (Chief Executive Officer) and
Mr. Wang Yan Hui; one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu
Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning.
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Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2016.
All Directors are appointed by the shareholders at the shareholders’
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to
22 of this report.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting on their
work at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting off
of accumulated losses of the Company;
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- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger, or dissolution of
the Company;

- formulating the internal management structure of the Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of the
Company and appointing or dismissing the deputy general
manager, financial controller and other senior management
at the recommendation of the chief executive officer of the
Company and determination of matters relating to their
remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;

- formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of
association; and

- carrying out other powers conferred by shareholders’
meetings.

The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible for
preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-to-day
management of the Company’s business is delegated to the chief
executive officer and the management. The functions of the Board
and the powers delegated to the chief executive officer are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the chairman
is separate from that of the chief executive officer. The chairman
of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman is responsible for
convening and holding general meetings and Board meetings,
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tracking the progress of implementation of the resolutions passed
by the Board, signing the securities issued by the Company and
carrying out other powers conferred by the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui
is the chief executive officer of the Company. The chief executive
officer and the management are responsible for the production,
operation and management of the Company, implementation of
the resolutions passed by the Board, implementation of annual
business plans and investment proposals, formulation of the internal
management structure, the basic management system and the
specific governance of the Company. In particular the chief executive
officer is responsible for proposing to the Board for appointment or
dismissal of deputy general manager, financial controller and other
senior management of the Company, appointment or dismissal of
other management staff whose appointment and dismissal does
not require approval from the Board and carrying out other powers
conferred by the Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Upon appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company
has been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in
a wide range of professional development courses or and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance or act and
corporate governance practices organised by professional bodies
and independent auditors so that they can continuously update and
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in discharging their duties. During the year, the company
secretary, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen has completed over 15 hours
professional training.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the

Directors received the following training with an emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in compliance with the new requirement of the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the year:

Notes

H
Executive Directors MITES
Wang An T
Zhang Hui SR IE
Wang Yan Hui T dhyE
Non-executive Directors JERITESE
Liu Tsung-Yi 2IRE
Lin Wu Chung VUNTWnY 1

Independent non-executive Directors I ITES

Gong Fan )N
Chow Kam Hung ek
Li Tong Ning =R
Yu Shou Neng BISTAE
Qu Wen 52
Notes:

1. Resigned on 21 May 2013.
2. Resigned on 26 June 2013.
3. Appointed on 27 June 2013.
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for board meetings, and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The chairman
also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their initial
induction, ongoing participation at board and committee meetings,
and through meeting key people at head office and in the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary to the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to
ensure the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to
each executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibility.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.
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The Board held eight meetings during 2013. The financial controller
also attended all of the Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, risk management, statutory compliance, mergers and
acquisitions and accounting and financial matters. The attendance
(other than attending by authorised representatives) of individual
Directors at the Board meetings, the meetings of other committees
and the general meetings in 2013 is set out in the table below.

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BHEI(B/A/F) *E WA ZH WYH LWwC*
05/02/2013 WA v v v -
12/03/2013 ZH v v v v
29/03/2013 N/A v v v v
06/05/2013 N/A v v v v
31/05/2013 N/A v v v N/A
26/06/2013 N/A v v v N/A
12/08/2013 WA v v v N/A
26/08/2013 WA v v v N/A
Annual General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BEI(B/A/F) *E WA ZH WYH LwC*
26/06/2013 ZH - v v N/A
Special General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BEI(B/A/F) *E WA ZH WYH LWC*
21/05/2013 ZH - v v -
19/08/2013 WYH - v v N/A
25/10/2013 WYH - - v N/A
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34

LTY YSN*™ QW* GF CKH LTN*

v v - v v NA
v 4 4 4 v N/A
v v v v v N/A
4 v v v 4 N/A
v v NA v v NA
v v NA v v NA
v NA  NA v v v
v NA NA v v v

BRBFEAE

LTY YSN*™ QW* GF CKH LTN*

- - N/A - - N/A

BERRAS

LTY YSN*™ QW* GF CKH LTN*

- - - v - NA
- NA NA - - -
- NA NA - - -
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Audit and Review Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
HEI(R/B/F) *E

08/03/2013 GF
23/08/2013 GF

Nomination Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
HEI(B/A/F) EJ:

06/03/2013 WA

Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
HEI(R/B/F) *E

08/03/2013 Qw

Note:

WA Wang An

ZH Zhang Hui

WYH  Wang Yan Hui
LWC  Lin Wu-Chung*
LTY Liu Tsung-Yi
YSN  Yu Shou Neng™*
QW  Qu Wen*

GF Gong Fan

CKH  Chow Kam Hung
LTN Li Tong Ning*

Symbols:

“v"" means attended the meeting
“—" means not attended the meeting
“N/A" means not applicable

* Mr. Li Tong Ning was appointed on 27 June 2013.

> Mr. Lin Wu-Chung and Ms. Qu Wen resigned on 21 May 2013.

*** Ms. Yu Shou Neng resigned on 26 June 2013.
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction in
which a Director has conflict of interest, the Director has to declare
his interest and is required to abstain from voting and withdraw from
the meetings as appropriate. The Company seeks confirmation from
the Directors annually in respect of any transactions of the Company
or its subsidiaries which are related to Directors or their associates.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities and
derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2013.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2013.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company comprises three
members of which two are recommended by shareholders and
one is an employee representative elected by the employees.
The Supervisory Committee is responsible for supervision of the
Board, members of the Board and senior management, to prevent
authority abuse, shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect
legal interest of the Company and its employees. During 20183,
the Supervisory Committee held one meeting, during which the
committee members reviewed the Company’s financial position,
legal compliance of the Company’s operations and diligence of the
senior management.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. Procedures
for the Company’s internal control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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A review of the Company’s internal control system covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management is conducted annually.
In particular, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are
monitored by the Board with the support of various committees
and senior management. For the year under review, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control system was
adequate and the Company had complied with the code provisions
on internal control under the CG Code.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department provides an independent review
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system.
The department is headed by a manager who is familiar with the
Company’s operation. Its scope of work mainly includes auditing of
financial and operational systems, observance of relevant policies
and regulations, regular and special auditing, auditing of production
effectiveness, etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk
assessment methodology, is discussed and agreed every year by
the Audit and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual
schedule of work, the Internal Audit Department conducts other
special reviews as required.

The primary reporting line of the Internal Audit Department is to the
chairman of the Board but there is also direct access to the Audit
and Review Committee. Internal audit reports are sent to the chief
executive officer, the financial controller, external auditors and the
relevant management of the departments under audit. A summary
of major audit findings is reported to the Audit and Review
Committee. The Board and the Audit and Review Committee
actively monitor the number and seriousness of findings raised by
the Internal Audit Department and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.
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Detailed control guidelines have been set and made available to all
employees of the Company regarding handling and dissemination
of corporate data which is price sensitive.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has established a Risk Management Committee
which coordinates the proper application of operational risk
management procedures throughout the Company. The
Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Company and its subsidiaries in, among others, the following
areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
process, system and internal control, including whether the
development of the Company’s business is prudent and in
compliance with the legal requirements.

The terms of reference of the Committee do not include financial
risk management and the coordination of the Company’s policy
on environmental issues. The Committee is chaired by the financial
controller of the Company and includes senior representatives from
each division as well as the human resources manager and the
head of Internal Audit Department. The Committee reports to the
Audit and Review Committee on a regular basis.
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AUDIT AND REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and making relevant recommendations to the
Board. All of its members are independent non-executive Directors
(namely Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning)
and its current chairman is Mr. Gong Fan.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Review Committee are
based on the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit and Review Committee met twice in 2013. During
2013, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and listing rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2013 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In 2013, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,280,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out on pages 70 to 71 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) for the audit work
of the Company for the financial year 2014. This resolution has
been endorsed by the Board and is subject to final approval and
authorisation by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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REMUNERATION AND REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Gong
Fan and Mr. Li Tong Ning as members with Mr. Gong Fan as
the chairperson. Both of them are independent non-executive
Directors. The Committee’s responsibilities are as follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and
- to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of the directors and senior
management personnel.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a director, director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2013
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2013. At that meeting, the Committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2013.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee
to the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration
package include basic compensation (comprising of director
fee) and discretionary bonus without capping. In determining
guidelines for each compensating element, the Company refers
to remuneration surveys conducted by independent external
consultants on companies operating in similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars are
contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for 2013 by band is set out
below:
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of the
Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus based
on the Company’s results and the degree of responsibilities of each
of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2012 and
2013 are disclosed in Note V.40 to the Financial Statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wang An, an
executive Director, and comprises Mr. Gong Fan and Mr. Li
Tong Ning as members. The role of the Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors,
evaluation of Board composition and the management of Board
succession with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by
the Nomination Committee. These guidelines include appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethnics,
integrity and personal skills, and time commitments of members.
The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship including the
consideration of referrals and engagement of external recruitment
professional when necessary. The Nomination Committee met
once in 2013 to discuss the Board structure, size and composition
and to evaluate the independence status of the independent non-
executive Directors.

42 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&EILHZBRNRTRHERATE

ERG

P ERZREEEFHEREBEARTZ
e BRI R ESES 2 EAHH -
RERNRBESESTZHMILZREA
%) BREEAREDREEELHH -

BIETEAL
REARREEEETCRAITLZRBA
# AEEFRGURLANEEREETER
BRAREHEEDAL -BE_T—=F
T-A=1+—RLFE EFWLAER
EREIBIEAL -

RIE——FR-ZB-=ZFXNFRES
ZHEFBEERMBERARMER - 40 -

REERE

REZEEHNTESTIREELEE
o REBRENLTERFRAELLE - X
BEgmAact REZEERANETR
£ MEFEREEESF  THEFEN
HahBEFERBEERELER - BRF
EEREFEEERMBRITEER
AT ~ U5 R kBe - AR R 508
A REZESAEHERERES
EANE BREBLKMAHEEBHNAELE
FERBERBERRNRE - EREEE
E-Z—=F87-Re% AW EF
BERE - ABBAR - X HBIIFNTT
EROBEIEIT TR o



As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below is
the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a
wide range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee
will review the diversity of the Board and report to the Board
the composition of the Board members and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
were revised on 19 March 2014 to adopt the Board Diversity Policy
have been posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Company is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available
to meet with the shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major shareholders is
through the chief executive officer and financial controller of the
Company.

To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the financial controller was established. The
Information Disclosure Review Committee is responsible for
the establishment of procedures to compile, verify and report
the Company’s financial and operational statistics and other
information as well as to supervise the drafting and publication of
periodic reports.
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Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to all
shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting was held
on 26 June 2013 at 2nd Floor, No. 18 Andre Avenue, Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The meeting was open to all shareholders and members
of the press and was attended by all substantial shareholders
personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives.
A wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is
made available to investors and the public through the corporate
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. Webcasts of
the meetings announcing the interim and annual results are also
available on the corporate website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

In 2013, the Company held 22 meetings and conference calls
with analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices.
These activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly by
questions at an annual general meeting or special Shareholders’
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special shareholders’ meeting of the Company may
also be made to the Company by the same means.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed in
accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the articles of association of the Company, the Board shall give
written feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10
days after receiving the proposal.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by
relevant shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the board of Supervisors to hold the SGM
in writing.

If the board of Supervisors agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by
relevant shareholders.

If the board of Supervisors fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the board of
Supervisors does not convene or preside over the shareholders’
meeting. Exceeding 90 continuous days, the shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
may hold the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the shareholders’ meeting held by the
board of Supervisors or shareholders by themselves shall be born
by the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

When the Company holds the shareholders’ meeting, the Board,
the board of Supervisors and the shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing 10
days before the SGM.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April 2012
under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website at www.
andre.com.cn.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Room 1505, Wheelock House,

20 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.
Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@biznetvigator.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company and the
special general meeting held on 21 May 2013, amendments to
the Articles of Association of the Company were approved by the
shareholders of the Company, mainly to reflect share consolidation,
change of business scope and to prepare for listing of A Shares.
An updated version of the Articles of Association of the Company
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of
apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, apple essence,
feedstuff and related products. The principal activities of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note IV.1 to the Financial
Statements.

Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company and its interest in
joint venture as at 31 December 2013 are set out in Notes IV.1 and
VI.2 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in pages 72 to 236 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5 of
this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and was
expanding its market to other countries. The sales attributable to
the top five customers of the Group accounted for about 47.49%
of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to about 15.20%.
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Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 8.9% of total purchases for the year. The largest supplier
accounted for about 2.75% of the total purchases of the Group for
the year.

None of the Directors, Supervisors, their respective associates or
any shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB20,449,400 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.05 per
share for 2013. This proposed dividend will be distributed first
from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company generated in or before 2007. Any
insufficiency will be distributed from the profit for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company generated in or after 2008. The
proposal to declare and pay this final dividend will be submitted to
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 25 June 2014. Final dividend for Domestic
Shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi whereas dividend
for H Shares will be declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The final dividend will be paid to those shareholders whose
names appear on the Companys’ register of members at the close
of business on 10 July 2014 (the “Record Date”). To determine the
identity of the shareholders entitled to receive the final dividend,
the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be closed
from 5 July 2014 to 10 July 2014 (both days inclusive) during
which no transfer of H Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for entitement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of H
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 4 July 2014. The final dividend will be distributed within
two months from the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax rate
of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of non-resident
enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to the Corporate
Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise (including
our Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder shall withhold corporate income tax at 10% for and pay
by the Company on behalf of such shareholder. At the same time,
pursuant to the provisions of the Preferential Policy on Profit Earned by
Foreign Investors from Foreign Investment Enterprises in the Circular
of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation
Concerning Several Preferential Policies Relevant to Corporate Income
Tax, any profit accumulated and not yet distributed before 1 January
2008 by foreign investment enterprise when distributed to non-
resident enterprise in or after 2008, will be exempted from corporate
income tax. Any dividend distributed to non-resident enterprises from
profit accumulated since 2008 will be subject to corporate income tax.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income Tax
Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993]
No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-resident
individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses from domestic
non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong,
individual income tax shall be withheld by the withholding agent
according to the domain of “interest, dividends and bonuses”.
The non-resident individual shareholders of domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong, shall enjoy
the taxation preferences in accordance with the agreements
between countries of their origins and China and the regulation
on taxation arrangement between the Mainland and Hong Kong
(Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as provided by taxation
agreement is generally at a rate of 10%. In order to simplify the
collection and management of taxation, the individual income
tax with a rate of 10% in general will be withheld when dividend
is paid by the domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which
issued shares in Hong Kong without making applications. Where
the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it will be handled according to
the following requirements: (1) for residents of countries which
have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a tax rate
lower than 10%, the withholding agent may apply for the relevant
entitlements hereunder on their behalf. Upon examination and
approval by the competent tax authorities, the additional amount
of tax withheld will be refunded; (2) for residents of countries
which have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a
tax rate of 10% or more but less than 20%, the withholding agent
shall withhold individual income tax at the agreed tax rate when
distributing dividends or bonuses, and no application for approval
is needed; (3) for residents of a country or which has not entered
into any tax treaties with the PRC and in any other circumstances,
the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at the tax
rate of 20% when distributing dividends and bonuses.
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Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han[2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends to
non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax Law)
for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H Shares registered under the name
of non-natural persons in the H Share register of members
of the Company on 4 July 2014 (Friday), including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other groups
and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
shareholders.

The Company anticipates that all the proposed dividend will
be distributed from the balance of the profit of the Group for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company generated in or
before 2007. Pursuant to the preferential policy of the Corporate
Income Tax Law, the Company currently proposes not to withhold
10% corporate income tax and to distribute the final dividend
to such non-resident enterprise shareholders at gross amount
before corporate income tax. This arrangement is conditional
upon obtaining the final approval from the relevant tax authority.
If the Company cannot obtain final approval from the relevant tax
authorities regarding the exemption of corporate income tax for
non-resident enterprise shareholders as mentioned above, the
Company will distribute the final dividend to such non-resident
enterprise shareholders after withholding corporate income tax of
10% as required by the Corporate Income Tax Law. For individual
shareholders who hold the Company’s H shares and whose names
appear on the register of members of H shares of the Company
(the “Individual H Shareholders”) shall pay individual income tax at a
tax rate of 10% upon their receipt of distribution of dividends from
the Company, which shall be withheld and paid by the Company
on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H shares of the Company.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding.
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Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.25 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company in the year is set out
in the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the
Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB382,372,000 (2012:
approximately RMB374,129,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group incurred approximately
RMB40,122,000, mainly for the construction of new production line
and acquiring plant and equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group is set
out in Note V.9 to the Financial Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the Company Law of the PRC
which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
o existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors of the Company or their
respective associates was granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries any right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any such
right as at 31 December 2013.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

On 6 May 2013, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement (the “Agreement”) with DSM Food Specialties China
Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“DSM”), pursuant to which DSM conditionally
agreed to acquire and the Company conditionally agreed to sell its
18.95% interest in its associate, Andre Pectin at a consideration
in Euro in the amount equivalent to RMB135,966,250 (i.e.
RMB4.1 per share). Although DSM is not a connected person of
the Company, the transaction between the Company and DSM
involves the Company disposing of interest in Andre Pectin, a
company in which Mr. Wang An, an executive Director, is currently
an indirect substantial shareholder. Accordingly, the entering into of
the Agreement in relation to the Disposal constitutes a non-exempt
connected transaction of the Company under Rule 14A.13(1)(b)
(i) of the Listing Rules and is subject to reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval as required under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company ceased to have any interest
in Andre Pectin since the completion on 26 September 2018.
Details are disclosed in the Company’s announcement and circular
dated 6 May 2013 and 3 July 2013, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies have been made by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Significant Investments

No significant investment was held by the Group as at 31
December 2013.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 1,003
employees (2012: 1,080 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012 were approximately RMB37,796,000
and approximately RMB41,081,000 respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.40
and 41 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.
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Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in note V.41 to the Financial
Statements.

Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2013 and up to the date of this report, the

Directors and Supervisors of the Company were as follows:
Executive Directors: Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi and Lin Wu-Chung

Directors: (resigned on 21 May 2013)

Independent Gong Fan, Chow Kam Hung, Li Tong Ning
non-executive (appointed on 27 June 2013), Yu Shou Neng
Directors: (resigned on 26 June 2013) and Qu Wen

(resigned on 21 May 2013)
Supervisors: Wang Chun Tang, Zhang Suoping

(appointed on 21 May 2013), Xu Jiang
(appointed on 4 February 2013), Li Ye Sheng
(resigned on 4 February 2013) and Li Kun
Gui (resigned on 21 May 2013)

Independence of Independent non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Al
independent non-executive Directors are considered as independent.

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Mr. Li Tong Ning was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 27 June 2013. Mr. Lin Wu-Chung resigned as a non-
executive Director on 21 May 2013. Ms. Yu Shou Neng and Ms.
Qu Wen resigned as independent non-executive Directors on 26
June 2013 and 21 May 2013 respectively. Mr. Zhang Suoping
and Mr. Xu Jiang were appointed as Supervisors on 21 May 2013
and 4 February 2013 respectively. Mr. Li Ye Sheng and Mr. Li
Kun Gui resigned as Supervisors on 4 February 2013 and 21 May
2013 respectively. Save as disclosed herein, there was no material
change to the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Continuing Connected Transactions

I On 17 September 2012, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Andre Pectin for the sale of
pomace to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for
the sale of pomace for the three years ended 31 December
2015. The framework agreement took effect on 1 January
2013 and shall expire on 31 December 2015.

As of the date of signing the above framework agreement,
Andre Pectin was an associate of Andre Group, which was
a substantial shareholder of the Company and controlled
37.90% interest in Andre Pectin as of the date of signing the
agreement. Andre Pectin was also an associate of Mr. Wang
An, who was a Director and indirectly controlled 37.90%
interest in Andre Pectin through his 90% interest in Andre
Group. Therefore, Andre Pectin was a connected person of
the Company. The sale of pomace by the Company to Andre
Pectin as contemplated under the framework agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
under the framework agreement were only subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

* For identification purpose only
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Under the framework agreement, the pomace products shall
be sold to Andre Pectin in accordance with the following
pricing principles (and in the following order):

- price prescribed by the PRC government; or

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government; or

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, a price determined through
tender process or other available market price; or

- where none of the above is applicable or available, a
price to be agreed between the parties. The agreed
price shall be calculated based on the reasonable
costs incurred in providing the pomace products plus
reasonable profits. In setting the price, the parties may
refer to the prices for previous relevant transactions, if
available.

The annual transaction cap was determined based on
the historical amounts of pomace sold by the Group to
Andre Pectin, estimated potential growth of the Group, the
expected economic growth of the PRC, demand by Andre
Pectin and the pomace price will increase. The cap for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB22,000,000. The
actual sale of pomace by the Group to Andre Pectin for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB17,461,012 and is
subject to annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.
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On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a product
purchase framework agreement with President, whereby
President agrees to purchase and the Company agrees to
supply the Company’s products (including but not limited
to different kinds of juice) to regulate the product purchase
between the Group and President for the three financial years
ending 31 December 2014.

As at the date of signing the agreement, President holds
14.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Under the Listing Rules, President is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and thus is a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement between
the Group and President constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. As an applicable percentage
ratio in respect of the annual caps under the product
purchase framework agreement (other than the profit
ratio) exceeds 5% and the respective annual caps exceed
HK$10,000,000, the transactions contemplated under
the product purchase framework agreement constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under
Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
requirements of reporting, announcement, independent
Shareholders’ approval and annual review under the Listing
Rules.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, prices of
products to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the following principles in orders:

- the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, the market price (including
tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price between the parties.
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As President has developed new products and the sales of
such products are very promising, the demand by President
on the Company’s products (including but not limited to pear
juice) will substantially increase. Therefore, on 17 September
2012, the Company entered into a supplementary
agreement with President to revise the 2012, 2013 and 2014
annual caps to RMB100,000,000, RMB200,000,000 and
RMB270,000,000.

The actual sale of product by the Group to President for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB53,018,595 and is
subject to annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 26 August 2013, the Company has entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which Xinping Company has
agreed to provide services for installation for various kinds
of constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ending 31 December
2015.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Xinping Company is
wholly owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the wife of Mr. Wang
An who is an executive Director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Under the Listing Rules, Xinping Company
is an associate of Mr. Wang An and thus is a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Since
the applicable percentage ratios for the highest proposed
annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2015 for the continuing connected transactions under
the framework agreement are more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, in accordance with Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules, the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Rules14A.45 to 14A.47
of the Listing Rules and are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.
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Under the framework agreement, prices of services to be
provided by Xinping Company shall be determined according
to the following principles in orders:

- the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, the market price (including
tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price.

As the Group intends to establish and upgrade the
production lines for pear juice concentrate and various juice
concentrates, and also to construct new buildings for the
future business development of the Group, the needs for
services for installation for various kinds of constructions and
indoor and outdoor decoration will substantially increase.
Therefore, the Board expects the annual caps under
the framework agreement for each of the three financial
years ending 31 December 2015 will be RMB10,000,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB10,000,000, respectively.

The actual consumption of service by the Group from Xinping
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
RMB108,500 and is subject to annual review requirement
under the Listing Rules.

All the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions had been conducted on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those
available to independent third parties under the prevailing local
market conditions and were entered into the Group’s ordinary and
usual course of business, and were fair and reasonable and in the
best interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have confirmed in a letter to the Board to the following effect with
respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Company
that such transactions:

(i) have received approval from the Board;

(i) were conducted in accordance to the pricing policy;
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@iy  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(v) have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 disclosed in the relevant
announcement.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note VI to the
Financial Statements. Some of these related party transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2013.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were (a) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
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or as

otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the directors of

the C

ompany as referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

were as follows:

Name of Class of Number of
Directors Shares shares held Capacity
BEfE BRI FrERO#E &t
Wang An Domestic 118,810,501 (L) Interest of controlled
(Note 1) Shares corporations (Note 2)
% mER 118810501 (R)  RiHAERR (H:k2)
(1) 65,779,459 (1) Interest of Spouse
(Note 2)
65,779,459 (%) ALfEER (hr2)
H Shares 1,708,500 (L) Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 3)
HIR 1708500(%)  RiEH)EERER (f5E3)
21,434,880 (L) Interest of Spouse (Note 3)
21,434,880 (&) ALiB#s (Frr3)
Liu Tsung-Yi H Shares 195,400 (1) Beneficial owner
RE HiR 195,400 (&) ERHEAA

Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

1)

As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 44,151,961 Domestic Shares and 1,708,500 H Shares,
representing 10.80% and 0.42% interests in the total issued share
capital of the Company, respectively; (b) 90% interest in Shandong
Andre Group Co., Ltd.*(IUERZEFEEAERAR), which held
74,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing 18.25% interest in
the total issued share capital of the Company; and (c) Ms. Zhang
Shaoxia, the wife of Mr. Wang An, who indirectly held 60% of the
issued share capital of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in
turn held 65,779,459 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
16.08% of the total issued share capital of the Company and
directly held the entire issued share capital of Hongan International
Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held 21,434,880 H Shares,
representing approximately 5.24% of the total issued share capital of
the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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(2)  Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings
Limited, Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (LI ZEFEB AR A
A]) and interest of his spouse in Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd..

Q) (@ The long position in 1,708,500 H Shares was held by China
Pingan Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Wang An was deemed to
be interested in these H Shares through his 90% interest in China
Pingan Investment Holdings Limited; and (b) the long position in
21,434,880 H Shares was held by Hongan International Investment
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these H
Shares as Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the wife of Mr. Wang, directly held the
entire issued share capital of Hongan International Investment Co.,
Ltd..

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Number of
shareholders Class of shares shares held Capacity
RR#t% R ER FrsRO#AE a6
China Pingan Investment Domestic 44,151,961 ()  Beneficial owner
Holdings Limited Shares (Note 1) EnBBA

NER 44,151,961 (K)

(HrE1)
H Shares 1,708,500 (L)  Beneficial owner

HEE  1,708500(K) ERBAA

*  For identification purpose only
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Approximate Approximate
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Interest HERER/ HEBRA
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Name of
shareholders

RREH

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.”
(WRZEHNEEERAT)

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

B-ERNERAT

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited

Norges Bank

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
SHmERA g

JP Morgan Chase & Co.

* For identification purpose only
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HE&
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Hix

H Shares
Hix
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Number of
shares held

FRRGHE

74658540 (L)
(Note 2)
74,658,540 (&)
GiED)

65,779,459 (L)
(Note 3)
65,779,459 (%)
GiER)

63,746,040 (1)
(Note 4)
63,746,040(%)
GED

237,000 ()
237,000(%)

12,000,000 (1)

(Note 7)
12,000,000 (£ )
(BzET7)

12,336,000 (1)
12,336,000( &)

21,340,000 (1)

Capacity
af

Beneficial owner

ERBEA

Beneficial owner

ERBEA

Interests of
controlled
corporations
(Note 5)
RiEsEERER
(Hfts)
Beneficial owner
(Note 6)
EnBAA
(Fzte)

Interests of
controlled
corporations

SEnEERR

Beneficial owner

ERBEA

Beneficial owner

(Note 8) EnBAA
21,340,000 (k)
B
12,390,500 (L) Custodian
12,390,500 (%) corporation/
approved
12,390,500 (P) lending agent
(Note 9) EEEE/
12,300,000(f8)  HAEEHARA
(Frx9)
TRHOBRAR

Type of
Interest

REEE

Corporate
AT

Corporate
A

Corporate
AT

Corporate
AL

Corporate
AL

Corporate

N

Corporate
AT

Corporate
AL

* O ERES

Approximate
percentage of
Domestic Shares/
H Shares
BiEnER/
HREZ L

29.80% () (&)

26.26% () (&)

25.44% () (&)

0.15% (L) (&)

7.57% (L) (&)

7.79% (L) (K)

13.47% (1) (K)

7.82% (L) (K)

7.82% (P) (f£)

|

e e

Approximate
percentage of
total share
capital
DEBRA
BAl

18.25% () (&)

16.08% () (&)

15.59% () (&)

005% (1)(£)

2.93% () (%)

3.02% () (&)

5.22% (L)(K)

3.03% (&)

3.03% P) (&)



Name of Number of
shareholders Class of shares shares held
BRES R &R FiERHEE
HSBC Global Asset Management H Shares 11,312,500 (1)

(Hong Kong) Limited (Formerly HE 11,312,500(F)
known as HSBC Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited)
HSBC Global Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (285
HSBC Investments

(Hong Kong) Limited)

Hongan International Investment H Shares
Co. Ltd. Hi
ARERRARRAA

21,434,880 (1)
21,434,830(F)

Zhang Shaoxia Domestic Shares 65,779,459 ()
RAE MER 65779459 (%)
118,810,501()

118,810,501 (&)

H Shares 21,434,880 (1)

HEE 21,434,880 (E)

1,708,500
1,708,500(%)

Capacity
af

Investment

manager
REEE

Beneficial owner

BRBAA

Interest of
controlled
corporations
(Note 10)
RiEsEERER
(Ft3E10)

Interest of spouse
(Note 10)
iBER
(&t 10)

Interest of
controlled
corporations
(Note 11)
REH AR ER
(BitzE11)

Interest of spouse
(Note 11)
(i da
(FzE11)

Type of
Interest

REEE

Corporate
AL

Corporate
A7

Personal
HA

Personal
HA

Personal
HA

Personal
fHA

Approximate
percentage of
Domestic Shares/
H Shares
BiEnER/
HRED L

7.14% (1) (K)

1353% (&)

26.26% (L) §)

47.42% (&)

13.53% (1) (&)

1.08% (U(E)
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Approximate
percentage of
total share
capital
HiLERK
BAl

277% ()(K)

5.24% (L)(&)

16.08% (UI(E)

29.05% (L) (&)

5.24% (L[ &)

042% (L)(§)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position. The letter “P” denotes interests in a
lending pool.

(1) Mr. Wang An, a Director of the Company, was deemed to be
interested in these Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in
China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited.

2) Mr. Wang An, a Director of the Company, was deemed to be
interested in these Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (1L ZEF|EBERAF]) .

(8)  The long position in 65,779,459 Domestic Shares was directly
held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. Based on the information
provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan Interinational
Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Zhang ShaoXia are deemed to be
interested in these 65,779,459 Domestic Shares.

(4)  The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. (fi—1EBRMHAR AR,
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (AK#&&—DERRARA
&]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM#Z—1Z=BFRAF]), which held
21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

5) Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises Corp.
(B—DERMHBABRAR) was deemed to be interested in such
63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic Shares
were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. (#i—1ERMHBER AT, of which 42,418,360
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 10.37% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, were held directly by Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (K#&&#—DERRARA
7)) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
5.21% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were held
directly by Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BN —1%
BRATD.

(6)  These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China Holdings
Ltd.

(7)  According to the public information available on the website of the
Stock Exchange, Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited was a 100%

controlled corporation of Liu Yang; Liu Yang was deemed to be
interested in such 12,000,000 H Shares.

* For identification purpose only
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(10)

(1)

After the capitalization issue of shares by the Company in 2007, the
number of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd. was adjusted from
97,000,000 H shares to 213,400,000 H shares. Upon the share
consolidation of the Company in January 2013, the number of H
Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd was further adjusted to 21,340,000
H Shares.

According to the public information available on the website of the
Stock Exchange, these H Shares were held directly by JP Morgan
Chase Bank N.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary of JP Morgan Chase &
Co..

Ms. Zhang Shaoxia indirectly held 60% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Domestic Shares. 118,810,501 Domestic Shares were held by Mr.
Wang An, the husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang
Shaoxia was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Ms. Zhang Shaoxia directly held the entire issued share capital
of Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
21,434,880 H Shares. 1,708,500 H Shares were held by Mr. Wang
An, the husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia
was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholder of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group or has or may have any other
conflicts of the interest with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

B8 ARAR-ZZTEFRAHBBERAER
REEITERNLETER  ZHDEKAE
A AQ R H A H 97,000,000 A%
2 5213,400,0000% - —E—=%—AH
KARBMDEOHE  ZHYEGKA L
HHHREHE B AREA21,340,000 % -

© IREBEEMBIRM ARER - ZHRK
i JP Morgan Chase & Co. 2 —X &2 &Mt
B /A 7]JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. B
F5E o

(10) SREREEZ LR A Donghua Fruit Industry
Co., Ltd. 60% 2 317X ZA - il Donghua
Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. ¥ 65,779,459 &
NER  TRAE(RBELLZER)FH
£118,810,501 RN & ik - FILRAE R
TR B LR s

(1) RARELTEHEEALZHEEEEERA
AIREEBITRA  ARBEFIREARA
A¥EHE 21,434,880 IR HA% , & %4 (BRAR
B+ 2 EE) 351,708,500 HA%
I IRAAE L T WARVEE A I H IR -

BRER

ARBEFHEBRBRRABESEZHE
AEER EHRA) BEMEM B KA
ERKERKEXEHLRRFRBTHES
T TEARREELS KA EEEF

s -
BHAMATRISRE

REBEEZ-_ZE—=F+_A=+—HIL&E
A BEBEARRAIBHNAREREREAR
RIEEMMN ARFRE—EBRE TR
HEASIERAR A RIS E -
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Practices and Procedures of the Board of
Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard
was sent to each Director two months before the date of the
Board meeting to approve the Company’s 2013 annual results,
with a reminder that the Directors cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to
notify the Chairman of the Company and receive a dated
acknowledgement in writing before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman of
the Company himself, he must notify the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and receive a dated acknowledgement in writing before
any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established an Audit and Review Committee
with written terms of reference based on the guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The primary duties of the Audit and Review
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control of the Group, ensuring compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and
Review Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Gong Fan, who is the chairman of the Audit and
Review Committee, Chow Kam Hung and Li Tong Ning.

During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Audit and Review
Committee held two meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) shall retire and a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained

unchanged.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014

* For identification purpose only
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To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of
the Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work seriously
and with diligence to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the vyear, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association of the
Company, and in the interests of its shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be proposed
by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. We are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief
executive officer and other senior management of the Company
are able to strictly observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently,
to exercise their authority faithfully in the best interests of
the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. The operation is becoming more
regulated and the internal control is becoming more perfect. The
transactions between the Company and connected parties are
in the interests of the shareholders as a whole and under fair and
reasonable price.

* For identification purpose only
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Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and senior
management staff had been found to have abused their authority,
damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon the
interests of its shareholders and employees. None of them was
found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2013 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Xu Jiang

19 March 2014

* For identification purpose only
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KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 1400462

All Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet as
at 31 December 2013, the consolidated income statement and
income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and
cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements. This
responsibility includes: (1) preparing these financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China, and fairly presenting them; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control which is necessary to enable that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider interal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position and financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated financial performance and financial performance
and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Lei Jiang
Zhao Ying
Beijing, China

19 March 2014
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EHEERER

At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2013412 A31H

(£ E - ARKTT)

2013 2012
Note BitEE —E—=% —T—C—F
ASSETS =E
Current assets: MBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EBES V.1 A1 437,065,445 82,536,225
Financial assets at fair value AR EBEFER
through profit or loss HEB AEHER
WemEE V.2 .2 - 2,028,000
Accounts receivable JEURBR TR V.3 73 150,402,183 122,772,712
Prepayments TR 5E V.4 B4 31,863,443 4,576,829
Other receivables H A K V.5 -5 975,712 8,837,463
Inventories FE V.6 -6 874,700,484 934,918,862
Other current assets Hinmeh & &= V.7 -7 88,282,300 93,959,854
Total current assets MEEEAR 1,583,289,567  1,249,629,945
Non-current assets: FRBEE
Long-term equity investments REIRAEIRE V.8 f-8 57,569,260 120,875,515
Fixed assets EEEE V.9 -9 714,661,263 736,045,676
Construction in progress FEETRE V.10 A 10 1,934,652 3,004,976
Intangible assets B AE Vi1 A1 79,119,390 86,294,864
Goodwill (kS V12 E 12 5,586,976 5,586,976
Deferred tax assets BEFTISTHEE V.18 A 13 - 1,057,961
Total non-current assets FEMENEESET 858,871,541 952,865,968
Total assets BEMET 2,442,161,108  2,202,495,913

TIEN 5585 B 2 F 236 A IS HKRMER
REATEERIR VAR D ©

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial
statements.
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(SHE - ARKET)
2013 2012
Note B s —E—=f —=——F
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES AEMERES
Current liabilities: MEELE
Short-term loans 52 HAfE R V.15  #-15 672,259,392 297,137,500
Accounts payable FERTERSR V.16 A 16 135,195,416 81,285,430
Advances from customers TEUGRIA V17 & 17 1,519,209 1,105,004
Employee benefits payable JEA<F B8 T2 P V.18 H 18 15,889,032 23,410,854
Taxes payable JER & V.19 EF 19 31,464,766 30,556,025
Dividends payable FERT AR V20 20 - 1,545,319
Other payables H T 5K V21t AH-21 26,678,703 163,246,681
Non-current liabilities —FRNEH8
due within one year EMBEE V22 h22 22,863,375 151,427,500
Total current liabilities RBBESS 905,869,893 749,714,313
Non-current liabilities: IERBAE
Long-term loans RHEBER V.23 A 23 - 23,570,625
Long-term payables RIS 5K V.24 H 24 655,420 655,420
Total non-current liabilities EMEBERR 655,420 24,226,045
Total liabilities BEAR 906,525,313 773,940,358
Equity: PR i
Share capital &N V.25 H 25 408,988,000 408,988,000
Capital reserve BARRNIE V.26 H 26 112,395,766 112,395,766
Surplus reserve oo N v2r H&-27 170,101,631 167,018,456
Retained earnings RO EEFE V.28 H 28 844,150,398 740,153,333

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

PR ER AR

BEMBRER R

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.

1,535,635,795

1,428,555,655

2,442,161,108

2,202,495,913

HHBEHRRER T NF=ATHBEEEESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREA ¢ % FEGFIEEBRA : ES 0
Chief Accountant: LiLei

GHEEEEA T

TIEN F85 A = £ 236 NI EHRKRM R
RE SRR ANAERED D ©

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial
statements.
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EERER

At 31 December 2013

2013124318
(2HE : ARK¥T)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash at bank and on hand

Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Dividends receivable
Other receivables
Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Long-term equity investments

Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE

MEEE -
BE¥ES
JEARARR
AR
FEARRRH
H At UK
e
HibmshEE

MEEERT

FRBEE
REBERE
ElEBE
HETIE
B EE
EEFISHEE

Note

X1

Xl.2

XI.3

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.
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2013 2012

B s =% —E——F
432,732,849 70,542,008

F=-1 132,203,501 73,914,872
27,100,561 543,528

196,783,956 196,783,956

F=-2 244,551,905 381,991,495
171,351,318 166,885,525

58,087,647 49,157,068
1,262,811,737 939,818,452

+—-3 544,795,343 607,905,723
135,872,733 133,872,461

66,355 =

29,422,192 30,783,431

= 1,057,961

710,156,623 773,619,576

1,972,968,360

1,713,438,028

TIEN 5585 B 2 F 236 A IS HKRMER

REATEERIR VAR D ©



EEBEE
At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yua?}j.
20134 12 1
(2FEEW - AR¥T)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Advances from customers
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Dividends payable
Other payables
Non-current liabilities due
within one year

Total current liabilities

Non-current assets:
Long-term loans

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity:

Share capital

Capital reserve

Surplus reserve

Retained earnings

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

RAMERES

MENRIR -
FEERRER
FETHRSK
FAURIR
JE AT B T35 A
BRHE
JEAT BRI
HA MR
—FREIHH

FRBARE

ROEFH
BRMEAH

BEMB RS AT

ﬁ!l:

Note L)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.
B mAER—_E—ME=ATNLAEEEgHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An
EERRA %

Chief Accountant: LiLei
SEHEEAEA ¢ =

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

Chief Financial Officer:
FESHIIEASA

Wang Yan Hui
FHE

2013 2012
—E-=F —=——F
572,259,392 157,137,500
203,188,093 110,435,702
933,292 500,242
1,778,254 1,541,014

= 2,041,650

= 1,545,319
138,802,253 243,421,628
22,863,375 151,427,500
939,824,659 668,050,555
- 23,570,625

= 23,570,625
939,824,659 691,621,180
408,988,000 408,988,000
138,638,464 138,638,464
103,144,993 100,061,818
382,372,244 374,128,566

1,033,143,701

1,021,816,848

1,972,968,360

1,713,438,028
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BHRNER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20134
(£ E - ARKTT)

| Operating income

Il Less: Operating costs "

Business taxes and surcharges
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative
expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Add: Losses from changes
in fair value
Investment income
Including: Share of profit from
an associate and
a joint venture

Il Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Including: Gains on
disposal of
non-current
assets
Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: Losses from
disposal of
non-current
assets

IV Profit before income tax -

Less: Income tax expenses

V Net profit for the year h-

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

VI Earnings per share: 7N
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Note
— EERA V.29
W EERAR V.29
EETS KM V.30
HEEHR V.31
EBRER V.32
BIT5 B A V.33
BERBEREX V.34
m: AREEE V.35
=ES
KEW = V.36
Hep : HEENF]
MEERF
RIEE W=
i)
o EHEIMNIA V.37
Heb o JEREEE
BRE WS
B EEINT V.38
Heb : JEREEE
BEBKX
IRk V.44
B TSR ER V.39

beglVE

BERESRRIMEEENE
DEIRIBR

- ERRURES
(=) BERERKE V.43
(D) HEeRks V.43

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

76 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

RELHZEFNRTROBRAF

P EE

29
29
+ 30
+ 31
+ 32

=al= = = =

f 33
+ 34
35

H

2013 2012
—E-CF —TE——F
893,447,926 1,225,525,090
713,404,255 972,630,524
5,762,938 6,506,237
55,532,775 64,585,698
51,322,110 52,741,568
29,425,143 32,455,744
- 350,417

- (1,870,634)
80,195,181 12,805,574
5,208,958 9,494,483
118,195,886 107,189,842
9,992,486 6,002,926
6,935,530 403,026
133,566 358,242
98,224 110,536
128,054,806 112,839,526
525,166 1,933,318
127,529,640 110,906,208
127,529,640 110,906,208
0.312 0.267

0.312 0.267

TIEN 5585 B 2 F 236 A IS HKRMER
REATEERIR VAR D ©



3 ;
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

013X
(HELL : ARHTT)

2013 2012
Note PifaE —2-=5 —T—F
VIl Other comprehensive income + - Hitnira e
for the year - =
VIl Total comprehensive N xR lEsasE
income for the year 127,529,640 110,906,208
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company FENEARMEER
el R 127,529,640 110,906,208
Non-controlling interests BERIVBRRNGE
Wi tagE - -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.
W BHRERER_ZE—OE=A+NBEEESSIAE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer:  Wang Yan Hui
EERERA T% IEel THEREA :  THE

Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BIBEEA TR

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial ISR 585 B E 5236 B B STk Mzt A
statements. R HRRAERE D °
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bR

20134
(LRBEM - A

| Operating income

B#T)

Il Less: Operating costs
Business taxes and surcharges
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative

expenses

Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Add: Investment income

Including: Share of profit from

Il Operating profit
Add: Non-operati

an associate and a
joint venture

ng income

Including: Gains on disposal

of non-current assets

Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: Losses from disposal

of non-current assets

IV Profit before income tax
Less: Income tax expenses

V/ Net profit for the year
VI Other comprehensive income

for the year

VIl Total comprehensive income

for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

— BRBA

~
-

FH

VR BN

2EHE LM
HEEM
ERER

MBER

BERERX
s wE K

Hep : HERA)

N

KA sk

-+ i)

IR+ 1N
He: ERBEE
2 E ek

W EEINH
Hep: FRBEE
EERK

- B

o SHER

Note

X.4
X.4

X.5

BisE
+—4
+—4
=5

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.
W BHREER_ZE—ME=A+NLBEEESSIE -

Legal Representative: Wang An

SEFREA T%
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SHWEREA TR

Chief Financial Officer:

TESFIERE

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

78 Yantai North Andre

Juice Co., Ltd.

RE T ZEFIR

FITROERAF

Wang Yan Hui
a0

2013 2012
—E—=%F —E-—F
577,767,279 619,524,398
528,737,306 545,967,529

3,729,953 3,024,011
34,215,198 29,764,132
24,349,178 18,703,014
23,602,216 26,371,731

= 350,417
79,696,358 6,349,775

2,187,800 5,766,389
42,829,786 1,693,339

3,099,939 4,322,721

763,328
47,427 56,985
47,426 =
45,882,298 5,959,075
14,106,045 1,270,760
31,776,253 4,688,315
31,776,253 4,688,315

TSN E 86 A = F 236 AT BEMAMEER
R TSR VAR B



| Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods
and rendering of services
Refund of taxes
Cash received relating to
other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and for employees

Cash paid for all types of taxes
Cash paid relating to other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

I Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash received from return on investments
Net cash received from disposal of
fixed assets and intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,
net of cash disposed of
Proceeds from disposal of equity interests
of an associate
Cash received relating to
other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for the purchase of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from
investing activities

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note HieE

BEEHELNRERE -

HEBm - 7REH
WRBRE
WEIMBERE
WEI A b LR E
BEMRE

REEDRBRANG

BERM  BXSH
xR e
IHGEBINRART
xR e
XAMBERE
XHMEE RS
BEMRE

REEHRETRL NGt

REEPELR
BEREFR

VA5(1)  F - 45(1)

V.45(2)

- 450)

V46(1)  E - 46(1)

REERPELNRTRE -

WERRABEER
HEE AEHRRN
TREERZNRE

MERBURMBZINRS

REETEENENBEM
KBRS FE

RE AR
ReFR

RERE DRI
e lob e

W3 At R AR E
BENRSE

RERDRERANG

BENARBEER
A28 A\ EHREN
EREEIRE

RRETEENEVAE
MBS

RERDRERA/ NG

REEYELR
BEREFR

V4BQR) T 4602)

V.45Q3) £ 45(9)

BHF R

(ERFEN - ARKETT)

2013 2012
—Z-ZF —T——F
968,797,755 1,367,219,923
69,025,657 87,973,485
12,233,219 15,497,054
1,050,056,631 1,470,690,462
(728,917,961) (1,302,501,208)
(37,940,721) (47,409,014)
(33,936,646) (30,187,163)
(81,310,679) (88,865,181)

(882,106,007) (1,468,962,566)
167,950,624 1,727,896
3,584,683,820 3,263,352,112
6,750,000 5,940,000
47,407,967 6,503,714

- 18,315,275

135,966,250 =
1,900,468 259,423
3,776,708,505 3,294,370,524
(3,581,870,634) (3,142,440,000)
(39,028,977) (39,325,599
(3,620,899,611) (3,181,765,599)
155,808,894 112,604,925

RS MARANAERED D ©
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EHRETRER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20134
(£ E - ARKTT)

[Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from

related party borrowings
Cash received relating to other
financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash repayments of bank borrowings
Cash paid for dividends
Cash paid for interest
Cash repayments of borrowings from
related parties
Cash paid for purchase of own shares
Cash paid relating to other
financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities

|V Effect of foreign currency
exchange rate changes

V Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

= EERHELENRERE

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂmﬁ%
ESERE A B
Lhelliopisa
WE| E A BEEEE)
BBMRS

EREPHESRANG

ERTERAXMNRE
BRI MRS
RN S MRS
ERB S ERANRE

EREARRMAXNHRS
IR EMEEEEE
BENRE

ERERPR MM NG

EHEPELN
REREFR

- EXRBURD R

ReEENNTE

BeRAEEEY

g/ (i) 8

e EPRERRE
SENHE

N ERAERAEF

{EMERE

HHBEHRRER - E—NF=ATHhBEEESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An
SEEREA - __Fr

Chief Accountant: LiLei
FETHEEEA T

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

Chief Financial Officer:
FESTLIEAEA

80 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. BAtHRENETRHERAT

Wang Yan Hui

2013 2012
—Z-ZF —T——F
854,613,889 905,530,786

- 140,739,571
28,284,813 -
882,898,702 1,046,270,357

(631,626,747)

(1,076,075,395)

(21,994,719) (20,449,400)
(28,883,261) (29,205,850)
(140,739,571) -
- (48,715,890)
(9,354,986) (28,284,813)
(832,509,284)  (1,202,731,848)
50,209,418 (156,461,491)
(599,889) (83,531)
373,450,047 (42,212,201)
54,251,412 96,463,613
427,710,459 54,251,412

TN F85 A = £ 236 A NI SRR MR
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| Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods
and rendering of services
Refund of taxes
Cash received relating to
other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and for employees

Cash paid for all types of taxes
Cash paid relating to
other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

I Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash received from retumn on investments
Net cash received from disposal of
fixed assets and intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal
of subsidiaries,
net of cash disposed of
Proceeds from disposal of equity
interests of an associate
Cash received relating to
other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for the purchase of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from investing activities

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

BEEHELNRTRE -

HEBm - ®RGH
YRS

WEIRHBRE

W R i TR E
BEMRE

RERDHRESRANG

BERR  BXSH
xR e
IHGEBINRART
xR e
XAHBER S

R A BT R E
BEMRE

REEDRERA/ NG

REEHELR
BEREFR

— REBDELNASRE

WEN A BEHEE
HE B AL DR
SRAENIINRS

MEREURMBZINRS

REETAENEBVAE
kI &8

REFRAMKE
MEEFB

BEBEATRE
Wl s
WEE B EREED
ERSS
FEEBRSTAN
MEL LA EEHES
AR A BN
SHAEXNHES

BRETEENEVEAE
B E

BERDRERA/ NG

REERPELNREREFH

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) |
20134
(BHEN - ARET)

2013 2012
Note HizE —Z-ZF —T——F
531,451,492 634,650,076

58,644,459 41,149,870

10,135,196 7,260,140

600,231,147 683,060,086

(410,877,048) (651,037,882)

(10,499,437) (8,091,789)

(12,772,428) (6,750,000)

(14,679,554) (13,744,361)

(448,828,467) (678,624,032)

X.61)  +—6(1) 151,402,680 4,436,054
3,580,765,488 3,234,640,000

6,075,000 5,400,000

10,264,949 50,171

= 20,000,000

135,966,250 =

1,137,231 154,370

3,734,208,918 3,260,244,541

(3,580,000,000) (3,136,856,614)

(18,840,875) (14,074,791)

(3,598,840,875) (3,150,931,405)

135,368,043 109,313,136

TIEN 5585 B &= F 236 A IS HKRMER
REATEERIR VAR R D ©
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BERER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20134

(BFHEM - AR¥T)

[l Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from

related party borrowings
Cash received relating to
other financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash repayments of bank borrowings
Cash paid for dividends
Cash paid for interest
Cash repayments of borrowings

from related parties
Cash paid for purchase of own shares
Cash paid relating to other

financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities

|V Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes

V/ Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Note

CBERRELNEHENE

BEERERI0RE
MSEB Y B RRE RS

REEMEEEEDEENAS

ELRPREMANG

ERRTERXNNRS
AERFZ R

ENHS MR

(BB TER
xR E
EEINS Gl AR
XANEMESEED
BEMRE

EEEDRBRA/ NG
BERDELNRS

MEFR

EXZHURT R
ReEENNTE

et

g/ (D)8 X602 +—6Q)
n: FRERRE

CEXRBEERAS

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.
BB RER_E—NF=A T hAEESSHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An

SEEREA T&
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SHMEREA:_ FTE

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

82 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. JB&dtHRERZE

Chief Financial Officer:

FEEHTHEEEA T U=

Wang Yan Hui

2013 2012
- S “BF
747,680,685 646,549,475
- 140,739,571
28,284,813 -
775,965,498 787,289,046
(484,693,543) (817,378,913)
(21,994,720) (20,449,400)
(24,288,803) (21,515,623)
(140,739,571) -
- (48,715,890)
(9,354,986) (28,284,813)
(681,071,623) (936,344,639)
94,893,875 (149,055,593)
(543,930) (78,949)
381,120,668 (35,385,352)
42,257,195 77,642,547
423,377,863 42,257,195

REATEERR VAR D ©

FITROERAF
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Balance at 1 January 2012
Changes in equity for the year
1. Net profitfor the year
2. Appropriation of profits
~ Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Appropriation for staff
honus and welfare fund
- Distributions to shareholders
- Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2012

Balance at 1 January 2013
Changes in equty for the year
1. Net proft for the year
2. Appropriation of profits
— Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2013

Note

N12%1F1BEHE
KELRREEE
-1 5HE
-2 HEAR V.28
~RBERLE
-REBTEBR
5
~HREOAR
-DERE

N12E12A31 Ao

01351 F1BEE
FEEREYEE
-1 5
-2 HEAR V.28
—RhEBDE
~HRENAR

N13E12A31 HAE

Aalrenolc
PaN 4= =
SOIRRERDE
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201342
(HEE - ARETT)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RERBLFRAEER
Share Capital Surplus Retained
capital reserve reserve earnings Total
&% B8 *E BEea
i k% O R HE ait
426553600 143546066 195,010,182 663,563,068 1,388,672,906
- - - 110906208 110,906,208
28
= - 12008274 (12,008,274 =
- - - (1898269 (1,898,269
- - - (204494000 (20,449,400)
(17,565,600 (31,150,290} - - (88715890
408,983,000 112395766 167018456 740,153,333  1,426,555,555
408,988,000  112,395766 167018456 740,153,333 1,428,555,555
- - - 127529640 127,529,640
28
- - 3083175 (3,083,175) -
- - - (20449400)  (20,449,400)
408,988,000  112,395766 170,101,631 844,150,398 1,535,635,795

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.

MM BHRRER T HFE=A+NLAREFTSIE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer:

SEEREA T& FTEEHTEREA
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SHMEREA:_ FTE

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial
statements.

Wang Yan Hui
FUE

TN 85 A = £ 236 A NI SRR MR
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20134
(LRBEN - ARET)

Balance at 1 January 2012
Changes in equity for the year
1. Net profit for the year
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholders
- Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2012

Balance at 1 January 2013
Changes in equity for the year
1. Net profit for the year
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2013

REREZSEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201241 1 A
NEERESSE
1. R
2 FEAE
~ROBHBAE
~HRENDE
—BERZ

2012612 A 31 BEaeE

201341 A1 B3

TEEREESE

1378

2. FIENE
—RIOEBAE
—HRRNHE

2013412 A 31 BEaeE

Share Capital Surplus Retained
Capital Reserve reserve earnings Total
BRiER
BE  ®ELR BBROR  XOENE ait
426,553,600 169,788,754 99,592,986 390,358,483 1,086,293,823
- - - 4688315 4,688,315
- - 468,832 (468,832) -
- - - (20,449,400) (20,449,400)
(17,565,600)  (31,150,290) - - (48,715,890)
408,988,000 138,638,464 100,061,818 374,128,566 1,021,816,848
408,988,000 138,638,464 100,061,818 374,128,566 1,021,816,848
- - - 31,776,253 31,776,253
- - 3083175  (3,083,175) -
- - - (20,449,400) (20,449,400)
408,988,000 138,638,464 103,144,993 382,372,244 1,033,143,701

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.

HHBERRER - E—NF=ATHhBEEEGHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An

SEFREA T%
Chief Accountant: LiLei
SHBEEA i

Chief Financial Officer:

FTESHIEEEA

The notes on pages 85 to 236 form part of these financial

statements.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&EdHZEFRTRAOERLAE

Wang Yan Hui
a0
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Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (the “Company”),
was formerly named Yantai North Andre Juice Company
Limited which was established at Yantai on 30 March 1996.
Headquarter of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong
Province.

As approved by the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China (former Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation), the Company changed its legality to
a joint stock limited company on 14 June 2001, and changed
its name to Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited. On
26 June 2001, the Company obtained the business license for
enterprise legal person (registration number Qi Gu Lu Zong Fu
Zi No. 003936 (1th% & 422]5 003936 5% ) and the Company’s
registered capital was RMB113,880,000, representing
113,880,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a shareholders’ meeting on
14 September 2002 and approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company was approved to increase its share
capital to a maximum of RMB157,580,000 after the listing of
the Company’s H shares on Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 17 April 2003,
the Company issued 38,000,000 H shares with a par value of
RMB1.00 each, which representing 25% of total shares of the
Company after the issue at a price of HKD3.70 per H share
by placing. The registered capital of the Company changed to
RMB151,880,000 after the issue.

LFEFHER

et s @R RARMARAR (M
TR AR RARE LT REFR
RABRAA - RAFR1996F 3 A
S0 REMAE KL + REBAIANILRE R

BT e

2001 F6 A14AKEHREARLMEA
EEEH(REIINE SZEESESD)
B RARBRBETFARMERAD
Al AREEFE BRI RERNRT
D ABERAR o A E 2001446 A

003936 SR A A B EHR - it E
A ARA113,880,0007T © #T& R
113,880,000 % © B EEA R 1.00
775 o

RIE2002F9 A14 B BT E K
RN BT R 35 a9 HE ST
A B R EE AR R R HR R B A
ERZGABERAFAIZERAE LT
% BEEAENESTSAARE
157,580,0007T ° AN )R 2003 4 A
17 BBAREETHAI - LERE
#3.70 TTHYE S 1T T 38,000,000 A%
FRXEEARE1.007THIH @ (31T
BADRRODEERN25% BT
MEAREE 5 AR 151,880,000 °
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86 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRESIRBS) - 2EELBNRET)

Company status (cont’d)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
and the class meetings of the holders of the H shares and
Promoter shares of the Company on 24 October 2003
and approvals from relevant government authorities, every
Promoter share and H share with a par value of RMB1.00
in the share capital of the Company was subdivided into
ten Promoter shares and ten H shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each, respectively (the “share subdivision”) with
effect from 1 December 2003. The total number of shares
changed to 1,518,800,000 shares and the registered capital
of the Company remained at RMB151,880,000 after the share
subdivision.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
and the class meetings of the holders of the H shares and
Promoter shares of the Company on 2 June 2004 and
approvals from relevant government authorities, the Company
was authorised to issue not less than 152,000,000 and not
more than 304,000,000 new H Shares. On 14 July 2004,
the Company issued 178,500,000 new H shares with a
par value of RMBO0.10 each, at a price of HKD0.80 per H
share by placing. The total number of shares increased from
1,518,800,000 shares to 1,697,300,000 shares with a par
value of RMB0.10 each and the Company’s registered capital
changed to RMB169,730,000 after the issue.

Pursuant to a general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company to issue and allot share, which was passed
at a special shareholders’ meeting on 17 May 2005, the
Company issued 111,580,000 new H shares with a par
value of RMBO0.10 each after the issue at a price of HKDO.70
per H share by placing on 14 March 2006. The total
number of shares increased from 1,697,300,000 shares
to 1,808,880,000 shares with a par value of RMBO0.10
each and the Company’s registered capital changed to
RMB180,888,000 after the issue.
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Company status (cont’d)

Pursuant to a general mandate to the directors of the
Company to issue and allot share which was passed at a
special shareholders’ meeting on 28 May 2007, the Company
issued 130,000,000 new H shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each, at a price of HKD1.18 per H share by placing
on 16 July 2007. The total number of shares increased from
1,808,880,000 shares to 1,938,880,000 shares with a par
value of RMBO0.10 each and the Company’s registered capital
changed to RMB193,888,000 after the issue.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
and the class meetings of the holders of the H shares and
Promoter shares of the Company on 25 October 2007 and
approvals from relevant government authorities, an amount of
RMB232,665,600 standing to the credit of capital reserves-
the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
960,096,000 H shares and 1,366,560,000 Domestic shares
of RMBO0.10 each which were allotted and distributed as
fully paid to existing shareholders in the proportion of six
capitalisation shares for every five existing shares then held
on 19 November 2007. The total number of shares increased
from 1,938,880,000 shares to 4,265,536,000 shares with a
par value of RMBO0.10 each and the Company’s registered
capital changed to RMB426,553,600 after the issue.

As approved by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Company’s listed H Shares in the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
has been changed to list on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 19 January 2011.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Company status (cont’d)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 28 June
2011 and approvals from relevant government authorities,
the Company repurchased 175,656,000 shares of its own
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
at a cash consideration of HKD59,399,285 (equivalent to
RMB48,715,890) from 20 February 2012 to 31 May 2012.
The repurchased shares were cancelled and the share
capital of the Company was reduced by the par value of
the cancelled share. The total number of shares decreased
from 4,265,536,000 shares to 4,089,880,000 shares with a
par value of RMB0.10 each and the Company’s registered
capital changed to RMB408,988,000 after the share capital
reduction.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general meeting
and the class meetings of the holders of the H shares and
Promoter shares of the Company on 26 June 2012 and
approvals from relevant government authorities, the Company
consolidated every ten shares with a par value of RMB0.10
each into one consolidated share with a par value of RMB1.00
on 28 January 2013. The total number of shares changed
from 4,089,880,000 shares to 408,988,000 shares with a par
value of RMB1.00 each and the Company’s registered capital
remained at RMB408,988,000 after the share consolidation.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of condensed juice, pulp, apple essence, pomace and
related products.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

1 Basis of preparation

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated& g
(BRAFI) - 2EBBARKT)

= AFEERHBRAH

1 MBHROERER

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis KA RIAFEL & A ER R TS

of going concern.

2 Statement of compliance

e

2 EECFEETERNER

The financial statements comply with the requirements K ERERGE P EARLMBG
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued ERER (LA TN ESTRI BA e Es ) ) A
by the Ministry of Finance (MOF) of the People’s Republic HSERINESR BT - B
of China (PRC) and present truly and completely the KR T AR 2013F 12 A 31 HEY
consolidated financial position and financial position of the B OF B A AR OR A0 B A AR R ~ 2013
Company as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated FEMEHCERNRMEERKRR
financial performance and financial performance and the EHBEEREMNBFESRE °

consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company

for the year then ended.

3 Accounting period

3 E&HE

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 etEEARAE1A1BEE 124
December. 31HLE -
4 Functional currency 4 EERAN®E

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and AARMEIRAIERBARE - &
these financial statements are presented in Renminbi. R ERERFEANEEAARE o
The Company translates the financial statements of AAFRED FAREAARR AR
subsidiaries from their respective functional currencies MR AL AN B HEAE R R IR ANGL
into the Company’s functional currency (see Note 11.8) if B ARRREREV SRR FEE
the subsidiaries’ functional currencies are not the same as TN B INE B TSR R ETT THT

that of the Company.

H(2RME=-8)°

—Z—=#%% Annual Report 2013 89




PR R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

5 Accounting treatments for a business combination
involving enterprises under and not under common
control
(1) Business combinations involving enterprises under

common control

A business combination involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. The assets and liabilities obtained are
measured at the carrying amounts as recorded by
the enterprise being combined at the combination
date. The difference between the carrying amount
of the net assets obtained and the carrying amount
of consideration paid for the combination (or the
total par value of shares issued) is adjusted to
share premium (or capital premium) in the capital
reserve. If the balance of share premium (or capital
premium) is insufficient, any excess is adjusted to
retained earnings. Any costs directly attributable to
the combination are recognised in profit or loss for
the current period when occurred. The combination
date is the date on which one combining enterprise
effectively obtains control of the other combining
enterprises.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSO BB BARET)

Il Significant accounting policies and Z AFEESHBREME &
accounting estimates (cont’d) ()

5 Accounting treatments for a business combination 5 BE—#ZHTHMER—ZHTEE
involving enterprises under and not under common EONETRER X (F)
control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving enterprises not under ©2) FER—ZEH TR A B

common control

A business combination involving enterprises not
under common control is a business combination
in which all of the combining enterprises are not
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the business combination. Where
1) the aggregate of the fair value at the acquisition
date of assets transferred (including the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by
the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree,
exceeds 2) the acquirer’s interest in the fair value at
the acquisition date of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised as goodwill (see
Note I.17). Where 1) is less than 2), the difference
is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
The costs of the issuance of equity or debt securities
as a part of the consideration paid for the acquisition
are included as a part of initial recognition amount
of the equity or debt securities. Other acquisition-
related costs arising from the business combination
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred. The difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred is recognised in profit or loss. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, if satisfying the recognition criteria, are
recognised by the Group at their fair value at the
acquisition date. The acquisition date is the date on
which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the
acquiree.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRESIRBS) - 2EELBNRET)

Il Significant accounting policies and AT EEEEBURME &S
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)

6 SOHMBHBRNERTZE

6 Consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group
controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered. The financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial
statements of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated financial statements as if the combination
had occurred at the date that the ultimate controlling
party first obtained control. The opening balances and
the comparative figures of the consolidated financial
statements are also restated. In the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, the subsidiary’s
assets and liabilities based on their carrying amounts are
included in the consolidated balance sheet, and financial
performance is included in the consolidated income
statement, respectively, from the date that the ultimate
parent company of the Company obtains the control of
the subsidiary to be consolidated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, base on the fair value of those
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

For a business combination involving enterprises not
under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition date. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
is recognised as investment income for the current
period; the amount recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to the previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is reclassified as investment income for the
current period.

Where the Company acquires a non-controlling interest
from a subsidiary’s non-controlling shareholders or
disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without
a change in control, the difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
amount of the consideration paid or received is adjusted
to the capital reserve (share premium) in the consolidated
balance sheet. If the credit balance of capital reserve
(share premium) is insufficient, any excess is adjusted to
retained earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the
disposal of a portion of an equity investment, the Group
derecognises assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests
and other related items in shareholders’ equity in relation
to that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is
remeasured at its fair value at the date when control is
lost. Any gains or losses therefor incurred are recognised
as investment income for the current period when control
is lost.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

Non-controlling interest is presented separately in
the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. Net profit or loss attributable to non-controlling
shareholders is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement below the net profit line item.
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
shareholders is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement below the total comprehensive income
line item.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable
to the non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’ portion of the
opening balance of owners’ equity of the subsidiary, the
excess is allocated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a
subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the
Company makes necessary adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s
own accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised profit or
loss arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

8 Foreign currency transactions and translation

of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from
investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign
currency transactions are, on initial recognition, translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the dates of
the transactions.

A spot exchange rate is an exchange rate quoted by the
People’s Bank of China.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences,
except for those arising from the principal and interest of
specific foreign currency borrowings for the purpose of
acquisition, construction of qualifying assets (see Note
I1.15), are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at historical cost are translated to Renminbi using the
foreign exchange rate at the transaction date. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined; the
resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss, except for the differences arising from the translation
of available-for-sale financial assets, which are recognised
as other comprehensive income in capital reserve.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

8 Foreign currency transactions and translation

of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies (cont’d)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operation are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The equity items, excluding
“Retained earnings”, are translated to Renminbi at the
spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. The income
and expenses of foreign operation are translated to
Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at the transaction
dates. The resulting translation differences are recognised
in a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Upon
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the translation differences recognised in shareholders’
equity which relates to that foreign operation is transferred
to profit or loss in the period in which the disposal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on hand,
equity securities other than long-term equity investments
(see Note 11.12), receivables, payables, loans and
borrowings and share capital.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets
and other financial liabilities.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related
directly attributable transaction costs are charged to
profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are included in their initial costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and
liabilities are measured as follows:

— Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as
at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or if it is a derivative.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are recognised in profit or loss.
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Il Significant accounting policies and

9 2RTHEE)
(1) ZEEERZ G E (&R ER
iTE (&)
— FEWEIE

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)
— Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities include the liabilities arising
from financial guarantee contracts. Financial
guarantees are contracts that require the Group
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
subsequent to initial recognition, the guarantee
is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation and the
amount of a provision determined in accordance
with the principles of contingencies (see Note
11.20).

Except for the liabilities arising from financial
guarantee contracts described above, subsequent
to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet, and are not offset.
However, a financial asset and a financial liability are
offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet when both of the following conditions are
satisfied:

— the Group has a legal right to set off the
recognised amounts and the legal right is currently
enforceable

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

©

)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in profit
or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of
it) only when the underlying present obligation (or part
of it) is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

O

significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) a significant decline in the fair value or a prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

For the calculation method of impairment of
receivables, refer to Note I1.10. The impairment of
other financial assets is measured as follows:

— Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are assessed for
impairment both on an individual basis and on a
collective group basis.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

Where impairment is assessed on an individual
basis, an impairment loss in respect of a held-to-
maturity investment is calculated as the excess
of its carrying amount over the present value
of the estimated future cash flows (exclusive of
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the original effective interest rate. All
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where held-
to-maturity investments share similar credit risk
characteristics (including those having not been
individually assessed as impaired), based on their
historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the
observable factors reflecting present economic

conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised
on held-to-maturity investments, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial
asset which can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss will not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had no impairment loss been recognised in

prior years.

102 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

RELHZEFNRTROBRAF

AR EEE T RRIME a5
(#&)

9 £RTIEE)
() SREELE ()

ERER AR B
REZIHREMEGR
KR RE(TERERAE
AMARRERBER) R
ERMEHBANREER
HIFEEER  AKE#
ZEAZR R ENRE
EBEBRLEZRE B
MEREIREERER
X FRTAEHES -

ERMAETAFERE
| H1 I & R B 1B R
B RERKXEHRERE
BB BLUE B R R
FBEZIHRE (BRENIE
BT AR R B ERED
FAZZHERE) AT
K& ARBERRE A
BRI RO A B R BUR
TTHRBETER

Y

RAEZIHREERRE
BAR WETERER
Az EEEED R
B BEEBLHEERZIE
REBRENEREH A
SERER B ERK
TUEE: FAEHE
& ZEORMNEREER
THBBRE TR EE
BEATZEREELE
B B BB AR AN o



Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(5) Equity instrument
An equity instrument is a contract that proves the
ownership interest of the assets after deducting all
liabilities in the Company.

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity.

Consideration and transaction costs paid by the
Company for repurchasing self-issued equity
instruments are deducted from shareholders’ equity.

10 Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for impairment both on an
individual basis and on a collective group basis.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated as
the excess of its carrying amount over the present value
of the estimated future cash flows (exclusive of future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the original effective interest rate. All impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those
having not been individually assessed as impaired), based
on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the
observable factors reflecting present economic conditions.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

10 Impairment of receivables (cont’d)
If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on

receivables, there is objective evidence of a recovery

in value of the financial asset which can be related

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was

recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is

reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment

loss will not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

11 Inventories

(1)

@

Classification
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, semi-
finished goods, and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditures incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition In
addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods include direct labour costs
and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.

Cost of inventories transferred out
Cost of inventories transferred out is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables
and packaging materials are amortised in full when
received for use. The amortisations are included in the
cost of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

11 Inventories (cont’d)

©

“)

Basis for determining the net realisable value of
inventories and provisioning methods for decline in
value of inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes.

The net realisable value of materials held for use in the
production is measured based on the net realisable
value of the finished goods in which they will be
incorporated. The net realisable value of the quantity
of inventory held to satisfy sales or service contracts is
measured based on the contract price. If the quantities
held by the Group are more than the quantities
of inventories specified in sales contracts, the net
realisable value of the excess portion of inventories is
measured based on general selling prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for diminution in the value of inventories, and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventory system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments
(1) Investment cost
(@ Long-term equity investments acquired through a
business combination

106 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment obtained through a business
combination involving enterprises under
common control is the Company’s share of the
carrying amount of the subsidiary’s equity at
the combination date. The difference between
the initial investment cost and the carrying
amount of the consideration given is adjusted
to share premium in capital reserve. If the
balance of the share premium is insufficient,
any excess is adjusted to retained earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, the initial
investment cost comprises the aggregate of
the fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity securities
issued by the Company, in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For a long-term equity
investment obtained through a business
combination not involving enterprises under
common control and achieved in stages,
the initial cost comprises the carrying value
of previously-held equity investment in the
acquiree immediately before the acquisition
date, and additional investment cost at the
acquisition date.
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Il Significant accounting policies and AR EES R RN HA
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)

12 REIRERE (8)
(1) BEK AT (42)
(b) EH b5 XNERE 8 K HA A% #E

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(1) Investment cost (cont’d)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than

through a business combination BE
- A long-term equity investment acquired — HRBEBEES HFAIN
other than through a business combination is 7 E Ath 5 S ERIS Y = A

initially recognised at the actual consideration
paid if the Group acquires the investment by
cash, or at the fair value of the equity securities
issued if an investment is acquired by issuing
equity securities, or at the value stipulated in
the investment contract or agreement if an
investment is contributed by shareholders.

(2) Subsequent measurement
(@ Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for using the cost method for
subsequent measurement. Except for cash
dividends or profit distributions declared but not
yet distributed that have been included in the price
or consideration paid in obtaining the investments,
the Company recognises its share of the cash
dividends or profit distributions declared by the
investee as investment income irrespective of
whether these represent the net profit realised by
the investee before or after the investment.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement (cont’d)

@)
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Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)
The investments in subsidiaries are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in
accordance with the policies described in Note II.6.

Investment in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
Group and the parties that have joint control (See
Note I.12(3)) of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement.

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group
has significant influence (see Note II.12(3)).

An investment in a joint venture or an associate
is accounted for using the equity method for
subsequent measurement, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

The Group makes the following accounting
treatments when using the equity method:

Where the initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment exceeds the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition, the
investment is initially recognised at the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment
cost is less than the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the date of acquisition, the investment is initially
recognised at the investor's share of the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets,
and the difference is charged to profit or loss.

After the acquisition of the investment,
the Group recognises its share of the investee’s
profit or loss after deducting the amortisation
of the debit balance of the equity investment
difference, which was recognised by the Group
before the first-time adoption of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprise, as
investment income or losses, and adjusts the
carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
Once the investee declares any cash dividends
or profit distributions, the carrying amount
of the investment is reduced by that amount
attributable to the Group.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

The Group recognises its share of the investee’s
net profits or losses after making appropriate
adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group
based on the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates
or joint ventures. Unrealised losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

The Group discontinues recognising its share
of net losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
and any long-term interest that in substance
forms part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or the joint venture is reduced
to zero, except to the extent that the Group
has an obligation to assume additional losses.
Where net profits are subsequently made
by the associate or joint venture, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

— The Group adjusts the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment for changes
in owners’ equity of the investee other than
those arising from net profits or losses, and
recognises the corresponding adjustment in
shareholders’ equity.

(c) Other long-term equity investments

Other long-term equity investments refer to
investments where the Group does not have
control, joint control or significant influence over
the investees, and the investments are not quoted
in an active market and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

Other long-term equity investments are accounted
for subsequently using the cost method. Except
for cash dividends or profit distributions declared
but not yet distributed that have been included
in the price or consideration paid in obtaining the
investments, the Company recognises its share of
the cash dividends or profit distributions declared
by the investee as investment income irrespective
of whether these represent the net profit realised
by the investee before or after the investment.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

(3) Basis for determining the existence of joint control or
significant influence over an investee
Joint control is the agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities (activities that significantly affect
the arrangement’s returns) require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The following factors are usually considered when
assessing whether the Group can exercise joint control
over an investee:

— Whether no single party is in a position to control

the investee’s relevant activities unilaterally;

— Whether strategic decisions relating to the
investee’s relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of all the parties sharing control.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

(3) Basis for determining the existence of joint control or
significant influence over an investee (cont’d)
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of an
investee but does not have control or joint control over
those policies. The following one or more factors are
considered usually when assessing whether the Group
can exercise significant influence over an investee:

— Whether the Group has representation on the
board of directors or equivalent governing body of
the investee;

— Whether the Group participates in the policy-
making processes of the investee;

— Whether the Group has material transactions with
the investee;

— Whether the Group dispatches management
personnel to the investee;

— Whether the Group provides essential technical
information to the investee.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(4) Method of impairment testing and measurement

For the method of impairment testing and
measurement on investment in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, refer to Note 11.18

For other long-term equity investments, the carrying
amount is tested for impairment at the balance
sheet date. If there is objective evidence that the
investment may be impaired, impairment is assessed
on an individual basis. Impairment loss is measured
at the amount by which the carrying amount of the
investment exceeds the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset and recognised in
profit or loss. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Other long-term equity investments are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses in the balance
sheet.

13 Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the
Group for use in production of goods with useful lives
over one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of self-
constructed assets is measured in accordance with
the policy set out in Note Il.14.
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Il Significant accounting policies and AT EEEREME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) (48)

13 BE&E (&)
(1) BIEEERBERIF ()

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Recognition of fixed assets (cont’d)

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in
a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.

The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if the criteria to recognise
fixed assets are satisfied, and the carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of fixed assets are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)

@

©

)

Depreciation of fixed assets

The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life, unless the fixed asset is classified
as held for sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as

follows:

Class

¥R
Plant and buildings BB KR
Machinery and equipment R R
Office and other equipment MAREREMERE
Motor vehicles ERTA

Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.

For the method of impairment testing and
measurement, refer to Note I1.18.

Recognition and measurement of fixed assets
acquired under finance leases
For the recognition and measurement of fixed assets
acquired under finance leases, refer to the accounting
policy set out in Note 11.26(3).
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(5) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is on disposal; or

— when no future economic benefit is expected to be
generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

14 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note 11.15), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed asset when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided
against construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note I1.18).
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

15 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are

capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

Except for the above, other borrowing costs are

recognised as financial expenses in the income statement

when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest

(including amortisation of any discount or premium on

borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period is

determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

Where funds are borrowed generally and used for
the acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised on such
borrowings is determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the weighted average of the excess amounts of
cumulative expenditures on the asset over the above
amounts of specific borrowings. The capitalisation rate
is the weighted average of the interest rates applicable
to the general-purpose borrowings.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

15 Borrowing costs (cont’d)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the
borrowings.

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities of acquisition, construction that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready
for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended when the acquisition, construction activities
are interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts for
more than three months.
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accounting estimates (cont’d) (48)

Il Significant accounting policies and

16 Intangible assets 16 EFEE

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note 1.18).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised on the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.

The respective amortisation periods for such intangible
assets are as follows:

Item Amortisation period (years)

Land use right 15-50 years

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is
expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.
At the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any
intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure on the research phase
and expenditure on the development phase.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

16 Intangible assets (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated& g
(BRAFI) - EBBARKT)
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Expenditure on the research phase is recognised in profit RS L - RBERTAY
or loss when incurred. Expenditure on the development HiEzS - BRI H 8
phase is capitalised if development costs can be REFEKHEBEERI LFEER
measured reliably, the product or process is technically it Ealf7 > mMEAXREEE T
and commercially feasible, and the Group intends to and EHERMERTKAZEIE - I
has sufficient resources to complete the development. B AR Haesmn 512 0 Al
Capitalised development costs are stated in the balance HABEEMNSTHEZ FAERL -
sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note I1.18). B AR B IR A A RR (B 2
Other development expenditure is recognised as an (2RKE=Z 18)EEEABERN

expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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17 Goodwill 17 B8
The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost A IER —1 6| N EES MK E
of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value £ BEVIAR A RS ARG
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under the FHRESEREE R AR EE
business combination not involving enterprises under AR BEMNEENZESR o
common control.
Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance REB LR - AR R
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see HREEE(Z2EME=- - 18) &
Note 1.18). On disposal of an asset group or a set of asset BEABBERAY TR BHEAEEEH
groups, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is BEMASEEAAERER TIAE
written off and included in the calculation of the profit or it stAEHIER o

loss on disposal.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories,

financial assets and other long-term equity
investments

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date based on the internal and
external sources of information to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment:

— fixed assets

— construction in progress

— intangible assets

— long-term equity investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

— goodwill

If any indication exists that an asset may be impaired,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. In
addition, the Group estimates the recoverable amounts of
goodwill at each year-end, irrespective of whether there
is any indication of impairment. Goodwill is allocated to
each asset group or set of asset groups, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of an asset, asset group or set of
asset groups is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its present value of expected future cash flows.

122 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&adtH REFIRTRHER AT

AR EEETRRIME a5
(#&)

18 RiFE - SREEREMRIRK

ERENNHEMEERE

AEEELESEEBRENTR
NP BT THAERETE
WEHHE - BIF -

- ERAE

~ EEIR

~ miaE

~ WTAF - ARAARBEA
Aty R ARAEHE A

~ wmEE

AEBEUFERETRNEEETT
BMERAR B EENTREDS
o ltdh BRESFEMED
R AEERBEFERTHEE
AEtE RN E S5 - NEBKER
MREEMEXEEEMAMASCRENED
XAt BRRERHNR SRR
B EREEE - WHEMLER LE
TR ERERI -

AREeEEEEE(REER
BEMAMAS - TRWRAEBER
ZREERRMNFAEEEENR
KReREWBEME ZHED
3




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories,

financial assets and other long-term equity
investments (cont’d)

An asset group is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
An asset group is composed of assets directly relating to
cash-generation. Identification of an asset group is based
on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset
group are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or asset groups. In identifying an asset group,
the Group also considers how management monitors
the Group’s operations and how management makes
decisions about continuing or disposing of the Group’s
assets.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories,

financial assets and other long-term equity
investments (cont’d)

If the result of the recoverable amount calculation
indicates the recoverable amount of an asset is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is
recognised as an impairment loss and charged to profit or
loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of
the asset is recognised accordingly. For impairment losses
related to an asset group or a set of asset groups, first
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the asset group or set of asset groups, and then reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the asset group
or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However,
the carrying amount of an impaired asset will not be
lower than the greatest amount of its individual fair value
less costs to sell (if determinable), the present value of
expected future cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

19 Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures fair value according to the following
principals unless otherwise stated:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group shall take into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date (including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset). The
Group shall use valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data and
other observable inputs are available to measure fair value.
The valuation techniques used mainly include market
approach, income approach and cost approach.

20 Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

21 Purchase of own shares

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury stock. All expenditures
relating to the repurchase are recorded in the cost of
the treasury stock, with the transaction entering into
the share register. Treasury stock is excluded from
profit distributions and is stated as a deduction under
shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury stock is cancelled, the share capital should
be reduced to the extent of the total par value of the
treasury stock cancelled. Where the cost of the treasury
stock cancelled exceeds the total par value, the excess
is sequentially deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings. If the
cost of treasury stock cancelled is less than the total par
value, the difference is recorded in the capital reserve
(share premium).

22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the
following respective conditions are met:
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

22 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(1)

@

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all of
the general conditions stated above and the following
conditions are satisfied:

— The significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer;

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.
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accounting estimates (cont’d) (48)

Il Significant accounting policies and

23 B T Hr
(@) FZEIEN

23 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

During the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the services, the Group defined the
actual salaries, bonus, social insurance and housing
fund, such as medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance and maternity insurance with required
provision of the benchmark and rate, which pay for
employees as benefit obligation and it is recognized as
part of the cost of assets or charged to profit or loss
on an accrual basis. If this obligation is not expected
to be settled wholly with a significant effect on financial
statements before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related services, the amount of the liabilities shall
be discounted using the discount rate.

(b) Post-employment benefits — Defined contribution

plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, employees of the Group participate in the
social insurance system established and managed
by government organisations. The payment of basic
pension insurance is measured at the applicable
benchmark and rate which are set by the state. During
the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the services, the Group defined the amount of
payables as benefit obligation and recognized as part
of the cost of assets or charged to profit or loss on an
accrual basis.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

23 Employee benefits (cont’d)
(c) Termination benefits
When the Group terminates the employment
relationship with employees before the employment
contracts expire, or provides compensation as an
offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary
redundancy, a provision for the termination benefits
provided is recognised in profit or loss when either of
the following conditions are satisfied:

— The Group is not allowed to withdraw termination
benefit for termination plan or redundancy offer
unilaterally;

— The Group recognise costs or expenses in
relation to restructuring which involve payments of
termination benefits.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

24 Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group
at no consideration except for any capital contribution
from the government as an investor in the Group.
Special funds such as investment grants allocated by the
government, if clearly defined in official documents as part
of “capital reserve” are dealt with as capital contributions,
and not regarded as government grants.

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount that is
received or receivable. If a government grant is in the form
of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at its
fair value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets. A government
grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in
the subsequent periods is recognised initially as deferred
income and recognised in profit or loss in the same
periods in which the expenses are recognised. A grant
that compensates the Group for expenses incurred is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

25 Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
them off and also intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases, which include the deductible losses
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (or tax loss). Deferred tax is not recognised
for taxable temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

25 Income tax (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of recovery or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled in accordance with tax laws.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all the following
conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets;

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Il Significant accounting policies and Z AT EESBEME &R
accounting estimates (cont’d) (4#8)
26 Operating leases and finance leases 26 REHE  MEHE
A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an HMESAREREMCEHE - g
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers BHERIEERTAERKRERE
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to BEEE B TEEEMEES
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of R 2 20 FSREN R AR & - 82
whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred. HERELEHRE I E
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. o
(1) Operating lease charges (1) AWLHEHNEE
Rental payments under operating leases are KEHERABENHEER
recognised as part of the cost of another related asset EHRERNIZE AR AE
or as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease FAEEKANER -
term.
(2) Assets leased out under operating leases (2) EETHEH L EE
Fixed assets leased out under operating leases, KEHEH T NRIZEEFEH
except for investment properties, are depreciated in ENSNNEEEERW T
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies 13(2) AT 2t &9 $7 88 B3R AT HR 3T
described in Note [1.13(2). Impairment losses are E EWaE— c18pit e
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy STECRET IR EERE - K&
described in Note I1.18. Income derived from operating ENHeRAEHERNEER
leases is recognised in the income statement using BOEBRRBBA - 8 EHEMR
the straight-line method over the lease term. If initial HEERENVGREEER -
direct costs incurred in respect of the assets leased SHEBRARTUERNL  EF
out are material, the costs are initially capitalised E78 & HA N 1% AR R i 52 FH 2 U
and subsequently amortised in profit or loss over the AR ERE S Bt A HiE
lease term on the same basis as the lease income. W RBEBNE BEEFTAE
Otherwise, the costs are charged to profit or loss HAtEES ©
immediately.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

26 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(3) Assets acquired under finance leases

AR EEF R RME s 45t
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26 KEEE - MEESE (R
@) BEHMEHAEE

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance
lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. At the commencement of the
lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded
as long-term payables. The difference between the
value of the leased assets and the minimum lease
payments is recognised as unrecognised finance
charges. Initial direct costs that are attributable to
a finance lease incurred by the Group are added
to the amounts recognised for the leased asset.
Depreciation and impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policies described
in Notes I11.13(2) and I1.18, respectively.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the leased asset is depreciated over its
estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
estimated useful life.

Unrecognised finance charge under finance lease
is amortised using an effective interest method over
the lease term. The amortisation is accounted for in
accordance with the principles of borrowing costs (see
Note I.15).

At the balance sheet date, long-term payables arising
from finance leases, net of the unrecognised finance
charges, are presented as long-term payables or non-
current liabilities due within one year, respectively, in
the balance sheet.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

26 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(4) Assets leased out under finance leases

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group
recognises the aggregate of the minimum lease
receipts determined at the inception of a lease and
the initial direct costs as finance lease receivable. The
difference between the aggregate of the minimum
lease receipts, the initial direct costs, and the
aggregate of their present value is recognised as
unearned finance income.

Unearned finance income is allocated to each
accounting period during the lease term using the
effective interest method. At the balance sheet date,
finance lease receivables, net of unearned finance
income, are presented as long-term receivables or
non-current assets due within one year, respectively, in
the balance sheet.

27 Profit distributions to shareholders
Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be authorised and declared
after the balance sheet date, are not recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date but disclosed in the
notes separately.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

28 Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties
of the Group and the Company include, but are not limited
to:

(@ the Company’s parent;

(b) the Company’s subsidiaries;

(c) enterprises that are controlled by the Company’s
parent;

(d) investors that have joint control or exercise significant
influence over the Group;

(e) enterprises or individuals if a party has control or joint
control over both the enterprises or individuals and the
Group;

(f) joint ventures of the Group, including subsidiaries of
joint ventures;

(g) associates of the Group, including subsidiaries of
associates;

(n) principal individual investors of the Group and close
family members of such individuals;

136 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (R& LA ZEFIRTROERLD

AR EEETRRIME a5
(#&)

28 BB

— TS KRES ST HH S
*ﬁmbﬂiﬁ%% AR /R 77 3K,
77 VA BRI —J7 4% ~ HEEH
B - HEAKRREE T %ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ—fﬁ{l)\
X - (BERZBEREH M AE
FEEMRARE T RRRRDR - THEK
REBNEERT) - AEBRARE
M RERE T B R AR

(b) ARBHF AR
(© BARRRXME—FARES
Hibb% -

(o) BAEEERARZEHREK
FENKRET

(6) EAKERZ—HEH
2B ERAEA

H TEBHSEAT  BEAY
ARIWF AR

h) AEBEHEZHREEEARHE
HEETINRENXE




Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

28 Related parties (cont’d)

U)

key management personnel of the Group and close
family members of such individuals;

key management personnel of the Company’s parent;
close family members of key management personnel
of the Company’s parent; and

other enterprises that are controlled or jointly

controlled by principal individual
management personnel of the Group, or close family

investors, key

members of such individuals.

29 Segment reporting
Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure

of

the Group’s internal organisation, management

requirements and internal reporting system. An operating
segment is a component of the Group that meets all of the
following conditions:

that may earn revenue and incur expenses in daily
business activities;

whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s management to allocate its resources and
assess its performance; and

for which discrete financial information on financial
position, operating results and cash flows of the Group
is available.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Segment reporting (cont’d)
Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into

a single operating segment if the segments have similar

economic characteristics and the segment are similar in

each of the following aspects:

the nature of each product and service;

the nature of production process;

the type or class of customers for their products and
services;

the methods used to distribute the products or provide
their services;

the influence brought by law, administrative regulations
on production of products and provision of services.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of

actual transaction price for such transactions for segment

reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent with

those for the consolidated financial statements.

138 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH RERETRAERD T

LT EEREATBRE A A
(#&)

29 DR E (H])

AR fE k2 L& 2 B FE R
REER B ARREA T T EAEHE
RISABELER - AIAS G A —fEAE

- BEHRERASHOMEE

- EEBREMMEE

- EmRBBHEFEAL

- HEEMBREHSHNSTR

- AEERRRERHSBEREAR -
TTHOERFTE -

REBERE D BHER - 2 B0
RHWAILERRZ S ER DI
B - RO BREMRBNEEER
RERBAEBPERERRAN
SRR -



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan un/ess otherwise indicated)
(BHEFRE) - 2EELAARET)

Il Significant accounting policies and Z AFEESHBREMNE &
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)

30 EEEFHHE R K

30 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.

Notes V.12, 18 and X.3 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill, termination benefits and fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(@) Impairment of receivables
As described in Note [1.10, receivables that are
measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, an impairment loss is recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about loss
events such as a significant decline in the estimated
future cash flow of an individual debtor or the portfolio
of debtors, and significant changes in the financial
condition that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
If there is objective evidence of a recovery in value
of receivables which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

30 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

(b)

©
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Provision for diminution in value of inventories

As described in Note I.11, the net realisable value of
inventories is under management’s regular review,
and as a result, provision for diminution in value of
inventories is recognised for the excess of inventories’
carrying amounts over their net realisable value. When
making estimates of net realisable value, the Group
takes into consideration the use of inventories held
on hand and other information available to form the
underlying assumptions, including the inventories’
market prices and the Group’s historical operating
costs. The actual selling price, the costs of completion
and the costs necessary to make the sale and relevant
taxes may vary based on the changes in market
conditions and product saleability,
technology and the actual use of the inventories,

manufacturing

resulting in the changes in provision for diminution in
value of inventories. The net profit or loss may then be
affected in the period when the provision for diminution
in value of inventories is adjusted.

Impairment of assets other than inventories, financial
assets and other long-term equity investments

As described
inventories, financial assets and other long-term equity

in Note .18, assets other than
investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount of the assets. If any such
indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

30 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

(cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BHFIHS) » RBEBARKET)

AR EEF R RME s 45t
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(c) Impairment of assets other than inventories, financial

assets and other long-term equity investments (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and its present value of expected future cash flows.
Since a market price of the asset (or the asset group)
cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of the asset
cannot be estimated reliably. In assessing value in use,
significant judgements are exercised over the asset’'s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

(d) Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed

assets and intangible assets

As described in Notes Il. 13 and 16, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and the estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

30 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
(e) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

31 Changes in accounting policies
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting

policies

The Group decides to apply the following amendments
and new accounting standards issued by Ministry of
Finance of PRC from 1 January 2013:

e CAS No.9-Employee Benefits (“CAS No.9

(Revised)”)

e CAS No.30-Presentation of Financial Statements
(“CAS No.30 (Revised)”)

e CAS No.33-Consolidated Financial Statements
(“CAS No.33 (Revised)”)

e CAS No.39-Fair Value Measurement (“CAS N0.39”)

e (CAS No.40-Joint Arrangements (“CAS No.40”)
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

31 Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)
Upon the adoption of the above CAS, the Group’s

significant accounting policies are set out in Note II.

When preparing the consolidated financial statements,

accounting policies adopted by the subsidiaries are

consistent with the Company.

Effect of the Group adopting the above accounting

policies are as follows:

U

(i)

Employee Benefits

The Group has changed its accounting policy and
reviewed the current employee benefits according
to CAS No.9 (Revised) with respect to the
classification, recognition and measurement of the
short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits.

Presentation of Financial Statements

According to the requirements of CAS No.30
(Revised), the Group has changed its presentation
of financial statements,
separately the items of other comprehensive
income that would be reclassified to profit or loss

including presenting

in the future if certain conditions are met from
those that would never be reclassified to profit or
loss.

The Group has adjusted the presentation of the
comparative financial statements accordingly.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

31 Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)
(i) Consolidated financial statements

(iv

=
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CAS No0.33 (Revised) has introduced a single
control model to determine whether an investee
should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the Group has power over the investee, exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and the ability to use its power to
affect the amount of those returns. As a result of
the adoption of CAS No.33 (Revised), the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee
and whether an investee should be consolidated.

The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group as at 1 January
2013.

Fair Value Measurement

CAS No.39 has redefined fair value with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance and
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements. The adoption of CAS No.39 does
not have any material impact on the fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
The Group has provided the applicable disclosures
in Note X.3 according to CAS No.39.

If the fair value measurement before 1 January
2013 is not consistent with the requirements
of CAS No.39,
retrospectively. The Group did not provide
comparative information with regard to the new

the Group did not restate

required disclosure.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

31 Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting

policies (cont’d)

(v) Joint Arrangements
Before adopting CAS No.40, the Group divides
joint arrangements into jointly controlled
operations, jointly controlled assets and joint
ventures. According to CAS No.40, the Group
divides the type of an arrangement into joint
operations and joint ventures by considering the
structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and
obligations under the arrangement.

As a result of the adoption of CAS No.40, the
Group has changed its accounting policy with
respect to its interests in joint arrangements
and re-evaluated its involvement in its joint
arrangements. This reclassification does not have
any material impact on the financial position and
the financial result of the Group.

(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on the
financial statements
The above changes in accounting policies have no
significant effect on the 2013 and 2012 financial
statements.

R S
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Il Taxation = BRI
1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates 1 FEHRERBE
Tax type Tax basis Tax rate & HiRkiE fE
Value added Qutput VAT is calculated on product sales 17%, 13% ZEFH BT TER 17%  13%
tax (VAT) and taxable servioes revenue, based HEBMAER
on tax laws. The remaining balance of SHPARER
output VAT, after subtracting the STESEIAME -
deductiole input VAT of the period, EHRE BT
is VAT payable. BIMEERS
% EZEHHR
EREER
Business tax Based on taxable revenue 5% BED RERE WA 5%
City maintenance BmgE  RERAREEH
and construction tax Based on business tax and VAT paid 1%, 5%, 7% R REZEERAE 1% 5% 7%
Corporate income tax Based on taxable profis 1%, 25% RGN  REARMGESE 15% 25%
2 Tax preferential and approvals 2 BKEER#MX
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are Br T il = 2B BB R F AT -
subject to income tax rate 25% (2012: 25%) except AR MNBRETFRARAFEERE
for the following subsidiaries in 2012 and the overseas R &) BT 15 B B 3R /2 25% (2012 ¢
subsidiaries of the Company were taxed at the local 25%) * ARRAIHPFINF R EIRE
applicable income tax rates. I R B R AN TSR o
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Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential and approvals (cont’d)
(@) According to implementing the Western Development

Program about taxation preferential policy issued
by Ministry of Finance, State Administration of
Taxation, General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No0.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui No.58[2011]), the
income tax is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
until 31 December 2020.
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Il Taxation (cont’d) = MRAGE)

2 BIWEERM (&)

b) RIBEEEMERE  HERE
mA I TEBOBA K EER R
Frig#t « "R EIFE T F 2 A
BB R MR EESE
BREECEMRSIETREM
INTHRS - HMHE20085F 1 A1

agricultural produce under the EIT Law and therefore HiR B R MNTSH © 2013
are exempt from the PRC income tax commenced FERAESEERVMIF
from 1 January 2008. The following companies are WEBEANZARWT :
recognised as primary processing of agricultural

2 Tax preferential and approvals (cont’d)

(b) According to the EIT Law, income derived from
primary processing of agricultural produce is
exempt from the PRC income tax. The production
of juice concentrate of the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries and production of bio-stuff of its
subsidiaries are recognised as primary processing of

produce for the year 2013:

148 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Name of company
AL

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Principal activities

RikEERE

Manufacture and sale of juice

Preferential policy

L

Exempt from income tax

BEAREMRARHBRAR) RETHEREE RRPAEH
Yantai Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BaZEF R REBRAR FRETHERHEE RBFHER
Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
AKZEMRET AR RERTHEERHE RBFHER
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BMZEFRETERAR RERTHEREE RRPAEH
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BaENRENRTHEBRAR FRETHERHEE RBFHER
Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
AEZENRGTERAA RERTEEREHE RBHER
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
KERENRETERAR FRETHEREE RRPATEH
Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BMNZEF R REERAR FRETHEREE RBFHER

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF



Il Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential and approvals (cont’d)

Name of company

AL

Baishui Andre Bio-feedstuff Co., Ltd.

BKZEREMERBRAR
Xuzhou Andre Pomace Products Co., Ltd.
BN eEFREERERAR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

Principal activities

RGEERE

Manufacture and sale of bio-feedstuff

(@ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁAE%ﬁé:

= WEGR)
2 BREERX(E)

Preferential policy

EERE

Exempt from income tax

FRHEE RIS RS
Manufacture and sale of pomace products Exempt from income tax
REHmEERHE BEFER

IV Business combinations and consolidated

financial statements

1 Background of major subsidiaries
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or

investment
Full name Type
3 ] L]

Baishui Andre Juice ~ Company Limted  Shaanxi, PRC

Co, Ltd.
RKERHRT
ARAT

(Sino-foreign
Joint venture)
BREAAT
(#iaE)

Registration
place

e

RENER

Business nature

RHER

Manufacture and
sale of uice

BaRAE
R#E

Registered
capital - Business scope

FLECI

USD Manufacture of juice,
17000000 futand vegetable
17000000 beverage, and related

£T poduets, andon

packaging; and sele
of own products
EERRTRBT R
AitgERERER
TEZREEN
EREER

Year-end
actual
investment
EXRR
i

UsD
17,000,000
17,000,000

E3

M fRSHRESHMBERE

1 EEFAEAMER
(1) BBRY HRE ST AR IZHY
FAH

Closing
balance
of other items
thatin
substance
form net
investmentin
asubsidiary Group ~ Group voting
EELRAY  shareholding rights
FARBRE  percentage  percentage  Consolidated  Organisation
BEMER  REGREA REZHAELA (YIN) code
[ ] (%) () EEREHE  HRRERE

= 100% 100% Y 132664478

&lm
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IV Business combinations and consolidated
financial statements (cont’d)

1 Background of major subsidiaries (cont’d) 1
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
investment (cont’d)

Closing
balance
of other items
thatin
substance
form net
investment in
Yearend  asubsidiary
actal  BELERS
Registration Registered investment ~ FATSRE
Full name Type place Business nature capital  Business scope 5ER MRMER
1] L] il REHE iif&s BEEE i B
Yantai Longkou Ancre CompenyLimted ~ Shandong, ~ Menufacture and USD " Manufacture ofjuice and UsD =
Juics Co., Ltd (Sinoforeign ~~ PRC sabofcondensed 12,110,000 sale of own products 12,110,000
REBOZEART  pntentveg  PELEE e 1211000 EEFHt BHEA 12,110,000
HHERAY  ABEMAA BORTEE i EER i
(FiaE) Rigg
Xuzhou Andre CompanyLimted ~ Jiangsu, PRC ~ Manufacture and USD Manufacture ofjice, UsD =
e Co, Lid. Snofoeign  RETEE  skofcondensed 10000000 fruitand vegetable 10,000,000
BNZERIZET  jointventurg) juice 10000000 beverage, andreeted 10,000,000
ARAT EREALA REETEE £ products;sae of £
(RiASE) Rigg onn products; and
manufacture of ron
Darel for uice outer
packaging
EERE HHRL
BER HEREE
o BRI
B3
Andre Juice Co, Ltd.  CompenyLimted  Brfish Vign ~~ nvestment USD50,000  Investment holding USD50,000 =
ZEARIARAR  AREML Ielands holding S000ET KARR 5000
ABERR  REER
#5
North Andre Juice ~ CompanyLimted  TheUnted ~ Saleofcondensed ~ USDI0000 Sele of condensedjuice ~ USD10,000 =
(USA) e, HREMAA Staesof  Jice 10005 BERTEE 10000£7
FrREHR (ZE) Ameica  REETHE
RiARRAT ]
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(1) BBRIL FKEF T KA

Consolidated
(YIN)
REALER

Alm

Ao

—<

Ao

EZFARAER (F)

FRE] (&)

Group  Group voting

shareholding rights

percentage  percentage

SERRYA SERRELA

(th) (')

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%
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Organisation
code

HRENtE

187229715
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financial statements (cont’d)

IV Business combinations and consolidated

1 Background of major subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or

investment (cont’d)

Registration
Full name Type place Business nature
1] L] il REHR
Dalln Andre Juice ~ Company Limted ~ Lizoning, PRC  Manufacture and
Co, Ld. BREFLT  PEEEE  wedjie
NERERRET BaRtAE
BRAA R

Registered
capital
&

B
80000000
80000000

ARETL

=

Business scope

Manufacture and
sale of all kinds of
frutand vegetable
Deverage; biological
comprehensive
tization of apple
£s58nce, vegetable
and pomace;
and purchase of
agricultural and
Sidefing products
(excluding grain; and
manufacture of ron
packaging; imports
and exports of goods
and technology

EERERRRAA
HiERER &
% REMENGR
il BAER(TE
ER)E: 2zt
R SRR
#HinzE -

Year-end
actual
investment
EXER
i

RuB
80,000,000
80,000,000

ABHT

1

Closing
balance

of other items
thatin
substance
form net
investment in
a subsidiary
RELHAY
FARBRE
HEMER
]

REHREHMBEE ()

EZEFARER (&)

(1) #FBARTHREEZE T R IF6
FRE] (&)
Group  Group voting

shareholding rights

percentage  percentage  Gonsolidated Organisation

SEGREA SEXRELA (YN code
(%) () EEREHE  HRRERE
100% 100% Y 950042487

R
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IV Business combinations and consolidated LEESHEREHUBEERE(E)
financial statements (cont’d)
1 Background of major subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EEFQTAER (&)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or (1) BBRT I EZE T N FH)
investment (cont'd) FRE] (&)
Closing
balance
of otheritems
thatin
substance
form net
investment in

Year-end  asubsidiary Group  Group voting
actuial  EELHRH  shareholding rights

Registration Registered investment ~ FARBHRE  percentage  percentage  Consolidated  Organisation
Full name Type place Busingss nature capital  Business scope EFER MEMER  SERBUE RERAEMA (YN code
1] 1] il REER iif&s BEEE i ] (%) () EEREHE  HRRERE
Binzhou Andre Companylimted ~ Shendong,  Manufacture and USD Manufacture of UsD = 100% 100% Y 15175733-8
Juice Co,, Ltd. (Sino-forelgn PRC sabofcondensed 12100000 beverage, high 12,100,000 3
BAZEHREHE  ontvenve  PELRE e 12100000 natural apple 12,100,000
AR BREFAE BaREE T esence, andiron 9D
(Fa%) RiE packaging; biological
comprehensive
Utlization of pomace,
and ofher extended

products; winter
jujube storage; sale of
own products.
EERR BRATE
RER BEAX
i REMENG
ATRRAEEE
i ARG HE
KAER

Yantal Ancte Juice ~ Companylimted ~ Shandong, ~ Manufacture and USD Manufacture and UsD = 100% 100% Y 730667856
Co, Ltd. (Sino-foreign PRC sale offut pulp 483000 processing ofal 4,832,000 3
Feret@ras e BELRY  RREEREE 4832000 Kndsoffutpupand 4832000
ARAA HREFAE ET reted products, and £
(Rag) sdle of onn products;
wholesale and import
and export of uice
and pulp
B NIREARR
RRERER Uik
EEEER %2
BRI RHE
illES
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IV Business combinations and consolidated

financial statements (cont’d)

1 Background of major subsidiaries (cont’d)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations

not under common control

Registration

Full name Type place Business nature
1] L] il RRER
Xuzhou Andre CompanyLimted ~ Jiangsu, PRC ~ Manufacture and
PomaceProducts  (Sodforegn  SETEE  saleof pomece
Co, Ltd. joint venture) products
PHZENRENR ARRHEAT RBHntE
BRAA GHER) h#g
Longkou Andre Bio- ~ CompanyLimted  Shendong, ~ Manufacture
feedstuffCo, Ltd. ~ (Siofordign ~~ PRC and sde of
EOZEAIE  jontvent) BEIUEE b feecstuf
BRAT EREAAT RN

GHER) hig

Registered
capital ~ Business scope

FLECI

USD500,000  Manufacture

5000007 andbiobogca
comprehensive
Utlization of pomace
(thatis organic
nfermediates
products); and sae of
own products

kil

(M5kprEREE
RmINEE  HERE
Eh

USD500,000  Manufacture of

500000 bioeedstuffand
related packaging;
andl sale of own
products

EEEIRRERRL

HBEEEn #E
HEER

REHRESHMBEE ()

1

Closing

Balance

of other

items that in

substance

form net

investment in

Year-end  asubsidiary
actial  KELBRET

investment  AESREME
EXRR R
i [ ]

USD500,000 -
S0000%T

USD500,000 -
S0000%T

EZEFARER (&)
2) FE[EI—##I T2 ¥ & GFERiZH)
FLA]
Group ~ Group Voting
shareholding rights
percentage  percentage  Consolidated Organisation
REGREA SEXRELA (YIN) code
(%) () EEREHE  HRRERE
100% 100% Y 756402827
R
100% 100% Y T5747924-4
R
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) - 3
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

IV Business combinations and consolidated LESHESHMERE(K)
financial statements (cont’d)
1 Background of major subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EEFQTAER (&)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations ©2) FE[E—#EH T E A HERZH)
not under common control (cont’d) FRE] (&)
Closing
Balance
of other
items that in
substance
form net
investment in

Year-end  asubsidiary Group ~ Group Voting
actual EELHAHT  shareholding rights

Registration Registered investment - AFRKEMK  percentage  percentage  Consolidated  Organisation
Full name Type place Business nature capital  Business scope E5ER #RE  RERBUA SEXMELA (YN code
1] 5 i1} REE iifds HEEE i 4] ] (%) () RESEEE  HRBRRE
Baishui Andre Bio-~ CompanyLimted ~ Shaan, PRC  Manufactreand  USDS00,000  Manufacture of USD500,000 = 100% 100% Y T6256747-6
fedstufCo, Ltd.  (Snoforeln ~ EBEE  sdeof S0000ET  bioeedstuffand S0000ET R
BXRERENEE  dntventurg) bio-feedstuf Teated packaging;
ERA EREMAA EEHEE and sa of own
(Bih5E) RiE products
EEENRMERRE
HERRER U
EBEER
Yongj Andre Juice  Company Limted ~ Shanxi, PRC Production and USD Manufacture and UsD = 100% 100% Y 79638415-X
Co, Ltd Snofoegn  #EWEE  sdeofcondensed 12960000 saleof fuitand 12,960,000 7
KERETRET  jontventug) Jice 12060000 vegelablejuice and 12,960000
BRAR EREMAT RRETEE £ beverage, high natural £
(RS E) RiE appleessence,
and biologicd
comprehensive

tization of pomace:
5 HERERR
it B BRRR
BRER RamE
il

154 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH ZERETRHERD T



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

B R

(G52 H5) » 2EREL BARKE

I afMEHERAEER

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 BE¥ES
2013 2012
- St 3 E-CF
Original  Exchange RMB/RMB Original ~ Exchange ~ RMB/RMB
currency rate equivalents currency rate  equivalents
ltem R R&&# wEE ARREE RYeE nEE  AR%:E
Cash on hand: 7
RMB ARH 173,013 280,612
173,013 280,612
Deposits with banks: BN :
RMB AEE 355,209,610 48,125,614
UsDh E 11,852,407 6.0969 72,262,943 926,730 6.2855 5,824,964
EUR Bt 7 8.4189 648 77 8.3176 641
HKD ok 81,053 0.7862 63,724 23,226 0.8108 18,833
GBP 83 44 10.0556 439 44 10.1611 447
AUD i 15 5.4301 82 46 6.5363 301
Deposits pledged with banks: ERE RIS :
RMB ARE 9,354,986 -
usD e - 4500010 6.2855 28,084,813
436,892,432 82,255,613
Total B 437,065,445 82,536,225

As at 31 December 2013, cash at bank with restrictions
placed on the Group’s ownership were RMB9,354,986
(2012: RMB28,284,813), see Note V. 14.

#H E2013F12A31H A& H
FIEREXIRHNEBESAAR
#9,354,086 7T (20124 © A R &
28,284,8137T) * 2R MIFEH ~ 14 °
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PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE R - 2 R B B ALHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

2 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

ltem JEE
Listed equity securities at fair value RSN
Total At

3 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

Type ]

Related parties Bl NG|
Third parties EF=h
Sub-total /et

Less: Provision for bad W EEERES

and doubtful debts

Total &5t

156 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH ZERETRAERLQ T

I AfMBEREREE(|)

2 UARBESEAHZEHTAE

HEENEREE
2013 2012
—E—=%F —F——F
AEE=E = 2,028,000
= 2,028,000
3 FEUWER

(1) FEUWEERIZERIDTAT
2013 2012
=5 —T—F
10,380,732 3,840,098

140,021,451 118,932,614

150,402,183 122,772,712

150,402,183 122,772,712




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

@

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing BRER

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1EUAR(E1F)
Sub-total 2\5y

Less: Provision for bad
and doubtful debts

Total

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

Accounts receivables of the Group are individually
significant, therefore the account receivables are
assessed for impairment and bad debt provision is
determined on an individual basis and, then, on a
collective group basis. Management is of the view that
no bad debt provision is necessary for the accounts
receivable balances in regard of the sound credit
record of the customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012, the Group had not written off any
significant accounts receivable.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated& g
(BRAFS - EBTBARKT)

I AfMBEREREE(|)

3 FEWARRK ()
(2 BUERFIRARER DTN -

2013 2012
=% —F——F
150,402,183 122,772,712
150,402,183 122,772,712
150,402,183 122,772,712

=

=

=

B 5 R KB AT B A2 B
R

AEBFRENREERERE
HE A S RKRFIG R
EREEFELAER T -
BUAEATNETRENR -
Nt R ER - EEER
REBEFABREMNXNA
8% EE Y EUCRFERE T

M20184 12 431 H k20124
124318 - AEBERE K E=
| AR FEE 2R ARK
LEBIETH RS AR X B0 FE LR AR X o

R 20134F 12 A 31 H & 20124
12 431 H » "EBEERZH
B FEUBR X o
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B1 76 35 % [ 3T

(RPN - 2 BHEBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

(6) Accounts receivable due from shareholders holding
5% or more of the voting rights of the Company

Debtor
Chengdu President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd

4 Prepayments

(1) Prepayments by category:

[tem

Prepayments to suppliers
Other prepayments

Sub-total
Less: Provision for impairment

Total

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3 EUWRM (&)

BER

I AfMBEREREE(|)

6) ANFEUWIR K P IFE R FS%
(& 5%) A R RBERAD BV AL R

2013 2012
- S —TF

Provision Provision

for bad and for bad and

doubtful doubtful

Amount debts Amount debts

B &F IR iR Gl EIREE
REG—CERM

BRAA 243,540 = = =

BMGE—1%
BRATF 690,896 = 237,694 =
934,436 = 237,694 =
4 FEMNRIE
(1) BN FRELEHROT

2013 2012

THH —E—=%F T

TEfS e 31,465,053 4,198,821

FEfTE A 398,390 728,425

NG 31,863,443 4,927,246

R EEE - 350,417

A&t 31,863,443 4,576,829
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisat){{_ -
(B-HE52895) » ERRESARKEIT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial 7 SHMBEREEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
4 Prepayments (cont’d) 4 FEMNFIE(E)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: ) TERFIERRERSRAT ¢
2013 2012
Ageing IRES —E—=F —E——F
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
kof ] EEB (%) | LB (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FAA(E14) 30,988,731 97% 4,578,993 93%
Over 1 year but within 1225 (F2%F)
2 years (inclusive) 874,712 3% 348,253 7%
Sub-total NEF 31,863,443 100% 4,927,246 100%
Less: Provision for B ORBEZREE
impairment - - 350,417 -
Total At 31,863,443 100% 4,576,829 93%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when BRI BT AR B A
prepayments are recognised. HE o
(3) Prepayments due from shareholders holding 5% or B) AEBMAIBEBFEE R A5%
more of the voting rights of the Company (£ 5% ) LA FRRBEID B PIEER
BAEMR
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the MN2013412 A31 B & 20124
Group did not hold any amount due from shareholders 12 A31H ' AEFFENMNZFTIEH
who hold 5% or more of the voting rights of the MIEF AT 5% (55%) A &
Company was included in the above balance of SRIEIS D B PR R BB ALIBN ©
prepayments.
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PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h

statements (cont’d)

5 Other receivables
(1) Other receivables by type:

Type ]|

Related parties E2)i /NG
Third parties F=H
Sub-total NG

Less: Provision for bad B EEERE(R

and doubtful debts

Total &5t

(2) As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
Group did not hold any other receivables which were
denominated in foreign currency.

(8) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing IRES

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ELAA(E1F)

Over 1 year but within 1FE2F(52%F)
2 years (inclusive)

Over 2 years but within 2FEEIF(E3F)
3 years (inclusive)

Over 3 years 3EME

Sub-total NET

Less: Provision for bad W AR

and doubtful debts

Total A&t

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

160 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&adtH REFIRTRHER AT

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

5 HtbfEKR
(1) EtpRUGIZERIDITT

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——fF

- 55,179
5,108,277 12,914,849

5,108,277 12,970,028

4,132,565 4,132,565

975,712 8,837,463

(2) M 2013512 831 B K 20124
12 A381 H » NEBEINEE A

Q) EAtEYRFIZARE AT

2013 2012
=5 —E——fF
964,808 5,284,968
6,094 3,546,967
3,000 5,528
4,134,375 4,132,565
5,108,277 12,970,028
4,132,565 4,132,565
975,712 8,837,463

BRil B HAth B YRR R B AR R

Al e
Oal = °



V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

5 Other receivables (cont’d)
(4) Other receivables by category:

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)

(BRI - 2 BB AT

I AfMBEREREE(|)

5 HERK (&)
(4) EAdfEYIRm iR ER

Note
Category (L it
Indlvidlually significant and EEGEEAUER
assessed individually AHEEREEN
for impairment E bR )
Note
Category (1 it
Indlividlually significant and EEGEEATER
assessed individually SHEEREEN
for impairment E bR ()

2013
—B-=f
Provision for bad
Carrying amount and doubtful debts
IRERE IBARERR

Percentage Percentage

Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 LBl (%) &f LLB (%)

4,132,565 100%

4,132,565 100%

2012
—T——fF
Provision for bad
Carrying amount and doubtful debts
RERE BRER
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
i S0 (%) x| 051 %)
4,132,565 100% 4,132,565 100%

(6) During the year ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.

(5) M 2013412 A 31 H K% 20124
12 A31 8 - AEERBKE
HEILAFER 2B ARK
Lt B 51 42 5 B 2E s | L Ath B UK

o
N

—Z—=#£3 Annual Report 2013 161



PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) - 3
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial I SHMBEERAEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
5 Other receivables (cont’d) 5 HthpEWEk (&)

(6) As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, (6) 2013412 H 31 H K& 20124
there is no amount due from shareholder entities 12 431 B » NEBE E TR
holding 5% or more shares in the Company in the FRERENAI5% (55%) A E
other receivables balance. FORERR DRI RER BN ©

6 Inventories 6 &
(1) Inventories by category: (1) ZES4E
2013 2012

ZB-cF —T_F

Provision for Provision for

diminution diminution
Book invalueof  Carrying Book invalue of Carrying
value inventories amount value  inventories amount
ltem FERA FERE HEEF KEEE FEgE KEEE  REEE
Raw materials Rt 28,057,962 - 28,057,962 29,992,415 - 29,992,415
Finished goods ERHm 846,642,522 - 846,642,522 904,926,447 - 004,926,447
Total H 874,700,484 - 874,700,484 934,918,862 - 934,918,862
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

6 Inventories (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BFFFIFFHIS) - £REEBARE

I AfMBEREREE(|)

6 =FE (&)

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

Carrying amount:

At 1 January 2012
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2012

Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2013

7 Other current assets

[tem

Input VAT recoverable

Q) FREAFEZGERITIT

Raw Finished

materials goods Total
B##E EFER &
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARETL ARET
REEE
R20126F1 A1H 36,846,640 787,583,174 824,429,814
AEEIN 973,994,780 1,008,720,148 1,982,714,928
KERD (980,849,005) (891,376,375) (1,872,225,880)
R2012%12 A 318 29,992,415 904,926,447 934,918,862
AEHEIN 507,313,389 651,789,593 1,159,102,982
KERD (509,247,842) (710,073,518) (1,219,321,360)
R2013%12 A31H 28,057,962 846,642,522 874,700,484
7 EREEE

2013 2012
15 B —E—Z=5 —EF——F
R ERI IR 88,282,300 93,959,854
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B %5 R 2k Y &E
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)
8 Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term equity investments by category:

ltem 15 H
Investment in a joint venture HELNRMIRE
Investment in an associate HEEE QRN E
Sub-total NE
Less: Provision for impairment W B
Total A&t

(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

SHUMBEERAEERE(E)
8 RERERE
(1) RERERESFEWT -

2013 2012
== —F——F
57,569,260 58,276,941
= 62,598,574
57,569,260 120,875,515
57,569,260 120,875,515

@ EMEERERNFEHERD

year are as follows: T
2013 —T-=FF
Book value of long-term equity investment
RHRERREARE
at1 atd1  Shareholding
Investment January Increase/  December percentage
cost 2013 Decrease 2013 (%)
EHRE
W13E 13 Rk
Investee HRERL BEns 1818 BAgE  12RNE JA (%)
Equity method-joint venture EaE-2E0T
Yanta Tong Beverage Industes Co, Ld. ReGHRHTEERDT 50000000 56276941 (107681) 57,569,260 50%
Eouity methoc-associate Bt -BEL
Yantai Andre Pectin Co, Lid. RazEHRBRAERAR 33080000 62508574 (62598,574) - -
Tot &t 83080000 10875515 6330625 57,569,260

164 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH RERETRHERLDF

Voting rights Cash
percentage dividend
(%) forthe year
EHRR
i
RO $ERRAH

50% 6,750,000

6,750,000




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

B R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

(G52 H5) » 2EREL BARKE

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

8 REKREIRE(H)
@ EHMBRERERNFEEHIE)

year are as follows: T -
2012 ——FE
Book valug oflong-tem equity investment
REREREEARE
atf a3l Shaehodng  Vofingrights Cash
Ivestment January Increase/ Decomber ~ percenfage  percentage dhidend
0ost 012 Decrease 2012 (%) (o) fortheyear
ke ke
012 PAIHES Bk EgE
Investes HiREEN RERA 1A18 EHg 1A% 36 ) ihG)  AERSAH
Fouity method-jintventure Eait-RELT
Yantai Tongl Beverage Industies Co,, L. RAEATHTZERAA 000000 56760753 1516188 5827641 50% 5% 6000000
Equiy method-associats ERE-BEDN
Yantai Andre Pectin Co, Lt BeErRERNERAT BB 60560279 20825 62508574 189% 1895% -
Totd ait 83000000 17321032 3554483 120875515 6,000,000

The Group held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre
Pectin Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group previously.
The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China
Enterprise Co., Ltd. on 26 September 2013. After the
completion of the transfer, the Group ceased owning
any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

R RENRBRGBRAQF
RRAEEBE NG A&
] R #5 A% bE ) /218.95% © 72
2013F9A26H + A & @&
ERERENRBRODAR LD
A]18.95% # zx T DSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise
Co., Ltd.  REZEEEHETE
& AEBTBEAEARE
MRBIRDB R A BHE s °
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(BHFIEEAs) - 2R EM B ARKET)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(8) Details of major joint ventures and associates

2013

Name of Investee

Joint venture
Yantai Tongl Beverage Industries Co., Lid.

2012

Name of Investee

Joint venture

Yantai Tongf Beverage Industries Co, Lid.
Associae

Yantal Andre Pectin Co,, Lid.

BRRELER

BERENAR

o>

£

B
Al
5
N
A

=

fi

HHIZARAA

M/L\\*

AR ZEHRBHIERAA

B
pe=il}
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I AfMBEREREE(|)

8 RERERE(H)

Total assets ~ Total liabilities

attheend
of the year
N3E
12R31A
HERg

121,810,020

Totalassefs
attheend
of the year
0105
12R31R
BELE

121,307,872

794,424,689

=%

attheend  attheend
oftheyear of the year
2013% 019§
2B  12R%A
REHE  BREEE

6,671,500 115,138,520

—E——F

Total liabiftes Net assets

attheend attheend
oftheyear  ofthe year

0128 005
28318 12R31A
AlgE  AEEE

4843090 116,953,882

464043529 330,381,360

Net assets Total operating

income
for the year

FEER
BARE

145,707,475

Total operating
income
forthe year

rEgR
Lok

149,342,804

4782448

Q) EERLENRAMBERRER

Net profit
for the year

L33

BHE

12,084,638

Net proft
for the year

14912376

10,757,665



V Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREEEEE)
statements (cont’d)

9 Fixed assets 9 BEEEE
(1) Fixed assets (1) BlEEEIER
Office &
Plant& Machinery & other Motor
Buildings  equipment  equipment Vehicles Total
RER NG|
ftem ER BEY  BERG REMEE 2 E8IR &t
Cost FfE
At1 January 2012 201251818 457,584,195 776,261,119 19,086,987 12,070,801 1,265,003,102
Additions during the year AEEM 2,684,325 14,973,085 935,766 511877 19,105,033
Transfer from construction
in progress ERIREA 8711227 2,506,304 - - 6217531
Disposal during the year RERD - (8,100622) - (501,712)  (8,602,334)
At 31 December 2012 2012512431 F 463979747 785639866 20,022,753  12,080966 1,281,723,332
At1 January 2013 01351418 463979747 785639866 20,022,753  12,080966 1,281,723,332
Adations during the year AEEM 8,158,078 30,089,608 1701229 173,143 40,122,058
Transfer from construction
in progress HRIREA 6,149,024 817,704 - 6,966,728
Disposal during the year TERD (23206006) (25223091)  (120,108) (1,219,895  (49,770,000)
At 31 December 2013 2013512431 F 455,079,943 791324087 21603874 11034214 1279,042,118
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

9 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d)

ftem JEH
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2012 20121 A 18
Charge for the year AEGHR
Decrease for the year REFD
At 31 December 2012 2012612 A31H
At1 January 2013 01351418
Charge for the year AEGHE
Decrease for the year RERD
At 31 December 2013 2013%12A31H
Carrying amounts REER
At 31 December 2013 2013512 A31H
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H

I AfMBEREREE(|)

9 EIEEE (&)

(1) BIEEEIG (%)

Office &
Plant& Machinery & other Motor

Buildings  equipment  equipment Vehicles Total

RER NG
BEYM  BBRG RAMEE 2 ERIR )
(97,007,351) (389,707,228)  (14,475430)  (8,728,999) (509,919,008)
(9,798,507)  (28,509,368)  (1,360,317) (939,327)  (40,607,519)
4,397,330 451,541 4,848 871
(106,805,858) (413,819,266)  (15,835,747)  (9,216,785) (645,677,656)
(106,805,858) (413,819,266)  (15,835,747)  (9,216,785) (645,677,656)
(10692,743)  (23,069,820)  (1,156,999) (746,270)  (35,565,828)
448548 11,210,713 88,146 1,078,285 16,862,629
(112913,116) (425,678,373)  (16,904,596)  (8,884,770) (564,380,855)
342,166,827 365,645,714 4,699,278 2,149,444 714,661,263
357173889 371820600 4,187,006 2,864,181 736,045,676

As at 31 December 2013, fixed assets with
restrictions placed on the Group’s ownership were
RMB67,090,361 (2012: RMB100,349,268), see Note

V.14,
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BFFFIFFHIS) - £REEBARE

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

9 Fixed assets (cont’d)

@

©

“

)

Temporarily idle fixed assets or fixed assets held for
sale at the end of the year

No fixed assets were temporarily idled or held for sale
as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

No fixed assets were acquired under finance leases as
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

No fixed assets were leased out under operating
leases as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012.

Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,

no fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership
were existed in the Group.

B R

I AfMBEREREE(|)

9 EIEEE (&)

Q) EHREMEERERNT

7 20134F 12 A 31 H & 20124
1231 H ' "EBESEKNEE
FENEHBEENETEE -

(3) BB E T EAA M EE & E
=i
2018412 4381 H k20124
12A31 8  AEEERERE
HARBEEEE -

(4) B ETETA L B E BE
20183412 H31 B k20124
12A31 8 - AEEELEHE
HHMEEEE o

(6) KPR EEEZEZENETEES
7z
7R 20183F 12 A 31 H & 20124
12 431 H » NEBERMNZE
EEENETEERBNR °

—Z—=#£3 Annual Report 2013 169



B1 76 35 % [ 3T

(RPN - 2 BHEBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

10 Construction in progress
(1) Construction in progress

Project
Sewage treatment project

Fruit pulp workshop construction
Others

Total

EE

AKEELE
RRERER
it

AL
Ha

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

I AfMBEREREE(|)

10 £EZTR
(1) EEIEEX
2013 2012

-3-zf I-If
Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying
Book value  impairment amount Book value impairment amount
BERH HEES IERE REAE HiEER FHEE
296,409 - 296,409 2,637,542 - 2,637,542
1,515,854 - 1515854 - - ;
122,389 - 122,389 367,434 = 367,434
1,934,652 - 1,934,652 3,004,976 = 3,004,976

(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress

during the year

2013 a3
Project ER

Sewage treatment projct FRRELE
Fruit pp workshop constuction RREERR
(Offe buiding renovation FARRE
Others A

Tot ait

Budget

LU

6,000,000

2,400,000

1,000,000

500,000

@) BEXEZITIEELZHIEN

Percentage

At Addtions  Transferto At3t  ofactual

1 January during fixed Other  December ~ costto

018 theyear assets  decreases 2013 budget (%)

IERA

0135 KEHL PUIKE S |

1B1R #%En  BRRE  RMRY  2RMR  HAM

2037542 3324018 (5605,151) - 296409 95%

1,515,854 - - 151585 63%

989)927 (989)927) = = 100%

37434 06,605  (311,650) - 123 5%
3004976 5806404 (6,966,728) - 1934652
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Project

progress

IEEE

%%

68%

100%

5%

Sources

of funds

ReAR

Intemal funding
EREE
Intemal funcing
BRRE
Intemal funding
EREL
Intemal funding

HAAS



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicate
(BRHFFIFTRS) - REE BA RET

ol
V Notes to the consolidated financial i M BEERBEEHIEGE)
statements (cont’d)
10 Construction in progress (cont’d) 10 EE IR (8)
(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress Q) EXFEEILIEEAZEEL
during the year (cont’d) (&)
Percentage
At Addiions  Transferto A3t ofachd
1 January during fixed Other ~ December costto Project Sources
Budget 012 {he year assets  decreases 012 budget(e)  progress of funds
IERA
02 FIf 0% REEA ME  KEE
Projet | BEE 1018 AEEM EREE BRE)  0ANA AR TEER EEHR
Sewage treaiment project RRELE 2800000 3728 2300269 = - 2637582 9% %% Intemal funding
BRES
Frut pulp workshop construction S EH 2200000 2,142,634 - 214263 = = 100% 100% Intemal funding
RS
(Offoe buing renovation HARRE 1400000 1,400,076 - - (1400076 - 100% 100%  Intemal funding
BRES
Others 1) 5000000 808324 3634007  (4074897) - e 8% 8%% Intemal funding
BRES
Tot S 48307 S 6275 (1400076 3004876
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

11 Intangible assets

Cost
At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
Decrease for the year

At 31 December 2012
At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Decrease for the year
At 31 December 2013
Accumulated amortization

At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
Decrease for the year
At 31 December 2012
At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year

Decrease for the year

At 31 December 2013

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

RfE
201241 1 H
AR
AERD

201212 A31 H
201341 A1H
LN
AR A
2013412 A31 H
BT

201241 A1H
REFHE
I A
2012412 A 31 H
201341 A1 H
REFHE
AR

20183512 H31H

RHEEE
2013412 A31H

2012412 31 H

172 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH ZERETRHERD T

11 BREE

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

Land use rights

i ERE

101,885,502

101,885,502

101,885,502
2,889,945

(9,814,248)

94,961,199

(13,281,431)
(2,309,207)

(15,590,638)

(15,590,638)
(2,402,129)

2,150,958

(15,841,809)

79,119,390

86,294,864




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(BIESIES)  2FELBARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

11 Intangible assets (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 all
of the Group’s land use rights are held in the PRC on
medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2013, intangible assets used by the
Group as mortgage for bank loans was RMB5,363,262
(2012: RMB12,723,668), refer to Note V.14.

R S

I AfMBEREREE(|)

11 BREE (8)

R2013F12 A31 B K 2012412
A31H - RREMA T AER
RERFEA o

2013412 A31 B Kk 20124 12
A31H - AREEFEEREER
FEREAERERFE

M2013F 12 31 B » AEEIKA
REF & E A AR 5,363,262 7T
(20124F : 12,723,668) * & B MizE

140
12 Goodwill 12 BE
Provision
Balance at Additions Decrease  Balanceat  impairment
1 January during during 31 December attheend
2013 the year the year 2013 oftheyear
20135 013 X
Name of investee HERENZR 1A18 331 FERY  12B%1H HEER
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R EHR R ERAR 1,020,683 - - 1020683 -
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. KEZEHZHTERAR 4,566,203 - - 4566293 -
Tota ast 5,586,076 - - 5586976 -
Provision
Balance at Addtions Decrease Balance at impairment
1 January during during 31 December attheend
2012 the year the year 2012 of the year
012% N10% £X
Name of Investee HRAENLR 1618 REEN AERS  12831H TEEE
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. BeENRENRHRARAR 1,020,683 - - 1020683 -
Yongji Andre Juice Co,, Ltd. KEZENRARAT 4,566,203 = - 4566293 =
Total ait 5,586,976 - - 5586976 -
—Z—=#%% Annual Report 2013 173
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

12 Goodwill (cont’d)

(1)

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 20083.
The goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash consideration of
RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The goodwill represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Impairment test for asset groups containing goodwill
The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill is
recognised is Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
and Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
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I AfMBEREREE(|)

12 HE (&)
(1) 7 & B 7 2003 F % i A R &

32,035,810 7T Y B Al AN Wi g T
a0 RERNRTHRABR
NEIMRE R - WIEK AN B iRR
LE RIS B MR & 38 H 222 R
TRBERARAHREE
BEANBENEZEAERAAS
BEOZEANRAKEBRAR]
MERERREE o

AEBR20MEXZIFARYE
56,201,585 LU BB AR A e i 7
KBREFREGATERAAN
e B AR B IR &
BEKEREMNRETAERA
AIRBREE AEAREE
B E RS KB RN REOT
BRARHENEE -
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AEERE R Ll E AR
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RARBBR AR SOKBE RIS
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

12 Goodwill (cont’d)

R S

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(BIESIES)  2FELBARKET)

I AfMBEREREE(|)

12%3&@

The recoverable amount of Yantai Longkou Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. and Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. is
determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows. The present value of expected
future cash flows was projected based on the next
five-year financial forecast approved by management
and a pre-tax discount rate of 5.0% (2012: 5.4%).
The cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period
were assumed to be stable. Based on the estimated
recoverable amount, no impairment loss was
recognised. The key assumptions used are subject
to change. Management believes that any adverse
change in the assumptions would cause the carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used in the present value of
expected future cash flows of Yantai Longkou Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. and Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
included gross profit margin and sales quantity, which
were determined by management based on past
performance.

RaEORERNRATHREBR
@ﬂﬂxﬁ ERRETHR
AT AT UL B £ 58 LA FE 5T R 2R
REREREN T EEE ° K
SEREBEEERBHENRAR
5 B 75 FE B F15.0% (2012
F 1 5.4%) B BT IT IR K FE AT 7%
BEANAKRBESREERE -
BBSFHBBE 2B FEHH
ReEMEYBRIRFEE °
HO W E S EATERT & RIZ
BERERRMEBERK - B
ZEEMAARKRBERERER
KENBRBRETESHENR
B EEERSNIRBERBR

BAEBEEE  ARTREEFEAR
ARKEREEEBRBEAKE
SH -

HPEEREORBMNRAHKHE
RARMKEZIEMREAE
RAREARKRRERERE
METEHRA T EMXRMHER
EFRERER - EEERE
BEHMEZAHELIEREE
AR
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

13 Deferred tax assets
(1) Recognised deferred tax assets

ltem R
Provision for bad and doubtful debts ERER
Others i
Total At

(2) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

ltem HE
Deductible tax losses AR INESE
Total A&t

176 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH ZEFETRAERQ

I AfMBEREREE(|)

13 EEFSHERE

(1) EREBAELA 7 EE

2013 2012
-E-Z% -2z
Deductible Deductible
of taxable of taxable
temporary Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax
differences assets differences assets
ENER BERE AENEE BTG
HER HaE i HaE
- - 4,132,565 1,033,141
- - 99,280 24,820
- - 4,231,845 1,067,961

Q) RIEBLELHTFHEE B

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E—C—F
35,196,885 36,145,744
35,196,885 36,145,744




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

13 Deferred tax assets (cont’d)

(38) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised

deferred tax assets

Year

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Total

14 Restricted assets

20134
2014 4F
20154
2016 4F
2017 F
20184F

As at 31 December 2013, the assets with restrictions

placed on their ownership were as follows:

[tem

Assets pledged as collateral
— Cash at bank and on hand
— Fixed assets

- Intangible assets

Total

J5H

ARERNEE
-5%4%
-BEEEE
-BYEE

R S

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(BIESIES)  2FELBARKET)

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

13 EEFREHEE ()
(3) R IEFELFHEE AT

HIE B2 B 187
2013 2012
—=—=5 —F——F
= 4,019,613
11,390,356 11,390,356
4,927,592 4,927,592
13,798,356 13,798,356
2,009,827 2,009,827
3,070,754 =
35,196,885 36,145,744

14 FTERESZIRFINEE
MR2013F12 318 FiE#ESE|
REINEEBRIT

Balance at Additions Decrease  Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year theyear  of the year

Note iz FAEAE ARELEM KERD FXEH
Vi f1 28284813 - (18,929,827 9,354,986
V9 @9 100,349,268 - (33,258,907) 67,090,361
VAt f11 12,723,668 - (7,360,400) 5,363,262
141,357,749 - (69,549,140) 81,808,609

Assets pledged for the loans are the cash at bank and on
hand. Assets mortgaged for the loans with mortgage are

the fixed assets and intangible assets.

HAEBESARERER  BE
BENMETEERNERIRER o

—E-cEER
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

15 Short-term loans

ltem
|
Annual interest rate
FFE
Loans secured by mortgage ~ AHBE 6.30%
Credit Loans ERER 5.80%~6.72%
Credit Loans ERER 3.15%
Guaranteed loans RERR 6.00%~6.30%
Guaranteed loans REBfER LIBOR+4.50%
Pledged loans ERfa COF+2.25%~COF+3.00%
Total =
[tem
R
Annual interest rate
FF%
Loans secured by mortgage R 6.00%~6.14%
Credit Loans BRER 6.00%
Credit Loans ERER COF+2.50%/LIBOR+3.75%
Guaranteed loans RERER 6.16%
Pledged loans BEEFR  LIBOR+2.50%-LIBOR+2.66%

o)
E=111
sir

Total

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
Group has no expired outstanding short-term loans.

For the information of assets related to pledged loans and
loans secured by mortgage, refer to Note V.14.

For the information of guaranteed loans, refer to Note VI.6.
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Currency

RMB AE#
RMB A K%
USDRTT
RMB AE#
USDRT
USDRTT

Currency

%E

RMB AR
RMB AR H
USDETT
RMB AR
USDETT

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

15 EHEF

2013
=&

Principal Exchange rate RMB
R%eR HHEE  ARREE

- - 50,000,000
- - 104,518,659
5,121,625 6.0969 31,226,036
- - 440,773,190
3,002,420 6.0969 18,305,457
4,500,000 6.0969 27,436,050
672,259,392

2012

—ET——F

Principal  Exchange rate RMB

ki nEEX  AREEH

= = 90,000,000

= = 20,000,000
17,000,000 6.2855 106,863,500
30,000,000

8,000,000 6.2855 50,284,000

297,137,500

M 20134%12 A31 B & 20124 12
A318 @ AEBEEDIHAEEN
EHEAfERK -

BB RER BB ARE
HEEHFEENER %ﬁﬁﬁa
A 140

ERREAERNELS 2R
N 6o



Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

16 Accounts payable
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no
amount due to shareholders who hold 5% or more of the
voting rights of the Company is included in the closing
balance of accounts payable.

17 Advances from customers
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no
amount due to shareholders who hold 5% or more of the
voting rights of the Company is included in the closing
balance of advances from customers.

18 Employee benefits payable

kil

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

16 BRI
M 20134 12 A31 A K 2012412
A318 - ERERRGERRRER e
B RE5%(55%) A LR RHE
%153 9 A% 3R B3 ok A S 5 RO ROH o

17 FEWRFRIE
A 20134 12 A31 B K 2012412
A318 - FBYERFRERRE P TR
BRA5%(E5%) LA _EFRAERD
B A% BR B8 (7 3k B BGE 7 ORI o

18 FETHY T 37 A

2013 =%
Balance at Accrued Paid Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2013 the year the year 2013
20135 2013%
Item RE 1B18 FEEmM FERYD 12A31H
Salaries, bonuses, allowances T% - %% 2BAEES 3,146,466 32,839,852  (33,202,814) 2,783,504
Staff welfare BIGHE 12,617,568 2,002,822 (1,514,862) 13,105,528
Social insurance HeRRE 7,646,820 4,955923  (12,602,749) =
Including: Medical insurance Heb: BERRE 1,828,757 1,185,222 (3,013,979) -
Pension insurance EXEZRRE 4,833,146 3,132,374  (7,965,520) -
Unemployment insurance RERRE 436,289 282,761 (719,050) -
Work-related injury insurance IEREE 287,376 186,249 (473,625) -
Matemnity insurance EERIRE 261,252 169,317 (430,569) -

Labour union fee and staff and

workers' education fee TeRBNBIHELE - 121,177 (121,177) =
Total At 23,410,854 39919774  (47,441,506) 15,889,032
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)

2012

ltem

Salaries, bonuses, allowances
Staff welfare

Social insurance

Including: Medical insurance

Pension insurance
Unemployment insurance

Work-related injury insurance

Maternity insurance

Labour union fee and staff and

workers’ education fee

Total

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the Group has no payment in arrears in the balance of

employee benefits payable.

AR

TE %% RENEH

BTN

HeRRE

A% EERRE
LARERRR
RRRRR
THERRE
BB

TEEEIBIHEIEE

At
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I AfMBEREREE(|)

18 FEATHE TH M (80

—T——F
Balance at Accrued Paid Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2012 the year the year 2012
20124 20124
1A1H ARESEN RERD 12A318
273,562 33,215,082 (30,342,128) 3,146,466
11,251,919 9,366,983 (8,001,334) 12,617,568
3,882,007 7,865,864 (4,101,051) 7,646,820
928,392 1,881,143 (980,778 1,828,757
2,453,609 4,971,591 (2,592,054) 4,833,146
221,488 448,787 (233,986) 436,289
145,890 295,608 (154,122) 287,376
132,628 268,735 (140,111) 261,252
135,210 221,500 (356,710) -
15,542,698 50,669,379  (42,801,223) 23,410,854

R20134F12 A31 B Kk20124 12
A31H  AEEEMETHMN+ &
HEREERFE -



V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

19 Taxes payable

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(RIS - 2FELTBARKET)

ltem HH
Corporate income tax EEFTFH
Land use tax TR A
Value added tax EEN
Stamp duty ENTERE
Property tax BEM

City maintenance and construction tax YT AR R A
Education surcharges #E B
Individual income tax (EPNGIES
Others EAh,

Total =

20 Dividends payable

Name of investor
B LT

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

RS

SHMERRAEEEE)
19 EXBE
2013 2012
—EB—=%F —F——F
12,014,350 20,461,344
236,580 3,348,011
19,117,644 2,654,443
20,240 2,255,342
108,290 1,131,612
(28,336) 284,831
(28,336) 202,464
24,334 16,028
= 201,950
31,464,766 30,556,025
20 FEfFRRFI
2013 2012
—E—= T —F
= 1,545,319

21

The Group did not have individual or significant dividends
payable denominated in the foreign currency as at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Other payables

Other payables due to shareholders who hold 5% or
more of the voting rights of the Company in the current
reporting period are as follows:

MR 20134%12 A31 B & 20124 12
A318 » ANEBEERIEARINE
IZRA FET AR A o

21 HAFETRR

ARFEEMENRPFERTS%(E
5% ) LA ERAIEND MR R B (1B
P

2013 2012
Name e == —E——fF
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. IWRZENEEER AR - 140,739,571
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

22 Non-current liabilities due within one year
(1) Non-current liabilities due within one year by category
are as follows:

ltem I5H

Long-term loans due
within one year

(2) Long-term loans due within one year

2013
—2-=5
Annual
interest rate Currency
Item 1EH FHE e
Credit loans M5 LIBOR+3.75% E
2012
T
Annual
interest rate Currency
Item 1BE FH=E ey
Credit loans fERER LIBOR+3.75% usb
X
Guaranteed loans ~ REBER 6.15% RMB
AR

Total BET

For the information of guaranteed loans, refer to Note
VI.6.
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—FRIHNRBER

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

22 —FREPHFERBDEE
(1) —FRIABNERBAERBR

LUl
2013 2012
—Z—=F —T——F
22,863,375 151,427,500

@ —FARIENRIER

Exchange
Principal rate RMB
R¥#eH HHAEE AR%e#E
3,750,000 6.0969 22,863,375
Exchange
Principal rate RMB
RE©H nEEX ARESHE
5,000,000 6.2855 31,427,500
- - 120,000,000

161,427,500

BRREERNER - 2RW
AN



statements (cont’d)

23 Long-term loans

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(RIS - 2FELTBARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no long-term

|oans.

Long-term loans as at 31 December 2012 by category are

as follows:

2012

—T——F

[tem 1BH
Credit loan ERER

24 Long-term payables

[tem
Amount payables in relation to

acquisition of fixed assets and
intangible assets

25 Share capital

2013 —E-=f%
Total shares EE
RVB N %
2012 it 3
Total shares EE
RVB N %2

RS

23 REER

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

2013512 A31 H  AREEK
HAfERK -
M20126F12 318 - REMERS
BT
Annual Exchange

interest rate Currency Principal rate RMB
FHI= e [REe8 nEEX AR¥EEH
LIBOR+3.75% usD 3,750,000 6.2855 23,570,625

ETT

24 BRI

2013 2012
pef= == —E——fF

HEBETEEN

B EENER
e FRIE 655,420 655,420

25 A
Changes during the year (+/-)
FEEEERE

Balance at Issue of Balance at
the beginning new Share  Purchase of the end
of the year shares consolidation  own shares Sub-total  of the year
FO8RE BfTHR RiaH ERER R it FXBE
4,089,880,000 - (3,680,892,000) - (3,680,892,000) 408,988,000
408,988,000 - - - - 408,988,000
4,265,536,000 - - (175,656,000) - 4,089,880,000
426,553,600 - - (17,565,600) - 408,988,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(RPN - 2 FHEBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

25 Share capital (cont’d)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 28 June
2011 and approvals from relevant government authorities,
the Company repurchased 175,656,000 shares of its own
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
at a cash consideration of HKD59,399,285 (equivalent
to RMB48,715,890) from 20 February 2012 to 31 May
2012. The repurchased shares were cancelled and the
share capital of the Company was reduced by the par
value of the cancelled shares. Upon the share capital
reduction, the total number of shares decreased from
4,265,536,000 shares to 4,089,880,000 shares with a par
value of RMBO0.10 each and the Company’s shares capital
changed from RMB426,553,600 to RMB408,988,000.
Yantai Tian Luxin Certified Public Accountants verified the
above share capital reduction, and issued Yan Tian Lu Xin
Kuai Yan Zi (2012) No. 147 capital verification reports on
16 October 2012.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 June
2012 and approvals from relevant government authorities,
the Company consolidated every ten shares with a par
value of RMB0.10 each into one consolidated share with
a par value of RMB1.00 on 28 January 2013. Upon the
share consolidation, the total number of shares changed
from 4,089,880,000 shares with a par value of RMBO0.10
each to 408,988,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital remained at
RMB408,988,000.
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A AfMBEREEEE(R)

25 IR7 (&)

RIER2011F6 A28 HBFRMEA
FREARE RADNG 2 HAREZEHE
ABFEB A ZERIRERE AN Z @A
RERLAEBTREHE - 8
201242 A20 B £ 201245 A 31
H - AR AILAES 559,309,285 7%
TL(FHER AR 48,715,890 )
BEBMERXSARAREF EE
175,656,000 B A% 7 o P71 B A% 17
BEUES - ARRBRBITRAIRZSE
RDHEEREER - BE®% A
AE & A 4B 5 R 426,553,600 7T
AL ZE 408,988,000 7T * X R E
RaRENARE TSRS
5aE - w2012 10 A16 BHA
TR 8T (2012) 147 5%

RIER 201246 A26 B A FHHE
FRERERARE ZHRKHEE
BARFEBEAZENRERSE
B2 RBRREBEATHE 24
B RARK20134 1 A28 H #
B+-REeEREEARKI0OTZ
BoOoeHAE—REREEARE
1.00TC 2 & IR - &R D1E -
KA A Ak 7R 42 78 B3 4,089,880,000
P& % ¥ = 408,988,000 A% © FALE
B1.007T - AMEERMAEARE
408,988,000 7T °



statements (cont’d)

26 Capital reserve

2013
—E—-=F
ltem

Share premiums

Foreign currency translation

Total

2012
—T——4F
[tem

Share premiums

Foreign currency translation

Total

V Notes to the consolidated financial

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

26 EARAM
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
! e EFRmM XERD FXREE
BRARE 112,385,840 - - 112,385,840
INERR AT E =5 9,926 - - 9,926
G 112,395,766 - - 112,395,766
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during atthe end
of the year the year the year of the year
2R FAEAER REEM RERD FREAT
BRARE 143,536,130 - 31,150,290 112,385,840
INERATEZH 9,926 - - 9,926
A&t 143,546,056 - 31,150,290 112,395,766
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186 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

27 Surplus reserve

2013
t S

[tem
Statutory surplus reserve

General reserve fund
Enterprise expansion fund

Total

2012
—ET——F

[tem
Statutory surplus reserve

General reserve fund
Enterprise expansion fund

Total

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

B H

EERBATE
TRERES

BH

EEBBRATE
EEEES
EBERES

RELHZEFNRTROBRAF

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

27 BBRA®
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
EMRE IR ERIBH
107,575,994 3,083,175 110,659,169
29,721,231 - 29,721,231
29,721,231 - 29,721,231
167,018,456 3,083,175 170,101,631
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FUIRER ANFIE N FRERER
104,859,044 2,716,950 107,575,994
25,075,569 4,645,662 29,721,231
25,075,569 4,645,662 29,721,231
155,010,182 12,008,274 167,018,456




28 Retained earnings

ltem

At 1January 2012
Add : Net profits for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company
Less : Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Appropriation for staff bonus and welfare fund
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2012

At 1January 2013
Add : Net profits for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company
Less : Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2013

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

H

201261 R18

n: AEFRREAT

BN R
B RREHRLE

RRBTIRBRENES

RO

2012412 431 H

20131 R18

n: AERRREAT

FrEEM R
B RRBHLE
R

2013%12 431 H

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

28 K7 BLFH
Appropriation or
Note Amount distribution rate
it &8 RO AHELAH
663,563,068
110,906,208
12,008,274 14%
1,858,269 1%
20,449,400
740,153,333
740,153,333
127,529,640
3,083,175 10%
() 20,449,400
2 844,150,398
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

28 Retained earnings (cont’d)

(1)

Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared
during the year

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the
shareholders’ general meeting on 26 June 2013, a
cash dividend of RMB0.05 per share was declared
and paid to the Company’s shareholders, the final
amount of cash dividend paid to shareholders
amounted to RMB20,449,400.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the
shareholders’ general meeting on 26 June 2012, a
cash dividend of RMBO0.005 per share was declared
to the Company’s shareholders. From 20 February
2012 to 31 May 2012, the Company repurchased and
cancelled 175,656,000 shares of its own shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Because
of the share capital reduction, the final amount of
cash dividend paid to shareholders amounted to
RMB20,449,400.

Retained earnings at the end of the year

Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2013 and
attributable to the Company is RMB8,804,989 (2012:
RMB11,539,442).

As at 31 December 2013, the consolidated retained
earnings attributable to the Company included
an appropriation of RMB92,129,265 (2012:
RMB83,324,276) to surplus reserve made by the
Company’s subsidiaries.
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A AfMBEREEEE(R)

28 KRB AR (&)
(1) DR E BT

R #2013F6 A26 B It ] K
SHHE - AR R A TR
REIRER S BRF - F/RA
K#0057 " ARA Al MRE®
% A% Bk 2% 35 € IR B A R 8
20,449,400 7T °

B #E20124F 6 A26 H i R K
SHHE - ANAF R TR
RIRBRESRF - FRARE
0.0057C ° B201242 A20H
E2012%F5 A31 H » AARR
EAMAERIFERAAE
4 5t B8 [81 175,656,000 A% P& 1
W)ErsH - AREIEETERS
2525 IR0 B E B AR FEE R ©
SEREIERNE - ANAFRE
BRI SR B IR S IR A A R
20,449,400 7T °

@ FRARDECABEEFHA

FRAIAFERERDMN G ERE
RAMBBABERARK
8,804,989 7T (20124F : ARE
11,639,442 7T) °

HZE2013F12 310 » A&
ERBRIARKN KD EFH
FEETARANTARRR
M EHATEARY 92,129,265
To(20124F © AR83,324,276
7T) e




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

29 Operating income and operating costs
Operating income and operating costs
ltem HH
Operating income from principal activities ES—E 9 ION
Other operating income H A ZEBUIA

Operating costs RN

Turnover primarily represents income arising from the
sales of condensed juice net of value added tax.

Other operating income primarily represents income
arising from the sales of packaging materials and so on.

30 Business taxes and surcharges

ltem 2013 2012
EE —E-C§ “T-C-F

City maintenance and construction tax

R 2,882,523 3,109,879
Education surcharges

BB 2,388,313 2,613,510
Price adjustment fund
ERBHES 177,251 416,752
Foundation for water works
KMEHRES 314,851 366,096
Total
CH 5,762,938 6,506,237

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisateJd__%‘_ _.

(BHFIL5)  REMRARETE)

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

20 BRI - BERA
BRI - BERA

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——fF

887,810,436  1,220,180,354
5,637,490 5,344,736
(713,404,255)  (972,630,524)

TEEBBAREAEENRER
TRABREMRBEERA -

HEBBAERIERREDEN#
WA -

30 EXBiE KM

Taxation basis and rates

sHEIRE

1% 5% * 7% of business tax and VAT paid
BMBERREEHN1% 5% 7%

5% of VAT and business tax paid
BUMEER R 2% 5%

0.2% of operating income of liable enterprises
FUELEERWAMN0.2%

1% of business tax and VAT paid of liable enterprises
AL RS AIEER R E E A0 1%
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

31 Selling and distribution expenses

[tem

Freight expenses
Payroll and welfare
Other

Total

32 General and administrative expenses

[tem

Payroll and welfare
Rates and stamp duty
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Repair expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Other services
Other consulting services fees
Other

Total

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BH

T&ERH
EERREER SR &
FrEBMEHEE

s B BEEHEF
FrTAE <

—Far B

—HA RIS

L 5 A ARG B

fib

pius

\|
/i
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SHMERRAEEEE)

31 HEEH
2013 2012
—EB—=%F —F——F
39,784,144 50,076,372
1,292,470 1,637,695
14,456,161 12,971,631
55,532,775 64,585,698

32 EBEHA
2013 2012
—EB—=F —F——F
8,760,658 16,387,615
1,911,537 7,567,788
4,906,312 5,457,848
2,247,609 1,965,118
1,280,000 1,480,000
1,716,000 =
4,389,198 1,925,431
26,110,796 17,957,768
51,322,110 52,741,568




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

33 Financial expenses

[tem
Interest expenses for loans
Interest income from deposits

Net exchange losses
Other financial expenses

Total

34 Impairment losses

[tem

Prepayments

35 Losses from changes in fair value

[tem

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

— losses from changes in fair value for the year

BH

BN B
FROFEHA
HIE R ER
Ry % &R

BH

BRI

EH

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

AR BEH B ELEBHA
o
B 7

HRSENEREE

33 B EH
2013 2012
—EB—=%F —E——F
28,883,261 29,205,850
(1,900,468) (259,423
2,160,247 128,017
282,103 3,381,300
29,425,143 32,455,744
34 EERERLX
2013 2012
—Z—=F ===
- 350,417
35 PAEEEHEX
2013 2012
=% —F——F
(1,870,634)

—AEQRBEEFHEX -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial 1 SHMERREBEE(E)
statements (cont’d)

36 Investment income
(1) Investment income by item

ltem R
Income from long-term equity EmEGER RS
investments accounted for PRI & Yo
using the equity method
Investment income from disposal of RERBRERE
long-term equity investments EERRE N
Investment income from RENRABEGEAE
disposal of financial assets at ZEEr AZHIERN
fair value through profit or loss SREENGHTENE
Total At

(2) For long-term equity investments accounted for using
cost method, the Group had no investment income
from an investee accounted for more than 5% of total
profits, or included in the top five investment income
when the amount accounted for less than 5% of total
profits for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.
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36 BE W=

(1) HEWEDBEEBER
Note 2013 2012
T —E-ZF —E-CF
@) 5,208,958 9,494,483
) 74,201,037 583,501
785,186 2,727,590
80,195,181 12,805,574

(2) R2013FE K2012F[F + A&
B B 1R P A A AR B ) R B AR A
BEW - BERERE LTS
REA5% LA E - BT E 5% 811G
BEWRSEAMRABRIBR -



V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

36 Investment income (cont’d)

(8) For long-term equity investments accounted for using
the equity method, the amount of investment income
from an investee accounts for more than 5% of total
profits or included in the top five investment income
when the amount accounted for less than 5% of total
profits, are as follows:

Investee WA B
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd.

Total A&t

(4) The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. at 26 September 2013 for
a total consideration of RMB135,996,250. After the
completion of the transfer, the Group ceased owning
any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

37 Non-operating income
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

e RENRBENBRAR
RESNEH TEERRA

(BRI - SEELSAREIT)

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

36 RE W ()
Q) g EZENRARERE
Wz - REWERIE R ERE
5% A E - S TEI5% BIGIRE
WS BRI ABNBERLAT

2013 2012

- S —TF
(833,361) 2,038,295
6,042,319 7,456,188
5,208,958 9,494,483

(4) M2013F9H26H + K&
HEASRENRBROBR
‘A7) 18.95% % T DSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise
Co., Ltd.r BREAARK
135,966,250 ° M2 EEE
HETEE  AEETHEAR
BREMNRBROHBERARME
Al MRS ©

37 BEIMRA
(1) BEINKADIBERBERMAT :

Note 2013 2012
ltem IHE s —E—-=%F —E—C—F
Government grants AT ED @) 2,508,571 3,296,087
Arbitration settlement income REFNER UL 25 - 2,302,874
Gains on disposal of non-current assets ~ IERBIE ERR B U 6,935,530 403,026
Others Hib 548,385 939
Total A&t 9,992,486 6,002,926

—Z—=#%4% Annual Report 2013 193




PR R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

37 Non-operating income (cont’d)
(2) Details of government grants

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

37 BEIMEA ()

2013 2012
Item | —B-=¥ B —F
Agriculture grants BER 600,000 =
Science and technology ~ FH%38 B ## 8k
project subsidies 1,339,000 923,800
Subsidized agricultural  BEEFHEEE
loan interest 400,000 2,063,000
Environment protection  BREB{RELEE)
award 60,000 50,000
Others Hit, 109,571 259,287
Total ast 2,508,571 3,296,087

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group received a total of RMB2,508,571 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contribution
to local agriculture industry, local technology
development, local economic development and local
environmental protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group received a total of RMB3,296,087 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contribution
to local technology development, local agriculture
industry, local environmental protection and local
economic development.

194  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&AdtH REFIRTRHER AT

(2) BUFHEBIBAAR

Related to HEE
assets/income  ERIZSAERE

related to income  ERURESAERE

related to income  ERULESHERE

related to income  ERULESHERE

related to income  ERUNESAER
related to assets/ BAZE /WasiEE
income

REZE2013F 12 31 H IEF
B - NEBEWEZ EKRATI6M
LA R# 2,508,571 T LA LE
BEE MR HEMBE
B HEHGOEEEMEE 1
REREZER -

REZE2012F 12 A31 H IEF
& AEEWKEZ @ BT
8L A R#3,296,087 7T LA 12
B EmRRERE  HEHE
X HEHIRIBIRENE E H
KOpERE 2 R o




V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

38 Non-operating expenses

[tem
Penalty expenses

Donations provided
Others

Total

39 Income tax expenses

[tem

Current tax expenses for the year
based on tax law and regulations

Reversal of over-accrued income
tax made in previous years

Changes in deferred tax assets

Total

B H

PR H
H5MERE
Hith

BH

BB RARRRE
AEMEFMEHR

REIARTEFE
ZEHRASH

EEFSHAES

(1) The analysis of changes in deferred tax assets is set

out below:

[tem

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

HH

o

AR R
ERARE D

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)

(BRI 2 BB BT

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

38 BEIHTH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —F=F
1,773 42,644
11,543 192,000
120,250 118,598
133,566 353,242

39 FTiSHER
Note 2013 2012
i —=—=5 —E——F
12,221,813 662,558
(12,754,608) =
(1) 1,057,961 1,270,760
525,166 1,933,318

(1) BEMEHNEESSITAT :

2013 2012
—=—=5 —F——F
1,057,961 1,270,760
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

39 Income tax expenses (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profit is as follows:

ltem HH
Profit before taxation ot AT A
Expected income tax expenses LR R 25% st E 8
at a tax rate of 25% TEEAFTISHL
Add: Tax effect of exemption o R
and relief granted
Tax effect of the difference RATEF AR

in tax rates among the
Company and the subsidiaries

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

39 FREHE M (&)

(2 PTISHE A BT BB E

ERRERERNEE

Tax effect of tax loss of B EBEBRNZE
tax-exempted business

Tax effect of unused tax RNEERARN AT
losses not recognised BB

Reversal of over-accrued income JREIARTF S Z5HE
tax made in previous years FikcTo 2

Others HAt

Income tax expenses NEFMEHER
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AT
2013 2012
=5 —E—fF
128,054,806 112,839,526
32,013,702 28,209,882
(21,867,867) (26,899,045)
600,412 (688,165)
1,610,479 590,385
767,688 502,457
(12,754,608) -
155,360 217,804
525,166 1,933,318




V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(RIS - 2FELTBARKET)

40 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as

follows:
Name #
Executve Directors: #18%
Wang An iz
Zhang Hui FE
Wang Yanhu THE
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Lin Wu-chung B
Liu Tsung-y ARE
Jiang Honggj £y
Independent Non-executive Directors: B3/ T2% :
Gong Fan 2R
Yu Shouneng A8
QuWen B3
Chow Kam Hung FIgE
Li Tongning kS
Supenisars; %
Li Kungui THE
Li Yesheng 4
Wang Chuntang 1A%
Xu Jiang Gl
Zhang Suoping HAT
Tota it

0

U

il

)

U

l

i)

Wi

)

RS

A AfMBEREEEE(R)

40 EEREEME
EEREEME BT

Directors’ and Salaries, Retirement
supervisors’ allowances and scheme
fees benefits in kind contributions Total
EXRER 558 Bl
g AR R 7 HERR &t

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Z®-SE T Z9-SE T I9-TE CTCf IR T
AE®  AR%  AE® ARY  AE® ARY AEW ARY
50000 50000 136,647 10,164 9,283 8222 195930 161,386
50000 50000 136,647 103,164 9,283 8222 195930 161,386
50000 249% 96818 83172 9,283 8222 156,101 116,390
20,830 50,000 - - - - 20830 50,000
50,000 50,000 - - - - 50000 50,000
- 249% - - - - - 249%
50,000 50,000 - - - - 50000 50,000
24,996 50,000 - = - - 2496 50,000
20,830 50,000 - - - - 20830 50,000
50,000 50,000 - - - - 50000 50,000
24,996 - - - - - 24,99 -
12500 30,000 - - - - 12500 30,000
5000 30,000 - = - = 5000 30,000
30,000 30,000 - - - - 30000 30,000
25,000 - - - - - 25000 -
17,500 - - - - - 17,500 -
481,652  5399% 310,112 289500 27,849 24666 879,618 854,158
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V Notes to the consolidated financial h
statements (cont’d)

40 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (cont’d)
(i) Resigned on 21 May 2013
(i) Resigned on 27 June 2012
(i) Resigned on 26 June 2013
(iv) Resigned on 21 May 2013
(v) Appointed on 27 June 2013
(vi) Resigned on 21 May 2013
(vi) Resigned on 4 February 2013
(viii) Appointed on 4 February 2013
(ix) Appointed on 21 May 2013

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, no emoluments were paid to the directors or
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office.

41 Individuals with the highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in 2013, three (2012: three) are executive directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 40 above. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2012: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments e REmE
Retirement scheme contributions RIREFIFT B R

The emoluments of the two (2012: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

HKDNIil-HKD1,000,000 BIEE T — 751 1,000,000 7T
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SHMBRRFEEE (W)

40 EEREEMS (E)

() R=Z—=FRA-1+—HB&EF
(i) RZZB—ZF A TEHEE
(i) RZT—=F A=+ BEE
vy R-ZE—=FERA - +—H&T
V) REZE—=F A+t HEEE
Vi) RZZE—=FRA-_1+—H&IT
Vi) R=F—=F— AMAZHT

Vi) A =T —=F = AMARET
(ix RA=E—=FRA=-+—HB®HZE

R E 22013412 A31 H & 2012
F12A31HIEFE  ARAEIWL R
MEZERESIAERBMEAER
S| ELANAZ A R HY 52 B X Bt B

=y
g o

41 BEFAL
E2013F AfUGZEHFATH - =
A(2012F : = AN) BRITES -
HM® B2 _ERIBTsE409 T LA
BoHM-AQ2F: A2
FMI TR

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——fF
250,817 215,569
18,821 11,354
269,638 226,923

Z_fMEREEHEAL(2012F =

N)BFMEA TEHEZ A
2013 2012
—E—=% —T——fF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB A
2 2




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(RIS - 2FELBARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h
statements (cont’d)

42 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of RMB25,701,253,
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

43 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share
(1) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average

R S

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

42 EFEBRE QAR MEENERS

EBENAANRBRR ZAMFAER
EEIARRRMBHRERFEAR
#05,701,253 7T °

43 EXgREENHESR SN
FTEBRE
(1) EXRERUYEE
HEAGRKENEBNRARE
B R A A GHFFBER A
AR RIBEITHESNE BAH T

number of ordinary shares outstanding: SEHBEETE
2013 2012
—2-Z=f —E——F
Consolidated net profit attributable to SERAA BT R R
ordinary shareholders of the Company BA BHFF)E 127,529,640 110,906,208
Weighted average number of RARBEITEINE B
ordinary shares outstanding F A9 2 408,988,000 414,618,840
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) ERGRbE(ARE R) 0.312 0.267

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the reporting period.

7 55 8 75 {7 51 7R 0 48 O3S R
BERRINBELER -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

NOLC O C
B %5 R 2k Y &E
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

statements (cont’d)

43 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share (cont’d)
(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

43 EXRZRUSENFHESR SN
HEBERE (8)
(2 EHBEMIEFHBGEBE

calculated as follows:

T -

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of repurchase of own shares

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares at 31 December

2013 2012

—E—Z=% —ET——F

(Recalculate)

(EHFFE)

FHIE BT L BARARER 408,988,000 426,553,600

OB AR (0 FYRA 2 - (11,934,760)
FRE B DIME T8

408,988,000 414,618,840

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
year ended 2012 was adjusted retrospectively to reflect
the effect of share consolidation on 28 January 2013.

44 Supplement to income statement
Expenses are analysed by their nature:

[tem

Operating income
Less: Changes in inventories of finished goods

Add:

Finished goods purchased

Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Financial expenses

Impairment losses

Others

Losses from changes in fair value
Investment income

Profit before income tax

HH

EE LI ON

o ERmATEEE)
SN E P am A AR
RS R
BENBTHMER
ATERITE M E
HHER
BER(E
Hi

i AREEEDEX
KB

lERE
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R20124F » WA INEFHE
2AEL B A AR 201341 A
28 Z TR A A—RR 2 n &

24
& o

44 FBRBHTER

HABRTFOERZEE DR

2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E——F
893,447,926  1,225525,090
58,283,925 (117,343,273)
91,614,518 -
509,247,842 980,849,005
39,919,774 50,672,681
37,967,957 42,916,726
29,425,143 32,455,744
- 350,417
79,129,142 133,719,204
- (1,870,634)
80,195,181 12,805,574
128,054,806 112,839,526




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisateJd__%‘_ _.
(B-HE52895) » ERRESARKEIT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREEEEE)

statements (cont’d)

45 Notes to cash flow statement
(1) Cash received relating to other operating activities

Cash received relating to sale of raw materials &R EI S WEIHE S
Cash received relating to government

grants and compensation WE M BUTHBY R B E R
Others Hith
Total Gl

(2) Cash paid relating to other operating activities

Cash paid relating to period expenses RS ESRFRER

(8) Cash received relating to other investing activities

Cash received relating to interests on deposit B FFF SHA

(4) Cash received relating to other financing activities

Cash received relating to pledged deposits 4 E{E G HIEFR S

(6) Cash paid relating to other financing activities

Cash paid relating to pledged deposits IR ERERERS

45 RERBRIFEHTR

(1) KB EtEE L RS ARIHIR
&

2013 2012
2= —F-ZF
5,637,490 5,344,735
3,056,956 9,216,433
3,538,773 935,886
12,233,219 15,497,054

(@ XffEMELZEFHEMOIR
Kid

2013 2012
—E-=% —T-F
81,310,679 88,865,181

@) WEIH M ERE RSB RARIR

2013 2012
2= —F-F
1,900,468 259,423

@) KB EMEEE LB HRERIER
&

2013 2012
—E-Z=f§ —E——F
28,284,813 -

(6) XITHEMEZE RS BRAAR
&

2013 2012
—2-=F —
9,354,986 28,284,813
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

46 Supplement to cash flow statement
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

I AfMBEREREE(|)

46 BERBEAMER
(1) BangERrtEr

a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities:

[tem

Net profit

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment provisions for assets
Losses on changes in fair value
Financial expenses
Investment income
Decrease in deferred tax assets
Decrease/(increase) in gross inventories
Increase in operating receivables
Increase/(decrease) in operating

payables

Gains on disposal of non-current assets

Net cash inflow from operating activities

b. Change in cash and cash equivalents:

[tem

Cash at the end of the year
Less: Cash at the beginning
of the year

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

HH

A

m: EEAENE
B EEHH
HBER
L6
EREFRHEERD
FatED,/ (Em)
YRR M AN
S ENER Mg/

(R

REFRYEENFRE

REEPELORSREFHE

BH
&M FRERRE
B R FERE

ReMRSEFEY
B O ) B
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a. HFANERAMALLEEH
BERE :
2013 2012
—E-ZF —T——F
127,529,640 110,906,208
35,565,828 40,607,519
2,402,129 2,309,207
- 350,417
= 1,870,634
27,582,682 29,029,958
(80,195,181) (12,805,574)
1,057,961 1,270,760
60,218,378 (110,489,048)
(60,742,907) (6,443,466)
61,369,400 (54,586,229)
(6,837,306) (292,490)
167,950,624 1,727,896

. RERRSEENFLD

=P
2013 2012
=% —E—CF
427,710,459 54,251,412
54,251,412 96,463,613
373,459,047 (42,212,201)




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

(cont’d)

Information on disposal of subsidiaries:

[tem

Consideration for disposing
subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents
received for disposing subsidiaries
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
held by disposed subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries, net of cash
disposed of

Non-cash assets and liabilities
held by disposed subsidiaries
— Current assets
— Non-current assets
— Current liabilities

(8) Details of cash and cash equivalents

[tem

Cash on hand
Bank deposits available on demand

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(BIESIES)  2FELBARKET)

46 Supplement to cash flow statement (cont’d)
(2) Information on disposal of subsidiaries during the year

R S

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

46 RERBRABER (K)
@ AFRETFARMNBARGEE

(%)
BEETARMNARBEE
2013 2012
HE —E—=5F T4
BETFARIMER
= 20,000,000
BETFARWERES
MR EEY - 20,000,000
B TRARFARES
MRS EEY - (1,684,725)
BETFARWENES
SFER
= 18,315,275
RETARIMNIERE
BEMARE
—REEE - 14,252,420
—IEmBEE - 3,564,051
—nBAaE - (84,697)
Q) REFIREEEWAVERK
2013 2012
15§ —E—=F —EF——F
EFRE 173,013 280,612
AR R N RER1TIFFR 427,537,446 53,970,800
FRBENIREEED
FRER 427,710,459 54,251,412

Note: Cash and cash equivalents disclosed above exclude the
amount of cash with restricted usage and investments

with short maturity period.

i AEWBENRSNRSEED
TEERXRINEEES R
HIRERIREN SR -
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VI Related parties and related party transactions

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

N BBRHREBRZS

1 Information on subsidiaries of the Company 1 RATMFAFER
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in KRBT ARIEBAEEL2EWE
NO'[e |V1 P‘_[‘ N 1 o
2 Information on joint venture of the Company 2 AQTRNEEATER
Shareholding  Percentage Related
Registered ~ Legal Busingss Registered percentage of voting party  Organisation
Name of investee Entity type representatie nature capital () rights (%) relationship code
LI
LI Lt E
HRRRRER 2 i EAE  RARE iEs  GREB)  RERAC)  BERE  RARE
Joint venture Company Limitd Shandong, PR~ WengAn~ Menufactureand ~ USD14,641,200 50% 50%  Jontventue 688267804
Yanta Tongl Beverage (Sno-oreign scle of everage
Industies o, L. ot venture)
2807 FREMAR MEIFE TR pmER 1841 200%7 50% 0% AEDE  ooeneeSd
RS IEARAT (Aa%) i
3 Information on other related parties 3 HtEg®ASHER
Name of other related party Related party relationship Organisation code
HtFm S &R B R (% it 1 I
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i) 74657125-6
IWREZEFISEBRAR HASEERE AT ENRE()
President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.  An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i) 71092004-7
G (RE)REFRAF HAKEERBE AT ENRE()
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group 62170270-X
KEG—ERRERDA FEAKES% A ERMDEEE
Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group 61842730-5

BMNG—EER AR

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited

FAASES% A ERHERE
An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
HEASES% A ERDEOEE
An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
FEAKES% A ERDEEE
An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group

FAREE %A LRHHEE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisateq)
(BrrEE)  cEEnsARET) L

N BBHREBRZS(|)

VI Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3 EHEfthEam s R (8)

3 Information on other related parties (cont’d)

Name of other related party Related party relationship Organisation code
HtFm 5 &R R R (% ARRRAE
Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. 75828617-X
ReESERENERNERAR IWRZEFISEERAFNFRA

Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. 61343192-X
e L ENEHEREERAR IWRLZEFSERRARNFRA

Yantai Kunlong Spring Resort Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. 76776702-0
RERRERDA IIRZEFISEERARNFAR

Anyue Andre Limon Technology Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of an associate (transferred in 2013) (ii) 56971595-9
REREMNEREFREERAR BE A (B 2013 F8ER) 89727 (i)

Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. 75353113-X
e ZENMRBRNERAA] IWRLZEF SEARAFF R (i)

Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. An entity which was controlled by chairman and his relative 78717398-3

etz IRERAR EERRERBIINLE

()  Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President Enterprises WRZEREEFRAFAM

=

(i)

(China)

influence over the Company through their representation on

Investment Co., Ltd. exercised their significant

the board of directors of the Company.

At 8 April 2013, Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. transferred
100% equity interest of Anyue Andre Limon Technology Co.,
Ltd. to other third party. After the completion of the transfer,
Anyue Andre Limon Technology Co., Ltd. is no longer a
related party of the Group.

The Group held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre Pectin
Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group previously. The Group
transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre Pectin
Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China Enterprise Co., Ltd.
at 26 September 2013. After the completion of the transfer,
the Group ceased owning any equity interest in Yantai Andre
Pectin Co., Ltd.

(i)

(i)

—Z—=#%4% Annual Report 2013 205
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M2013F 4 A8H - AL
MRBROBRARERHE
ZERENEEEENEE
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DSM Food Specialties China
Enterprise Co., Ltd. » FAs%&E
EEMTER e LEAR
RBRHDERARTHREAR
SEEEERAF]



B1 76 35 % [ 3T

VI Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

4 Transactions with related parties
(1) Related party transactions

Sales of goods
Purchases of goods
Purchases of

Note
BisE
HERm
BENM
BEHERS

maintenance services

Disposal of fixed assets
Operating lease charges

Interest charges

()  Disposal of fixed assets represents the sales of machineries
and equipment by Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd. to Yantai

BREEEEE ()
KEREER (i)
MEEM (i)

Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

(i)  Operating lease charges represent the rental paid by the

Company to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. for leasing its

office buildings.

(i) Interest charges represent interest charges on the loans
obtained from Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd., which was

repaid on 27 June 2013.

206 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

-
/N

R 75 B BB 3 5 (48)

4 BEEIZER
(1) B 5

The Group

F%E

2012
20124

62,444,924
18,977

414,893

(i)

(i)

The Company
e

2013 2012
20134 20124
6,622,265 17,197,499
408,969 18,977
108,500 -
414,893 414,893
1,296,349 -

REBREEERBERNERE
FRETERARHE T
BRBENRBO — MR
e

KREMEBRAREARAR
MERDABINTRERE
MRBEOHERAFNESE -

FMEERARERLURZER
SE AR FEAEREF
B ZEEREN20135F6
A27 BEE -



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated{j -
(BIESIES)  2FELBARKET)

VI Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(2) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors.
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and B & 72 Bk =R
other benefits
Contributions to defined IRIRB IR

retirement plans

Total =X

5 Receivables from and payables to related parties

The Group
F%H

31 December
2013
20134
12A31H
Accounts receivable FEURER R 10,380,732
Other receivables Hoth fE IR -
Accounts payable FEHIRTR -
Other payables H i {5 5R 165,957

R S

N BBHREBRZS(|)

4

5

31 December
2012
2012%F
12H31 R

3,840,098
55,179
34,827

141,009,131

BB Z 5N (%)
Q) BREZEALHFE

RREEABSEERINE
TERHKFRRE - HENE
HAKRBERSHIAR  BEA
SENEFTRET - HERE

EABRRIMAOT ¢
2013 2012
2013 2012 4F
2,215,389 1,945,475
104,828 78,888
2,320,217 2,024,363
BRI B 5 FE U FE A< FRIE
The Company
b ¥/
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
20135 20124
12A31H 12431 H
739,315 253,546

= 55,179

165,957 140,946,621
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsT R - 2 R B B ARHET)

Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

6 Guarantee

2013
The Group

Receiving guaranty

Name of guarantor

4]

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEFEEER AR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZENEEAR AR

The Company

Providing guaranty

Name of guarantor

RS

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
REtH ZEFRAROERAF
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
REIL 7 LREFRAROER AR
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
HEILH REFSTRNER AR

6 ERER
2013 4F
REE
BERER
Amount of
Name of guarantee guaranty
HiERs RRred
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 459,078,647
el H ZEF RO ER AR
Yantai North AndredJuice Co., Ltd. 167,421,293
Het AR EFEA RO ER AT
626,499,940
ZiN/NE
REER
Amount of
Name of guarantee guaranty
HwRES BHRed
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 30,000,000
MR ERNREABRAT
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 30,000,000
BMNLZENREABR AR
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 20,000,000
HEERRENRTRRER AR
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80,000,000

N BBHREBRZS(|)

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
BRREEEHE
BiTRE

fin < I =

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
ERETCERE
BiTRS

fio < /0 < B =



_—

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indieat)g{_ - ’.
(BERIEHS - 2B BARET) B LSS

R 75 B BB 3 5 (48)

VI Related parties and related party transactions 75
(cont’d)

6 ERER (K

6 Guarantee (cont’d)

2013 (cont'd) 20134 (#&)
The Company (cont’d) AR ()
Receiving guaranty BRER
Guaranty

Amount of completed (Y/N)
Name of guarantor Name of guarantee guaranty BRREEEE
RS wiRES EEEH BiTEE
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 459,078,647 N
WRZENEEER AR HEF REFRTRNER AR &
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 167,421,293 Y
IWERZEMEEFR AR HEIH RIEFSTRNER AR =

626,499,940
2012 20124
The Group AEE
Providing guaranty REER
Guaranty

Amount of completed (Y/N)
Name of guarantor Name of guarantee guaranty REREECE
’EA wiRES EEREH BiTR2
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. 4,000,000 Y
REIL 7 LREFRARGER AR RGNS IEERAR] =
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VI Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d)
2012 (cont’d)
The Group (cont” d)

Receiving guaranty

Name of guarantor

4]

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEFEEER AR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZENEEAR AR

Providing guaranty

Name of guarantor

RS

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
HEIH REFSTRNER AR
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
REtH ZREFRAROERAF
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
REIL 7 LREFRARGER AR
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
Bt AR EFRAROER AR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

6 ERER (K

BXER

Name of guarantee

wiRRE

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
HEIL T REFNRAROERAR
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
REIH ZEFRT RO BR AR

Rt

Name of guarantee

wiRA

20124 (&)
REE (48)

Amount of
guaranty
EEEH

191,427,500

120,000,000

311,427,500

Amount of
guaranty

EHREH

Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. 4,000,000

HE SRR TEBR AR
Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
HKZEFRETBRAF
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
SN ZEANRETERQE
Xuzhou Andreduice Co., Ltd.
RN ENRETERLAE
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148,696,981
50,000,000

30,000,000

232,696,981

N BBHREBRZS(|)

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
ERETCE
BiTEE

I =z A0 <

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
EREECRE
BiTRR

I =z Al < Al < A0 <



VI Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d)

2012 (cont’d)
The Company
Receiving guarantee BRER

Name of guarantor

4]

Name of guarantee

wiRRE

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZENEEBRAA]
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZENEEFR AR

VIl Contingencies

1

Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding
litigations and arbitration and related financial
effect

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from
outstanding litigations and arbitration.

Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees
provided for other enterprises and related financial
effect

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has provided
guarantees in respect of the bank loans of Xuzhou Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. amounting to RMB30,000,000 (2012:
RMB30,000,000). The board of directors considers it
is not probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees.

N BBHREBRZS(|)

6 EHRER(E)

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
HEIL T REFNRAROERAR
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
REIH ZEFRT RO BR AR

20124 (&)
¥ /NG|
Guaranty
Amount of completed (Y/N)
guaranty REEEEE
RRred BiTRE
191,427,500 Y
=
120,000,000 N
311,427,500
£t BEFEH
1 RRFAMRBEENREEBR
HE B &
# £2013F 12 A31 B Kk20124F
1231 H » REBEERARFA
hEFANKBAE -
2 RHMEBURMUEBERERN

REEEREMEEE

R20183F 12 A31H » AR A #
FRBGMNELEAIRE T ERAAE
R $R 77 18 3 A R % 30,000,000 7T
(2012 : A R ¥30,000,0007T) #2
HTHER EFTERBAARME
THEENMBERREOITEEHER

RiE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) B
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET) %

VIIl Commitments I\ REFER
1 Capital commitments 1 BEREE
2013 2012
ltem 1HH —E2—=F —ET—=F
Contracts for acquisition of fixed BRI IETES EHBETT
assets being or to be executed K EEEERESR 1,297,360 524,120
2 Operating lease commitments 2 REHERIE
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 7R 2013412 A31 H & 20124 12
December 2012, the Group and the Company had no A318 » REBRARREENA]
non-cancellable operating leases. BEEM K S E e o
IX Post balance sheet date events h SERARFKHEENR
Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date EEASBRBAFNBEDEIER A
Amount Amount
&# x|
2013 2012
ltem EH —E2—=F —E—_fF
Dividends to be appropriated o IR AEF 20,449,400 20,449,400
Dividends approved and declared KEZLESE 20,449,400 20,449,400
Ennliel
On 19 March 2014, the Board of Directors proposed an EE2RN2014F3 A 19 BIZHALNT
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMB0.05 per share to the MARERIREE 2013 FEIFSIRA - TR
Company’s shareholders. The proposal is subject to approval fEFI A AR 0.057T o M IENEZ A
by the shareholders’ general meeting. Such cash dividends REANSHE - REEBERBRE
are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. HERENRERANITAREEEARRE
HRERAALE -
On 12 March 2013, the Board of Directors proposed EE2R2013F 3 A 12 HIZEA LT
an appropriaton of a cash dividend of RMB0.05 per MR EE 2012 F R AEF « 4837
consolidated share, after adjusting for the effect from the FB2013F1 A28 A& I &
share consolidation taken place on 28 January 2013, to the % BEFRGOIRERFARE0.05
Company’s shareholders. The proposal was approved by the TG ° WLTEIREA 2013456 A 26 B &A%
shareholders’ general meeting on 26 June 2013. RAEHE ©
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X Other significant items

1 Segment reporting

The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated& g
(BRAFI) - 2EBBARKT)

+ HHEESRR

1 MBS
AEETEEE—REHBNE
B BEEHE ARG RIAME

AR R B BB 5

of condensed fruit juice and related products, therefore
the Group has not disclose any further information with
respect to reportable segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating

o B0

B o
oy

A TRAEERE PGSR

income from external customers is set out as follows: EJPNE
2013 2012
=% —F——F
China H 248,626,884 341,248,733
North America JbEM 260,057,170 334,266,345
Asia as M 224,035,008 257,374,503
Europe B 76,303,360 135,446,299
Oceania AAEM 56,372,113 109,893,981
Africa FEMN 28,053,391 47,295,229
Total = 893,447,926 1,225,525,090

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of non-
current assets located overseas is RMB385,636 (2012:

#H E2013F12H31H ' "&H
ERINEENEEEEFEAA

RMB404,895)

R#385,636 7T (20124 : AR#&

Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for
financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its
use of financial instruments in the normal course of the
Group’s operations, which mainly include:

—  Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

— Interest rate risk

— Foreign currency risk

404,895 7T)

2 ERIENEARDN - $HBMED

R AREE

AEBERTEDTHES B

TAMEE T2 :

-  ERRR
- R#ER
- FERER
- SNERR

—Z—=#%4% Annual Report 2013 213



PR R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for

financial instruments (cont’d)

This note mainly presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risks.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance
between the risks and benefits from its use of financial
instruments and to mitigate the adverse effects that
the risks of financial instruments have on the Group’s
financial performance. Based on such objectives, the
Group’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular
and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures.

(1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank,
receivables, debt investments and derivative financial
instruments entered into for hedging purposes and
other financial assets. Exposure to these credit risks
are monitored by management on an ongoing basis.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits
and does not expect that these financial institutions
may default and cause losses to the Group.
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for 2 SRIENERS T SEKED
financial instruments (cont’d) wRAAEE(E)
(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) 1=/AER (&)

In respect of receivables, the risk management
committee of the Group has established a credit
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers to determine the credit
limit and terms applicable to the customers. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ financial position,
the external ratings of the customers and their bank
credit records where available. Receivables are due
within 180 days from the date of biling. Debtors
with balances are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In monitoring the Group’s credit risk, customer data
are analysed by the Group according to some factors,
such as ageing and maturity date.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry, country or area in
which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk arise primarily when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the balance sheet date, 64% (2012:
53%) of the total accounts receivable and other
receivables were due from the five largest customers
of the Group. In addition, the debtors of the Group
that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

HREWHR  ARERRE
BRESCREBEERBERGE
TERER HEFPETER
FHh DAE E BR SH AR K S5 A 1
R ERMGEZREEFH
BRI  INERRT AR S SRTT M
Rmik(mAREE) - BREMNE
WRIEE HAKREREI180K
MEE - EUGRIRA BB
ABWESRFTBEMBRER
BB AR ARGBE—FIE
RBEE - E—REAT A%
EreRRkE,RMAE R -

REEASENERRAR - K
SEREREK  JMAFER
HARENETPERETOMN -

AEBEARBREERZSHE
EFEIFUENTEE  MTR
BPFEMIT RSB R
E - AtERERRBREFH
BREBREAEEFEHE
AEFEMEANERZKIE - NE
EBERHE  AEBEMIIAKX
B A B WU AG 7 52 B e W AR
SRR EL b B U2 5K 48 KB 9 64%
(20124 : B53%) 5 Lo - AN&E
(%] R 780 HA b 7R Rk 18 O FE WLk I8
BB b iR 3 FORRE > 4:0)
BRERFHBR -

—Z—=#%4% Annual Report 2013 215



PR R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for

financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

Investments are normally only in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except
where entered into for long-term strategic purposes,
and counterparties have equivalent or higher credit
ratings than the Group. Transactions involving
derivative financial instruments are made with
counterparties of sound credit standing and with
whom the Group has a signed netting agreement.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset,

including derivative financial instruments,

balance sheet. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in Note VI, the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in

Note VII.
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for
financial instruments (cont’d)
(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may
encounter deficiency of funds in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Company and
its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for

financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)
The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at 31 December) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

+ HHEERR(HE)

2 ERMIENEARDN - $HBMED

& A AREE ()
@) ek (&)

AEEREEABRBOSR
BEMSRABRATRNE
FARER=E(BERE R =X
(MRZFEFZEAZ 12 A 31
HEBRITHIER) G EMFE) M
FIer & HHARR - AR ERSE

VRSP AHAT ¢

2013 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

WIEFFRNARALRE

Carying

Within More than More than amount at

1 year or 1 year but 2years but halance

on demand [ess than lessthan  More than sheet date

1£/5 2years 5years 5years Total EERER

flem = {14 15505 2EESE  SENLE 8 BERE
Financial assets SHEE

Cashat bank and on hand EES 437,065,445 - - - 43T005M5 437065445

Financial assets at far value WAnEEEAE
through proft o oss FoRpN

MeREE - - - - - -

Acoounts reoevable and otter reosvales MR EMENE 151,377,895 - - - 15377895 151377895

Sb-totd gt 568,443,340 - - - BRAR30 588443340
Financial liabiities SRAR

Short-term loans e (689,946,962) - - - (68046960  (672259.392)

Accounts payeble and other payables EARIRERRGE  (148,155719) - - - (M48155719)  (148155,719)

Non-current iabites due witin one year -ERHEMETEAR  (28278799) - - - (82879 (2286337)

LongHem loans R - - - - - -

Subrlotd it (861,381,474 - - - [BaBNATY (B43.278480)

Nt amount 58 (272938.134) - - - (oro9B134)  (264835,146)
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fiem

Financial assets
(Cash &t bank and on hand
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Accounts receivable and other receivables

Sub-fotal

Financial liabilities
Short-termn loans
Accounts payable and other payables
Non-current liabities due within one year

Long-term loans

Sub-totel

Net amount

X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for
financial instruments (cont’d)
(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

+ RttEZRHRIF ()

&2 EE (&)
@) wEfmg (&)

2012 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

2 ERMIENEARDN - $HBMED

NIERARNARRERE

Camying

Within Mors then Mors than amount at

Tyearor 1 year but 2 years but More balance

on demand [ess then [ess then than Shegt date

157, 2yeas Byears Byears Tota EEafix

8 EhEE 1520 QEBE  HENE At ERERE
fEE

gHag 82,536,225 - - - 82,536,225 853%20

RelEHEE 2028000 - - - 2,028,000 2028000

ERESRAREYG 131610175 - - - 13610175 131610175

gt 216,174,400 - - - 6ITAd0 216174400
SHAR

BERE (304,698,169) - - - (34698169 (297,137,500)

EHEAREMERE (290,195,429 - - - (01942 (90195425

—ERIEN0EREAR (19520407 = - - (155264000 (151427.500)

RERER 064785 (24962256) - - BoTM) (357062

gt 0012408 (24962956) - - (B0TA68)  (711.331.050)

B (83938006 (24962956) - - 0890028 (496,156650)

—Z—=#£3 Annual Report 2013 219



PR R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for

financial instruments (cont’d)
(3) Interest rate risk

+ HHEERR(HE)

2 ERMIENEARDN - $HBMED

& A AREE ()
@) FIEER

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest risk,
respectively. The Group determines the appropriate
weightings of the fixed and floating rate interest-
bearing instruments based on the current market
conditions and performs regular reviews and
monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and
floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(@ As at 31 December, the Group held the following
interest-bearing financial instruments:

Fixed rate instruments:

B EMEMESFERNEEE
BTADREARSE@EEAR
EBEMNXRER KRS RENEK
Rk o AEBRIEHIHIREK
RERBEMEEFZEHNETA
ELE ) - e E B R e
B RE E R E E M B R
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2013
-z
Annual
interest rate
ttem B )
Financal liabiities SHAR
- Short-term loans ~RHER 3.15%+~6.72%
~Non-current liabiffies due -—FREER
within one year N -
- Long-term loans ~REREH -
- Other payables — B3 -
Total At

RELHZEFNRTROBRAF

(626,517,885)

FSTEEBMIT AT ¢
BEFIELMIR :
2012
“BF
Annual

Amount interest rate Amount
it | Ef= 8
(626,517,885) 6.00%~6.16% (140,000,000)
- 6.15% (120,000,000)
- 4.60%~5.70% (140,739,571)

(400,739571)



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BHFFIFHIS) - £ REEBARE

X Other significant items (cont’d) + HthEEEIR(E)
2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for 2 2RMIANEREKES T - SRED
financial instruments (cont’d) wRAAEE(E)
(3) Interest rate risk (cont'd) G) FI&EEE (&)
(@) As at 31 December, the Group held the following (@ AEBER12A31 BEA®N
interest-bearing financial instruments: (cont’d) SEEemTAWMT : (&)
Variable rate instruments: FHFFESMTA :
2013 2012
3-zk ZF-Ck
Annual Annual
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
fiem R Ffig o £z £8
Financial assets UEE
- Cash at bank ~R1ER 0.10%~3.25% 436,802,432 0.01%-~0.35% 82,255,613
Financial liabilities AR
~Short-term loans -RHER COF+2.25%-3.00%/ (45,741,507) COF+250% (157,187,500)
LIBOR+4.50% LIBOR+3.25%~3.75%
- Non-current fiblties due ~— R
within oe year Frgak LIBOR#3.75% (22,863,375 LIBOR:3.75% (31,427.50)
- Long-tern loans ~REfER - - LIBOR#3.75% (23,570,625)

Tota At 368,287,550 (129880012)
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 ERMIENEARDN - $HBMED

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for

financial instruments (cont’d) wRAAEE(E)
(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d) G) FI&EEE (&)
(b) Sensitivity analysis (o) BURIEDHT

As at 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points in
bank borrowing interest rates for bank borrowing,
with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s equity by
approximately RMB1,381,078 (2012: decreased/
increased RMB487,050), and increased/
decreased the Group’s net profit by approximately
RMB1,381,078 (2012: decreased/increased
RMB487,050).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity
that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date, the impact on the net
profit and equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on the interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for
financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Foreign currency risk
In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivables and payables, short-term loans and other
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currency, the Group ensures
that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(@ As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies is

presented in the following tables. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the

balance sheet date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements denominated

in foreign currency are excluded.

[tem

Cash at bank and on hand
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Short-term loans
Non-current liabilities due
within one year
Long-term loans

Net balance sheet exposure

B H

ERES
e AR SK
&1 BR AR
HA 5K
RERRE R
—FREH
FRBaE
RHER

BERBRMOFE

HtEEHEIF ()

2 ERMIENEARDN - $HBMED
& A AREE ()
(4) SMNEm R

HRTRIARIRAEHED
E¥ET  BUSRFKMENIER
R EHEREINEEENE
B MRHBEEHNKEGS
N AEEEELRRERMS
[EXREFIMNE - AR FR
B O MRS 7 IR L EYIKF o

@ NEEMIINEEEBER
BEZMUETER K12
A1 AMETEEAGE
B SNEE B D o
RIwE R - B0 e
BUARBIR AEE
BEXRBANHAERTH -

INERRITE =B A BT
A e
2013 2012
—EB—=F T F
USD USD
ETHE EJTIEE
72,262,943 34,109,777
119,764,260 88,716,291
(7,004,613) (4,717,567)
= (1,546,824)
(76,967,543)  (157,137,500)
(22,863,375) (31,427,500
= (23,570,625)
85,191,672 (95,573,948)
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X Other significant items (cont’d) + HthEEFIH(E)
2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for 2 SRIENERS T SEKED
financial instruments (cont’d) wRAAEEE)
(4) Foreign currency risk (cont'd) (4) SMNEES ()
(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi (o) A& @ A A A R H N
against foreign currencies applied by the Group: B ER D0 T -
Reporting date
Average rate mid-spot rate
FHERE HEAPREES
2013 2012 2013 2012

—F-=F —T-=-F

UsD EIH 6.1896 6.3102

©

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming all other risk variables remained
constant, a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi
against the US dollar at 31 December would have
increased (decreased) the Group’s equity and net
profit by the amount shown below, whose effect is
in Renminbi and translated using the spot rate at
the year-end date:

As at 31 December 2013 20135 12A31H
uUSD =TT
As at 31 December 2012 201212 H31 H
usD ET

A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the
US dollar at 31 December would have had the
equal but opposite effect on them to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.
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EXRTERAREIIR

Equity Net profit
BRER B

(3,194,688) (3,194,688)

3,684,023 3,684,023
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for
financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the balance sheet date. The
analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial statements
denominated in foreign currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.

(6) Fair value
(@ Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value as at
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012. The
Group and the Company’s financial instruments
measured at fair value are based on the quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for the same
assets or liabilities.

Asset

BE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

NAREEAEEHED
STABHESNEREE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisatec_/)
(BH BI85 » 2EBETABARKETT)

—_

+ HHEERR(HE)

2 ERMIENEARDN - $HBMED
& A AREE ()
(4) SMNE/mfR (&)
(c) SRMDHT (B)

ot SRR D AT R RAR 3
EEEREEXZELH
B NEFHRNEZIHE
EBERBEAEERH
B - T R S B R B B &
TEAEETEHAERSH
B e Bt D AT A BIEINE
WERFEEZER E—FFE
B AT E R R B B R AR A
JIE °

(6) B bERRE
H b (B8 R B 38 7 E A R

& o
ZN

A 1EE
a) AAAEBEAENSRT

A
TRIVRT AR AR EBER
ENESREETAR2013
#1912 431 B &2012F 12 B
STHMEEAEER - A5 E
EAXRRNGBAARBEE
NEMEETENRAE
BEUBERMNEESBER
& BT 5 B R B A KRR
TE (RECTAEE) o

2013 2012
=% T F
12A31A 12A31H

- 2,028,000
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X Other significant items (cont’d)

2 Risk analysis, sensitivity analysis, and fair value for

financial instruments (cont’d)

(6) Fair value (cont’d)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012, there were no changes in

valuation technique of fair value.

(7) Estimation and assumption of fair value

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
financial assets, financial liabilities and items set out in
Note X.2(6) above that measured at fair value on the

balance sheet date.

(@) Debts and equity investments

Fair value is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date for financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(excluding derivatives), available-for-sale financial
assets, and held-to-maturity investments if there is

an active market.

(b) Receivables

The fair value is estimated as the present value of
the future cash flows, discounted at the market

interest rates at

©

sheet date.

e

the balance sheet date.

Loans and long-term payables
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the balance sheet date. The discounted
rate is the market rate of interest at the balance

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash
flows are based on the government bond yield
curve at the balance sheet date plus an adequate

credit spread and are as follows:
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ltem

Financial assets

Listed equity securities at fair value

Wealth management products
designated as at fair value
through proftt or loss

Total

[tem

Financial assets

Listed equity securities at fair value

Wealth management products
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Total

X Other significant items (cont’d)

3 Assets measured at fair value

RE

IRERESILABERHE
BHEN TR
DA EBEHE
BEREHAZHER

b

TRERESILABEHE

BHER  EEA
WRAEEE
REREAZHER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BHFFIFHIS) - £ REEBARE

+ RttEZRHRIF ()

3 UARBETENEE
Balance at Changes in Balance at
1 January fairvalue 31 December
2013 Addition Disposal ~ for the year 2013
013% FELARE 013%
1A18 E¥:3 5 FERE SDRE 12A318
2,028,000 1,870,634 (3,918,332) 19,698 -
- 3,580,000,000 (3,580,765,488) 765,488 -
2,028,000 3,581,870,634  (3,584,683,820) 785,186 -
Balance at Changes in Balance at
1 January fairvalue 31 December
2012 Addtion Disposal for the year 2012
N12% REMBE 0125
1818 REHE AERE 28985 128318
24,883,156 5000000  (25984,522) (1,870,634) 2,028,000
97,200,000  3,137,440,000  (3,234,640,000) - -
122,083,156 3,142,440,000  (3,260,624,522) (1,870,634) 2,028,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHET)

Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements

1 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by type:

Type LSl
Subsidiaries /N

Other related parties HE @A
Third parties E=H
Sub-total /NeF

Less: Provision for bad and W AR

doubtful debts

Total A&t

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing BREC

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FELAR(E 1)
Sub-total NGt

Less: Provision for bad and L SEARER

doubtful debts

Total A&t

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

(3) No accounts receivable was due from shareholders
holding 5% or more of the voting rights of the
Company as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012.

228 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. JBAtARENETRHERAT

t- BRARMBHREIERAEE

1

FEUWBR =X

(1) ERERFTIZLEF WO T -
2013 2012
=% —F——F
11,312,442 17,587,936
739,315 253,546
120,151,744 56,073,390
132,203,501 73,914,872
132,203,501 73,914,872

@) FEWSRA IR DR T

2013 2012
—E—=%F —T——F
132,203,501 73,914,872
132,203,501 73,914,872
132,203,501 73,914,872

&

ARk B e M AR SR RERR B AR R AR

-

R20134% 12 A31 H&20124F
12A318 - ERERPTIEE
FAERFIS% (E5%) A ERR
TR D BB BBALIFMR, ©



Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

2 Other receivables

(1)

@

Other receivables by type:

Type

Subsidiaries
Third parties

Subtotal
Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

The ageing analysis of other receivables is

Ageing

Within 1 year (inclusive)

Over 1 year but within 2 years
(inclusive)

Over 2 year but within 3 years
(inclusive)

Over 3 years

Sub-total
Less: Provision for bad and

doubtful debts

Total

The ageing is counted starting from the
other receivables are recognised.

as follows:

ARie

1ELAR (S 1)
1FEE2FE(52F)

2FEEJF(E3F)

SFEE

gt
R

date when

The Group holds no collaterals for provided other

receivables stated above.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisateJd__%‘_ _.
(B-HE52895) » £RRESARKEIT)

t- BARMBEBRERRAEE

(4%8)
2 HhEWER
(1) BEENFTIZLER 7 HTR0T

2013 2012
=% —F——F
244,530,940 380,893,573
4,008,650 5,085,607
248,539,590 385,979,180
3,987,685 3,987,685
244,551,905 381,991,495

@) BEmEWKTIZIRE 7RI

2013 2012
== —F——F
244,550,037 381,988,967
1,868 =

= 2,528

3,987,685 3,987,685
248,539,590 385,979,180
3,987,685 3,987,685
244,551,905 381,991,495

Rk B H At FE YR RE R B AR R

JHEtE -

ARE I Ept £l B FHRIERR
E 5 1O H At FE YRS B (R (T K

e
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) -
(BRI - £EENBARET)

Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s - BAFMBEREIEREEE
financial statements (cont’d) (4%8)

2 Other receivables (cont’d) 2 HbpEWEk (&)

(3) As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the (3) M20134 12 H31 H & 20124
Company did not hold any other receivables which 12 431 8 « ARAEINEE M
were denominated in foreign currency. EUER o

(4) Other receivables by category: (4) B ENTIZIEIRSE -

2013
—Z-=5
Provision for bad
Carrying amount and doubtful debts
FRE S HAR AR
Percentage Percentage
Category Note Amount (%) Amount (%)
BE # &8 Lh(%) &8 LH(%)
Individually significant and assessed
individually for impairment ) 3,987,685 100% 3,987,685 100%
BESREAY ERHRER
EfmE R
2012
—E——F
Provision for bad
Carrying amount and doubtful debts
RESE BREE
Percentage Percentage
Category Note Amount (%) Amount (%)
B it £ EEf31 (%) £ EEFBI (%)
Individually significant and assessed
individually for impairment ) 3,987,685 100% 3,987,685 100%

EESEEALSENIAE
BRI

230 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&HZEFRTROERA T



Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

2 Other receivables (cont’d)

(6) During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012, the Company had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.

(6) As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
there is no amount due from shareholder entities
holding 5% (including 5%) or more shares of the
Company in the balance of other receivables.

3 Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term equity investments are categorised as

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

(BHERII) - i‘gﬁ“aﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁﬁn{{. '

(&)

t- BARMBEBRERRAEE

2 HiERR (&)

(7

©

MR 2013412 431 H&20124F
12 8318 - AARNEAWKEL
HEE| AR E 2 2R FARAK
L B 51 42 452 B 45 5 A L Ath FE UK

o
oA °©

MR 2013412 431 H&20124F
124318 - HtEKRP B
ERB ARG (F5%) A LEE
SRR AR R B ALIEM, ©

follows:

ltem |

Investments in subsidiaries %’T?’D\ AR E
Investments in a joint venture HELRNAIMWEE
Investments in an associate HEE N RIHIRE
Sub-total /INEF

Less: Provision for impairment B OREREE
Total A&t

3 RERERE
(1) REIRIEREZIEWT -

2013 2012

—=—=5 —F——F
521,235,647 521,235,647
23,559,696 26,613,535

- 60,056,541

544,795,343 607,905,723
544,795,343 607,905,723
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 15 RIS

P B BARET)

Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

3 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

year are as follows:

Investee

03
N3E

Cost method-subsiciaries

Baishut Andre Juice Co, Ltd.

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co,, Lid.
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co, Lid.

Andre Juice Co, Ltd.

Dalian Andre Juice Co, Lid.

Binzhou Ancre Juice Go, Lid.

Yantai Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Yongji Anare Juice Co, Ltd.

Subtotal

Equty method-joint venture

Yantai Tongl Beverage Industries Co, Lid.
Equity method-associate
Yantai Andlre Pectin Co, Ltd.

Subtotal

Total

232 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

t- BARMEBREIRERAEE
(#&)

3 REIRERE (&)
©2) REIRIER &K TFZE)E 05
WLaF -

Shareholding  Voting rights

Book value of long-term equity investment ~ percentage percentage Cash
RiREREEARE %) () dividend
Balanceat Increase/  Balanceat  TEMKE  HMRE  forthe year
Investmentcost ~ 1January  Decrease 31December  BERR  BfiZiE ¥
fikEEd BEgs B4R EAED  12RYE RA( BB Rei
BE-TFAd
RARERSHTERAT 110630130 110630130 - 110,630,130 5% 5% =
FaENRER AR 60622606  80,6226% - 80,6226% 5% 5% -
BNRENIZEERAT  S865418 58645418 - 53645418 5% 5% =
RENETARAT 8 8 - 8 100% 100% -
REREAIZSTERAE 56000000 56,000,000 - 56000000 10% 0% -
BINZEAIZ - RERAT 107803408 107003488 - 107,893,468 5% 5% =
RazEilZraeaRig 30000000 30000000 - 30,000,000 T5% T5% -
KEREHEATERLT 17443001 77443007 - TIA3907 T5% T5% -
It 521,235,647 521,295,647 - 51,205,647 -
BEE-AEDE
FESTHIZARAT 2500006 2661353 (3053839 23559696 2% B% 6075000
Eﬁi kﬁﬂ/\?
MAZEAIZBRIBRAT 33080000 60056541  (60,056,541) - - = -
gt 58080026 86670076 (63,110,380 23,559,696 6,075,000
Aif 519315673 60705723  (63,110,300) 544,705,343 6,075,000

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF




Investes

212

Bk

Cost method-subsiciaries
Baishui Andre Juice Co,, Lid.

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co, Lid.

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co, Lid.
Andre Juice Co, Ltd.

Dalian Andre Juice Co, Lid.
Binzhou Ancfe Juice Co, Lid.
Yantal Andre Juics Co,, Lid.
Liquan Anare Juice Co, Ltd.
Yongj Andre Juice Co, Ltd.

Sub-total

Equty method-joint venture

Yantai Tongf Beverage Industries Co, Lid.

Equity method-associate
Yantal Andre Pectin Co,, Lid.

Sub-total

Total

Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

3 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)

t- BARMEBREIRERAEE
(#&)

3 RERERE(R)

©2) REGIER BN FEZE) ISR S
WAl (&)

Shareholding
Book value of ong-term equty investment percentage
REREREERER %)
Blnceat  Icease/  Baaceat A
hvesimentcost  fJavay  Decrease 3fDecember  EfiiElh
REED RERA  1A1A HEE®  128%1A i)
BdE-T08
AARENSHTERAT 110630130  110630,130 - 10830130 75%
RAENZENSHHARAT 80622606  80622,6% - 806226% 7%
BNREAIZETERAR 5866418 5BAL5418 - GB6418 75%
REHZTRRAT 8 8 - 8 100%
FERENSATARAD 56000000 56000000 - 56000000 0%
BNZEAIZRERAT 107803488 107000488 107,893,488 75%
MARENSHEERAT 30000000 30000000 - 30000000 75%
BRTENZAIERAT 20000000 20000000 (20000000 = =
KERBHEATARAR 7748001 77443907 - T30 75%
gt B304 541236647 (20000000 521236647
ERE-AE07
MAGHERTEARA 50006 28285442 [1671907) 2661353 25%
i
RazEfI2BROBEAT 33080000 58018246 2038295 60,056,541 1895%
It 58080026 86303688 366388 8GETO0TE
Aif 5091663 62753933  (1963361) 607 905723
—E_=EER

Voting rights
percentage
(o
EH#RE
ElIRAE
i

1%
1%
15%
100%
10%
5%
1%

5%

2%

18.95%

Cash
dlvidend
for the year

&3
EE

5,400,000

5400000
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(RPN - 2 BHEBARET)

Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)

t- BARMEBREIRERAEE
(#&)

3 RERERE(H)

The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out in

Note V.

The Group held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre
Pectin Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group previously.
The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China
Enterprise Co., Ltd. in 20183. After the completion of
the transfer, the Group ceased owning any equity
interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

(38) Details of joint venture and associate

2013

Z%-cF

Joint venture

Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd.

2012

=F==

Joint venture

Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd.
Associate

Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

234 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Name of company

RRERMER

N
Ly
A

BRHBHIEERAR

Name of investee

RIREELAR

=]

207

A

=0=)

MegHAHIZERAR
g

07

ReZEHRBROARAA

E=y

E=f

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

WHT : (%)
ARAFAFRNHEBRERZRE
B REPD o

W\

BREMNRBROERA A
RAEARRBBE AR KA
AR FFIR L B /518.95% - B
20135  ARAREERAL
ERNRBRHABERAT18.95%
% DSM Food Specialties
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. » %
FZERERTER AQRT
BB ZEFNRBRNE
R A AME( RS o

Q) EES LN A £ FIEE

Total assets Total liabilities

attheend at the end
oftheyear  of the year
X X
HERE 1]
121,810,020 6,671,500
Totalassets ~ Total liabilties
attheend atthe end
of the year of the year
EX X

AE#R  AREE

121,397,872 4,843,990

794424880 464,043,529

Net assets Total operating

at the end income Net profit
oftheyear  fortheyear  for the year
X FEER %3
BRERN BARE B
115,138,520 145707475 12,084,638
Net assets  Total operating
atthe end income Net profit
oftheyear ~ fortheyear  forthe year
£X KEER AF
FEELE WAEE R
116553882 149,342,864  14.912,376
330,381,360 214,742,448 10,757,666



Xl

Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Operating income and operating costs

ltem BB

Operating income from principal activites =& 2 A
Other operating income H A ZE A
Operating costs RN

5 Investment income

(1)

@

Details of investment income

ltem 1HH

Income from long-term equity REARR R B W
investments

Investment income from disposal of RERRERE
long-term equity investments EArigERE

Investment income from disposal of ~ BREUAALBEAES
financial assets at fair value through BEEHHHAEH

profit or loss BarEmEE
HISHIE s
Total =)

For long-term equity investments accounted for using
the cost method, the amounts of investment income
from an investee accounted for more than 5% of total
profits or included in the top five investment income
when the amount is less than 5% of total profits, are
as follows:

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisated& g

(B 152 B ’ﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁjﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ)— L

t- BARMBEBRERRAEE
(#)

4 EEWA - EERE

2013 2012
=% —T—F

570,070,185 617,377,128
7,697,094 2,147,270
(528,737,306)  (545,967,529)

5 REWGS
(1) REW 28540
Note 2013 2012
i —B-=F —T—F
@)
2,187,800 5,766,389
76,743,070 -
765,488 583,386
79,696,358 6,349,775

Q) BiERERENRYRERE
Wand - RE WS ME AR
5% AL HAEEREERE
Wes S FATAZAERIAT

2013 2012
Investee —E-ZF —T—F
Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. RaFmHLENFRTERR AR 3,021,161 3,728,094
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. RezEMNRBROBRAF (833,361) 2,038,295
Total At 2,187,800 5,766,389
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s +-BAFIBERETEEHSE

financial statements (cont’d)

6 Supplement to cash flow statement

[tem

(1) Reconciliation of net profit to cash

flows from operating activities:

Net profit

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment provisions for assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
Decrease in deferred tax assets
Increase in gross inventories
Decrease in operating receivables
Increase in operating payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash at the end of the year
Less: Cash at the beginning of the year

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

236 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. tR&1LHZEFRIR

(#&)

5H

(1) BFAERDACLEE

Beme

SFHE

n: EEEERE
B EERY
BERERE
HEER
elen
ERFEHEERD
FEMEM
L EYIE B R
AR TR R MBI

RETEHELMNB S REFH

@ ReRRESENFEHEN
RENFRRE
B RENFINRE

ReRBeSBWHEN/ (RD) &

STRHBRAF

6 REREBEREAEH

2013 2012
—2-=f e
31,776,253 4,688,315
6,654,060 8,535,238
832,292 832,293

- 350,417
23,695,502 21,440,202
(79,696,358) (6,349,775)
1,057,961 1,270,760
(4,465,793) (101,269,228)
52,603,944 58,794,610
118,944,819 16,143,222
151,402,680 4,436,054
423,377,863 42,257,195
42,257,195 77,642,547
381,120,668 (35,385,352)
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